
April 14, 2022
Page |  1

Planning Commission Meeting
April 14, 2022 - 7:00 PM

Newberg city hall 
 (teleconference meeting -  instructions to join electronically at

www.newbergoregon.gov email comments to fe.bates@newbergoregon.gov)

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER

II. ROLL CALL

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
(5-minute maximum per person - for items not on the agenda)

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR

IV.A Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
PC Minutes -3.10.22.pdf

V. QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARINGS 
(complete registration form to give testimony - 5-minute maximum per person except for
principals, unless otherwise set by majority motion of the Planning Commission).  

V.A Appeal  of MISC221-0001 Modification of Street Right-of-Way and Improvement
Width - N El l iott Road Improvement Project
APL22-0001 N Elliott Road 4-14-22 w Exhibit - Attachments.pdf

V.B Conditional  use permit approval  to use a single-family dwel l ing as
a vacation rental  home
CUP22-0003 2035 N Heritage Way w Attachments.pdf

VI. NEW BUSINESS

VI.A Update City of Newberg Planning Commission Participation Guidel ines for
consistency with NMC Chapter 2.15 Departments, Boards and Commissions
GEN22-0006 Planning Commission Participation Guidelines Update w Exhibit-Attachment.pdf

VII. ITEMS FROM STAFF

VII.A Anticipated Schedule of Planning Commission Activities
Memo Planning Commission Activities 2021.doc.pdf

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1319076/PC_Minutes_-3.10.22.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1317542/APL22-0001_N_Elliott_Road_4-14-22_w_Exhibit_-_Attachments.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1318153/CUP22-0003_2035_N_Heritage_Way_w_Attachments.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1314841/GEN22-0006_Planning_Commission_Participation_Guidelines_Update_w_Exhibit-Attachment.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1318134/Memo_Planning_Commission_Activities_2021.doc.pdf


April 14, 2022
Page |  2

VIII. ITEMS FROM COMMISSIONERS

IX. ADJOURNMENT

ACCOMMODATION OF PHYSICAL IMPAIRMENTS:
In order to accommodate persons with physical impairments, please notify the Community
Development Department Office Assistant II of any special physical or language
accommodations you may need as far in advance of the meeting as possible as and no later
than 48 business hours prior to the meeting.  To request these arrangements, please contact
the Office Assistant at (503) 537-1240. For TTY services please dial 711.

2



Agenda Item No:IV.A

Planning Commission Agenda Item Report
Meeting Date: April 14, 2022
Submitted by: Fe Bates
Submitting Department: Community Development  
Item Type: MEETING MINUTES
Agenda Section: 

Subject:
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

Suggested Action:
Motion to approve Meeting Minutes from March 10, 2022 Planning Commission.

Attachments:
PC Minutes -3.10.22.pdf

3

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1319076/PC_Minutes_-3.10.22.pdf


Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • planning@newbergoregon.gov 

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 

NEWBERG PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 
March 10, 2022, 7:00 pm 

414 E First St.  

City Hall Permit Center Conference Room 

Newberg Teleconference 

 
(This is for historical purposes as meetings are permanent retention documents and this will mark this period in our 

collective history) 

 

Chair Kriss Wright called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m.  

 

PLANNING COMMISSION ROLL CALL:  

 

Members present: Jeffrey Musall 

                                Jason Dale 

                                Sharon Capri 

   Kriss Wright, Chair 

   Aiden Gray, Student  

                        Charles Aban, Vice Chair 

   Connor Hansen 

  

Members Absent: Jessica Harrington   

        

Staff present: Doug Rux, Community Development Director 

Mary Heberling-Creighton, Housing Planner 

Brett Musick, Senior Engineer 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  None 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

 

1. Approval of the February 10, 2022 Planning Commission meeting minutes 

MOTION:  PC Capri/PC Aban moved to approve the February 10, 2022, Planning Commission meeting minutes. Motion 

carried (7 Yes/0 No). 

 

LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARING: 

 

1. Newberg Urban Renewal Plan and Accompanying Report Conformance with Newberg Comprehensive 

Plan 

 
     Planning Commission Resolution: 2022-378 

 

Call to Order:  Chair Wright opened the public hearing at 7:07 p.m.  

 

Call for Abstentions, Bias, Ex-Parte Contact, conflicts of Interest and Objections to Jurisdiction:  None 

4



Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • planning@newbergoregon.gov 

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 

 

Staff Report:  Community Development Director Rux gave a presentation on the Urban Renewal Plan. He explained the 

role of the Planning Commission. 

 

Elaine Howard, consultant, discussed Urban Renewal, which was not a new tax, and its impact on other taxing districts 

and local schools.  

 

CDD Rux described how the Urban Renewal Plan was developed and discussed Urban Renewal District subareas. 

 

Ms. Howard explained the impact to the City of Newberg, projected revenues, duration provision, Comprehensive Plan 

chapters reviewed, and additional documents reviewed. 

 

Public Testimony: 

 

a. Proponents:  Urban Renewal Citizens Advisory Committee Chair John Bridges said all the taxing districts 

affected by the plan were invited to participate on the committee and most did. The priority was to make 

projects shovel ready, first for industrial, then for commercial, mixed use, high density residential, and last 

single family housing. The focus was to get more family wage jobs.  

 

b. Opponents, undecided:   None 
 

c. Close of Public Testimony:  Chair Wright closed the public testimony portion of the hearing at 7:38 p.m. 
 

Staff Recommendation:  

 

CDD Rux said staff recommended approval of the resolution. 

 

Deliberation and Action by the Planning Commission: 

 

MOTION:  PC Capri/PC Dale moved to adopt Resolution 2022-378. Motion carried (7 Yes/0 No). 

 

QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING 

 

1. Conditional Use Permit approval to use a single-family dwelling as a vacation rental home at 514 N 

College St. CUP22-0002 

 
Planning Commission Order: 2022-03 

 
Call to Order:  Chair Wright opened the public hearing at 7:41 p.m.  

 

Call for Abstentions, Bias, Ex-Parte Contact, Conflicts of Interest and Objections to Jurisdiction:  None 

 

Reading of Quasi-Judicial Announcements:  Student PC Gray read the announcements. 

 

CDD Rux noted a modification to the legal language. 

 

5



Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • planning@newbergoregon.gov 

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 

Staff Report:  CDD Rux presented the staff report. This was a request for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a vacation 

rental at 514 N College Street. He gave a background on the site and applicable criteria. He discussed the public 

comments that had been received. Staff recommended approval with conditions.  

 

Public Testimony: 

 

Applicants:  Stacie Athon and Cody Willis, applicants, said the house would be utilized by business clients and family 

members. They would have monitoring devices to regulate noise and there would be a noise policy for guests. They would 

be managing the home themselves and would be happy to distribute contact information to neighbors. This would help 

support small businesses in the City. 

 

Proponents:  None 

 

Opponents, undecided:  None 

 

Close of Public Testimony:  Chair Wright closed the public testimony portion of the hearing at 7:54 p.m. 

 

Staff Recommendation:  

 

CDD Rux said staff recommended approval. 

 

Deliberation and Action by the Planning Commission: 

 

MOTION:  PC Dale/PC Capri moved to adopt the Planning Commission Order 2022-03. Motion carried (7 Yes/0 No). 

 

2. Appeal of MISC221-0001 Modification of Street Right-of-Way and Improvement Width – N Elliott 

Road Improvement Project. 

 

Planning Commission Order 2022-04 

 
Call to Order:  Chair Wright opened the public hearing at 7:57 p.m.  

 

Call for Abstentions, Bias, Ex-Parte Contact, conflicts of Interest and Objections to Jurisdiction:  None 

 

Reading of Quasi-Judicial Announcements:  Student PC Gray read the announcements. 

 

Staff Report:  CDD Rux presented the staff report. This was an appeal of a decision on a modification of street right-of-

way and improvement width for the N Elliott Road Improvement Project. He gave a background on the application and 

applicable criteria. He explained the appeal, which stated the City had not provided proof that it owned Mr. D’hondt’s 

property at 807 N Elliot Road and did not have the consent of Mr. D’hondt. He gave details on the elements of the appeal. 

He noted this was not a variance as stated by the appellant, it was a modification process per the code addressing right-of-

way width. Staff recommended adoption of the order, which approved the January 14, 2022, Community Development 

Director decision. 

 

Public Testimony: 

 

Proponents:  None 

 

6



Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • planning@newbergoregon.gov 

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 

Opponents, undecided:  Tyler Smith, Tyler Smith & Associates P.C., was representing the appellant. He noted the 

dimensions of Mr. D’hondt’s property which included the right-of-way dedication and utility easement proposed. This 

was property Mr. D’hondt owned and the City could potentially condemn for use in the Elliot Road project. He thought 

the property needed to be acquired first before a land use application could be applied for. Staff said this was a 

modification, not a variance, but he thought previous staff reports showed that it was considered a variance at the time it 

was appealed. He asked for the City to wait on land use applications until it owned this property. 

 

Close of Public Testimony:  Chair Wright closed the public testimony portion of the hearing at 8:21 p.m. 

 

Staff Recommendation:  

 

CDD Rux responded the application submitted was for a modification. The applicant never applied for a variance. Staff 

recommended approval of the order. 

 

Deliberation and Action by the Planning Commission: 

 

PC Capri thought the Commission should wait until this was resolved with the property owner. 

 

PC Dale asked CDD Rux how close they were to the 120-day time limit. He agreed with delaying to resolve this 

between the owner and City. 

 

CDD Rux responded the applicant would need to extend the 120 day deadline. If they followed the code, the 

City would have to acquire the full right-of-way which was more than the preliminary design identified and 

purpose for the application’s to reduce the right-of-way. There had been ongoing discussions with Mr. D’hondt 

on the potential acquisition of the right-of-way. 

 

There was discussion regarding the Planning Commission’s options. 

 

PC Dale said if it was between taking property and delaying, he would rather not take property. He wanted to 

take the time to get it right. 

 

MOTION:  PC Dale/PC Capri moved to continue the hearing for Planning Commission Order 2022-04 to April 14, 

2022, at 7:00 p.m. Motion carried (6 Yes/1 No [Musall]). 

 

ITEMS FROM STAFF: 

 

CDD Rux reviewed upcoming agenda items. 

 

The next Planning Commission meeting would be held on April 14 at 7:00 p.m. 

 

ITEMS FROM COMMISSIONERS:  

 

None 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 

 Chair Wright adjourned the meeting at 8:35 p.m. 

7



Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • planning@newbergoregon.gov 

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 

 

Approved by the Newberg Planning Commission this April 14, 2022. 
  

_______________________________________   ________________________________ 

PC Wright, Planning Commission Chair                 Office Assistant II 
 

 

8



Agenda Item No:V.A

Planning Commission Agenda Item Report
Meeting Date: April 14, 2022
Submitted by: Doug Rux
Submitting Department: Community Development  
Item Type: PC QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC  HEARING
Agenda Section: 

Subject:
Appeal of MISC221-0001 Modification of Street Right-of-Way and Improvement Width - N Elliott Road
Improvement Project

Suggested Action:
Adopt Planning Commission Order 2022-04

Attachments:
APL22-0001 N Elliott Road 4-14-22 w Exhibit - Attachments.pdf

9

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1317542/APL22-0001_N_Elliott_Road_4-14-22_w_Exhibit_-_Attachments.pdf


                                      

Community Development 
 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

APPEAL OF MISC221-0002 MODIFICATION OF STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY AND 

IMPROVEMENT WIDTH - N ELLIOTT ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

  

HEARING DATE:  April 14, 2022 

FILE NO:   APL22-0001 

REQUEST:  Appeal of MISC221-0001 Modification of Street Right-of-Way and 

Improvement Width - N Elliott Road Improvement Project 

LOCATION:  N Elliott Road (E Portland Road to Newberg High School) 

TAX LOT:  The lots impacted by a reduced ROW width include R3217DB 

06201, R3217DB 06200, R3217DB 06001, R3217DD 02501N/A 

APPLICANT:   Paul Chiu, City of Newberg 

 

OWNER:   N/A 

 

APPEALANT: Dan D’hondt, and Rajiv Jain Managing Member of Cedar Terrace 

LLC, represented by Tyler Smith, Tyler Smith & Associates P.C. 

 

ZONE: Low Density Residential District (R-1), High Density Residential 

(R-3)  

PLAN DISTRICT: LDR (Low Density Residential), HDR (High Density Residential)  

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Planning Commission Order 2022-04 with: 

 

Exhibit A: January 14, 2022, Community Development Director’s Decision and 

Findings 

 

Attachment 1: Appeal Application 

Attachment 2: Graphic Illustrating the Design Modification 

Attachment 3: Community Development Director’s Decision January 14, 2022 

Attachment 4: Memorandum From Paul Chiu to Doug Rux, March 1, 2022 

Attachment 5: Johnston v. City of Albany, 34 OR LUBA 32 (1998) 

 

  

10



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

A. DESCRIPTION OF APPEAL:  

NMC 15.100.090 requires proof that the property affected is in the exclusive ownership 

of the applicant, or the applicant has the consent of all owners. NMC 15.100.090. The 

City has not provided proof that it owns Mr. D’hondt’s property at 807 N Elliot Rd. The 

City does not have the consent of Mr. D’hondt. Therefor the application does not contain 

proof that satisfies NMC 15.100.090(B). That is a violation of NMC and of the case law 

in Johnston v. City of Albany, 34 OR LUBA 32 (1998)(Attachment 1 Appeal 

Application). 

B. PLANNING COMMISSION MARCH 10, 2022 HEARING: 

On March 8, 2022, the Mayor and City Councilor McBride meet with residents at 

Newberg High School to discuss the design of the N Elliott Road project. Staff was 

informed Mr. D’hondt did not attend this meeting. 

 

The public hearing on the appeal was opened on March 10, 2022, and testimony taken 

with the hearing continued to April 14, 2022. The Planning Commission asked staff to 

find a resolution to the appeal. It also needs to be recognized that Mr. Smith noted the 

concerns in the appeal related to Mr. Rajiv Jain Managing Member of Cedar Terrace 

LLC had been resolved. 

 

On March 21, 2022, the City Manager presented an option to the City Council to redesign 

the N Elliott Road project by removing improvements along the frontage of Mr. 

D’hondt’s property and creating mid-block pedestrian crossings north and south of his 

property frontage to address pedestrian access requirements. The City Council accepted 

this approach and asked staff to evaluate the design feasibility. Attachment 2 is the design 

graphic illustrating the design modification. The City Manager has reached out to Mr. 

D’hondt to enter into an agreement on the right-of-way design modification, but no 

resolution has been reached at the time of distribution of this staff report. If an agreement 

is reached it is possible that the appeal could be withdrawn by the appellant. 

 

The applicant (Paul Chiu) submitted an extension to the 120-day statutory requirement to 

have all reviews conducted at the local level completed on March 23, 2022. Mr. Chiu 

granted a 60-day extension. The new deadline to complete all local reviews including 

appeals is May 2, 2022. 

 

The Planning Commission has two possible options before them. The first is to deny the 

appeal as recommended by staff on March 10, 2022, and as recommended in this staff 

report. A denial of the appeal could lead to an appeal of the Planning Commission 

decision to the City Council which would hold a separate public hearing. 

 

A second option is to approve the appeal. In doing so the Planning Commission would 

need to develop findings that support approval of the appeal. In this scenario Mr. D’hondt 

could appeal that decision to the City Council where a separate public hearing would be 

11



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

held. Another alternative is that no appeal is filed, and the City of Newberg Engineering 

Division submits a new Modification of Street Right-of-Way and Improvement Width 

application that excludes the design modification along the roadway frontage of Mr. 

D’hondt’s property, and the application would address the remaining three street 

frontages of 911 N Elliott Road, 1007 N Elliott Road, and 704 N Elliott Road. The design 

modification concept is represented in Attachment 2. In a new application public notice 

to all property owners along the N Elliott Road Corridor would occur, public comment 

would be taken, and a new decision issued based on the application submitted that would 

be appealable to the Planning Commission and City Council. 

 

C. DESCRIPTION OF APPLICATION 

The City of Newberg is working on the design for a transportation improvement to N 

Elliott Road from E Portland Road (Highway 99W) to Newberg High School. As part of 

the design for the transportation improvement, based on communications with residents 

along the transportation corridor when the project was initiated in May 2019, four 

properties were identified where there was a desire to narrow the right-of-way cross-

section to a distance less than what is required by NMC 15.505.030(G) to reduce 

potential impacts. The Public Works Department, Engineering Division submitted an 

application requesting a determination if the right-of-way width could be reduced below 

the NMC 15.505.030(G) requirements as part of the overall design of the project to 

determine what amount of right-of-way and easements would need to be acquired. 

 

The transportation improvement project would include right-of-way improvements for 

the N Elliott Road corridor from Highway 99W to Newberg High School. Proposed 

improvements include pavement, curb and gutter, sidewalk, ADA ramps, bicycle lanes, 

storm drainage, wastewater pipeline, water main, street lighting, conversion from aerial 

to underground power lines, traffic calming and roadway safety features, and landscape 

enhancements. Along the length of the roadway improvement the roadway would be 

narrowed below the 28.5’ for a ½ street width improvement in front of four (4) parcels to 

address feedback from residents.  

 

NMC 15.505.030(G) Street Width & Design Standards for Major Collector is 36’ curb-

to-curb (2-12’ travel lanes, 2-6’ bike lanes), 2-5’ planter strips, 2-5’ sidewalks → Total 

56’ of physical improvements. Typical sections show an additional 0.5’ behind sidewalk 

to ROW. This gives a minimum ROW width of 57’ as noted in NMC, or 28.5’ for a ½ 

Street width. 

 

The Elliott Road Improvement Project is being designed to minimize right-of-way 

acquisition along the corridor resulting in four (4) identified parcels along the roadway to 

reduce the minimum right-of-way per NMC. 

 

➢ File 7 – 807 N Elliott Road: Varies from 25.5’ to 23.5’ of Right-of-way with an 

additional 3’ of Public Utility Easement. 

12



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

 

➢ File 9 – 911 N Elliott Road: 23’ of ROW with an additional 3’ of Public Utility 

Easement. This case has been resolved with the property owner. 

 

➢ File 10 – 1007 N Elliott Road: 25’ of ROW with an additional 3’ of Public Utility 

Easement. This case has been resolved with the property owner. 

 

➢ File 22 – 704 N Elliott Road: Varies from 25’ to 29’ of Right-of-way with an 

additional 4.5’ of Public Utility Easement. This case has been resolved with the 

property owner and is in escrow. 
 

D. LOCATION: N Elliott Road 
 

 
 

E. SITE INFORMATION: 
 

1. Location: N Elliott Road corridor from E Portland Road (Highway 99W) north to 

Newberg High School 
 

2. Size: Not applicable 

3. Topography: Flat 

4. Current Land Uses:  

807 N Elliott Road – Single Family Residence 

13



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

911 N Elliott Road – Single Family Residence 

1007 N Elliott Road – Multi-family Residential 

704 N Elliott Road – Single Family Residence 

5. Natural Features: There are trees, shrubs, and grass yards along the N Elliott Road 

corridor. 

 
6. Adjacent Land Uses: 

 

807 N Elliott Road 

a. North:  Single-family Residential 

b. East: Single-family Residential 

c. South: Single-family Residential 

d. West: Single-family Residential 

 

911 N Elliott Road 

 

a. North:  Multi-family Residential and Single-family Residential 

b. East: Single-family Residential 

c. South: Single-family Residential 

d. West: Single-family Residential 

 

1007 Elliott Road 
 

a. North: Multi-family Residential 

b. East: Single-family Residential 

c. South: Single-family Residential 

d. West: Single-family Residential 

 

704 N Elliott Road 

 

a. North:  Single- family Residential 

b. East: Commercial 

c. South: Commercial 

d. West: Commercial, Multi-family and Single- family Residential 

 

14



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

7. Zoning: The following zoning districts are adjacent the subject properties for the 

right-of-way reduction width. 

807 N Elliott Road 

a. North: R-1 

b. East: R-1  

c. South: R-1 

d. West: R-1 

 

911 N Elliott Road 

 

a. North: R-1 

b. East: R-1  

c. South: R-1 

d. West: R-1 

 

1007 Elliott Road 

 

a. North: R-1 

b. East: R-1  

c. South: R-1 

d. West: R-1 

 

704 N Elliott Road 

 

a. North: R-2 

b. East: C-2  

c. South: C-2 

d. West: C-2/LU and R-2 

 

8. Access and Transportation: Access to for all parcels along N Elliott Road is to N 

Elliott Road. The four residential lots where the right-of-way width is proposed to 

be reduced take access from N Elliott Road. 

 

9. Utilities: 

a. Water: The City’s GIS system shows there is an existing 8-inch water line 

in N Elliott Road. 

b. Wastewater: The City’s GIS system shows there is an existing 8-inch 

wastewater line in N Elliott Road.  

c. Stormwater: The City’s GIS system shows an intermittent stormwater 

system along the roadway corridor. Some areas have a stormwater system 

and other areas do not have a stormwater system. 

d. Overhead Lines: There are overhead utilities serving the properties along 

15



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

N Elliott Road or running parallel to the property frontages. Any new 

connection to any of the properties including the four properties where the 

right-of-way is proposed to be narrowed will need to be undergrounded. 

See NMC 15.430.010 for exception provisions. 
 

F. PROCESS: This Appeal request is a Type III application and follows the procedures in 

Newberg Development Code 15.100.160, 15.100.170, 15.100.180 and 15.100.190. The 

appeal period for the Director Decision ended on January 27, 2022, at 4:30 pm. The 

Planning Commission will hold a quasi-judicial public hearing (new hearing) on the 

application. The Commission will make a decision on the application based on the 

Appeal of a Type II decision must be based on the written comments raised prior to the 

expiration notice comment period pursuant to NMC 15.100.220. The Planning 

Commission’s decision is final unless appealed. Important dates related to this 

application are as follows: 

 

Important dates related to this application are as follows: 

a. 11/04/2021: The Community Development Director deemed the 

application complete. 

b. 11/17/2021: The applicant mailed notice to the property owners within 

500 feet of the site. 

c. 12/01/2021: The 14-day public comment period ended. 

d. 1/14/2022: The Community Development Director issued a decision 

on the application. 

e. 1/25/22: Appeal was filed by Mr. Dan D’hondt, and Rajiv Jain 

Managing Member of Cedar Terrace LLC, represented by 

Tyler Smith, Tyler Smith & Associates P.C. 

f. 1/27/22:  Appeal period ended at 4:30 pm. 

 

g. 2/23/22:  The Newberg Graphic published notice of the Planning  

   Commission hearing. 

 

h. 2/28/22:  Notice mailed to property owners in the N Elliott Road  

   corridor. 

 

i. 3/10/22:  The Planning Commission opened the quasi-judicial public 

   hearing, took testimony, and continued the hearing to April 

   14, 2022. 

 

16



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

j. 3/23/22:  The applicant submitted a letter extending the 120-day 

   local review timeframe by 60-days to May 2, 2022. 

 

k. 4/14/22:  The Planning Commission will hold a continued quasi- 

   judicial public hearing to consider the appeal application. 

G. AGENCY COMMENTS: The original Public Works Department, Engineering Division 

application was routed to several public agencies and City departments for review and 

comment as part of MISC221-0002. Comments and recommendations from City 

departments are contained in Attachment 3.  

PUBLIC COMMENTS: Public comments as part of MISC221-0002 are contained in 

Attachment 3. 

 

H. ANALYSIS:   

 

Mr. D’hondt, and Mr. Rajiv Jain Managing Member of Cedar Terrace LLC, through their 

representative Tyler Smith of Tyler Smith & Associates P.C. filed an appeal of the 

Community Development Director’s decision (Attachment 1 and Attachment 3) that 

determined the right-of-way width for the proposed transportation improvement could be 

reduced at four (4) locations (Attachment 3). 

 

Mr. D’hondt, and Rajiv Jain Managing Member of Cedar Terrace LLC, through Mr. 

Smith have raised the following issues: 

 

1) Newberg Municipal Code requires the Owner of the real property in question to 

approve of the application or be the applicant. Rajiv Jain and Cedar Terrace, LLC 

as well as Dan Dhondt; own 704 N Elliot Rd, and 807 N Elliot Rd respectively. 

They are not the applicant, nor do they approve of land use actions covering their 

property. 

 

2) Your application does not meet any of the criteria of NMC 15.505.030(h) 

 

Mr. Smith further elaborates on his first issue below. 

 

1) Newberg Municipal Code15.100.090 (b) bars this application from being 

approved. 

 

NMC15.100.090 requires that land use application provide PROOF that the property 

affected by the application is in the exclusive ownership of the applicant, or otherwise 

have the consent of all owners of the property. 

 

a. Newberg does not have the consent of my clients Daniel Dhondt, nor Rajiv Jain who is 

the managing member of Cedar Terrace LLC. The property that they own as fee simple 

17



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

title owners is included as a part of your application. See Exhibit A-l of your application 

packet shows the portion owned by Mr. Dhondt, and See Exhibit D-l of your application, 

which shows the portion owned by Cedar Terrace LLC. Thus Mr. Chiu (the Applicant) 

nor the City of Newberg is the “exclusive owner" of the property, nor does the Applicant 

have the consent of these two owners. The application must therefore be denied under the 

NMC. Oregon law is clear on this point. Where a local code provision requires the 

consent of all property owners affected by a land use application, a present owner must 

sign the application. Johnston v. City of Albany, 34 Or LUBA 32 (1998). 

 

b. Furthermore, the application page itself, shows that no-owner has signed the 

application. Mr. Chiu apparently signed for the applicant on October 20,2021but he is 

neither the owner nor the owner's agent. 

 

Staff Response: 

 

15.100.090 Development permit application. 

B. Proof that the property affected by the application is in the exclusive ownership of the 

applicant, or that the applicant has the consent of all owners of the affected property. 

  

The City of Newberg is the road authority over N Elliott Road from E Portland Road 

(Highway 99W) to Newberg High School. ODOT has jurisdiction over the intersection of 

N Elliott Road and E Portland Road. The City of Newberg controls the existing right-of-

way, and its improvements are subject to the requirements of NMC Chapter 15.505 

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS STANDARDS, specifically regarding this action on the 

right-of-way width determination per NMC 15.505.030(G) and the criteria of NMC 

15.505.030(H). The City has the authority to design right-of-way improvements per 

NMC Chapter 15.505 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS STANDARDS to determine if the 

improvements are feasible and under what circumstances the design may impact 

properties or not, and measures that are available to minimize and/or mitigate the 

potential impacts. The Public Works Department, Engineering Division filed an 

application as the road authority for N Elliott Road based on community feedback in 

preliminary designs that identified potential impacts to four (4) properties that the City is 

attempting to mitigate by reducing the right-of-way width. At this time there is no land 

use action (site design review) directly impacting Mr. D’hondt’s property, thus no 

consent by Mr. D’hondt is necessary on an application. The City as the road authority 

filed an application to get a determination if a reduction of the right-of-way was feasible 

or not per NMC 15.505.030(H). 

 

Based on the Appellant’s comments staff requested the applicant prepare a timeline of 

activities related to the N Elliott Road project based on specific questions. Attachment 3 

is a summary of the steps that have occurred and the interactions with property owners 

along the N Elliott Road corridor. Attachment 4, Question #4 indicates that Mr. D’hondt 

is the exclusive owner of 807 N Elliott Road and discussions and negotiations with Mr. 

D'hondt have occurred on that basis for preliminary design and possible acquisition of 

18



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

right-of-way and easements for the transportation improvement project. The N Elliott 

Road project file is incorporated by reference related to 807 N Elliott Road. 

 

 In addition, Mr. Rajiv Jain, Managing Member of Cedar Terrace LLC has reached a 

resolution with the City of Newberg and the title company (First American) is working 

with the Lender (Chase) to get Partial Release through escrow, which may take several 

more weeks before payment is wired. Thus, Mr. Rajiv Jain, Managing Member of Cedar 

Terrace LLC has agreed to the reduced right-of-way width. 

 

Mr. Smith raises the case of Johnston v. City of Albany, 34 Or LUBA 32 (1998). This 

case is included in Attachment 4. In this case, in summary, an application was submitted 

by a private development entity and private property owner for a site design review 

application for a manufactured home park that that questioned if they owned the property, 

they were submitting the design review application for. This question pivoted on property 

included in the application they did not own based on a prior real estate transaction 

between parties. LUBA determined that the private land ownership in the part of the 

property that had a provision for reconveyance back to the original seller and successor in 

interest of that portion of property to be reconveyed was based on timing for sanitary 

sewer connection is part of the development application without a signed statement 

indicating that intervenor has obtained the consent of the current property owner. The 

details in this issue can be found in Attachment 5, Pages 3 – 6. LUBA sustained that the 

portion of the site design review application that included the property to be reconveyed 

did not have the current property owner’s consent. 

 

The second issue in Johnston v. City of Albany, 34 Or LUBA 32 (1998) relates to land 

owned by the City of Albany, and land that was under public ownership without the 

public entity consenting that was part of the proposed development. LUBA concluded the 

City of Albany had not properly consented to the public property to be part of the site 

design review application (Attachment 5, Pages 6 – 8). 

 

 Staff’s review in the case cited by Mr. Smith is materially different than a determination 

for a Modification of Street Right-of-way and Improvement Width as applied for by the 

City of Newberg Engineering Division. The City of Newberg has not submitted for a site 

design review application for a development. The City is in the design phase for the N 

Elliott Road Improvement Project to establish the necessary right-of-way width to 

finalize the design and acquire the necessary right-of-way and easements to construct the 

project. Mr. D’hondt has been actively engaged in the design discussions and has 

negotiated with the City of Newberg’s Right-of-Way Agent (Universal Field Services) 

about possible right-of-way and easement acquisition based on preliminary design and 

feedback.  

 

 Under Mr. Smith’s interpretation in his submitted appeal any design concepts for a 

transportation improvement along a transportation corridor would require any and/or all 

property owners along the transportation corridor to sign an application to allow a design 

19



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

concept to be advanced to determine the feasibility, or not, of a project, and what type of 

mitigation measures may be necessary for the transportation improvement. This 

interpretation in effect would stop all local government (city and county) transportation 

improvements outlined in Transportation System Plans and corresponding development 

regulations from occurring if one or more property owners did not sign an application. 

Again, this project is in the design phase to determine a final design concept to advance. 

 

 Once the impacts of the right-of-way design are known the City would negotiate with a 

property owner to acquire the necessary right-of-way and easements for the 

transportation improvements. In Mr. D’hondt’s situation if the Engineering Division had 

not sought the MISC221-0002 determination the City would be bound to negotiate for the 

required right-of-way width per NMC 15.505.030(G) which is greater than what has been 

identified as necessary to mitigate the potential impacts to his property. 

 

Mr. Smith further elaborates on his second issue below. 

 

2) Newberg Municipal Code 15.505.030(h) is not met here. 

 

NMC 15.505.030 is cited as the basis for this variance. Modification of Street Right-of-

Way and Improvement Width. The director, pursuant to the Type II review procedures of 

Chapter 15.220 NMC, may allow modification to the public street standards of subsection 

(G) of this section, when the criteria in both subsections (H)(1) and (2) of this section are 

satisfied: 

 

" The modification is necessary to provide design flexibility in instances where: 

 

a. Unusual topographic conditions require a reduced width or grade separation of 

improved surfaces; or 

 

b. Lot shape or configuration precludes accessing a proposed development with a street 

which meets the full standards of this section; or 

 

c. A modification is necessary to preserve trees or other natural features determined by 

the city to be significant to the aesthetic character of the area; or 

 

d. A planned unit development is proposed and the modification of street standards is 

necessary to provide greater privacy or aesthetic quality to the development." 

 

Each of those four possible alternatives is not met. 

 

(a) Here, there is no unusual topographic condition, the City is simply proposing to 

widening the street against the wishes of these owners. Proposing to enter onto these 

owners lots, take their property for public use and establish wider easements and rights of 

way over Cedar Terrace. 

20



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

(b) The lot shape and configuration is not affective access at all since the access will exist 

either way and these properties are already street frontage properties. 

 

(c) There have not yet been any findings nor assertions about which trees are being 

determined to be significant, but the opponents agree there are some important and 

significant trees that should not be disturbed by the proposed plan. 

(d) No planned unit development is proposed. 

 

CONCLUSION 

This application cannot be approved because the owners of at least some of the 

property in question are not the applicant, and have not consented to this 

application. This violates the NMC and Oregon law. 

 

Staff Response: 

 

 To begin this is not a variance request as identified by Mr. Smith. Variances are a 

separate process in the NMC under Chapter 15.215 VARIANCE PROCEDURES. The 

Applicant submitted their application under NMC 15.505.030(H) to seek a determination 

on Modification of Street Right-of-Way and Improvement Width. 

 

There are four sub-criteria to NMC 15.505.030H.1. All four are not required to be met as 

the sentence structure identifies. One of the sub-criteria is sufficient to satisfy a 

determination for a reduced right-of-way width for the design of the N Elliott Road 

improvement. These are addressed in detail in Attachment 3 of the Findings. In summary: 

 

a. Attachment 3 in the Findings section indicates that topographic issues are not 

applicable the applicant’s request for a modification to the right-of-way width. 

 

b. Attachment 3 indicates that this issue only applied to 704 N Elliott Road. Access 

will be maintained, and three parking spaces will be relocated on site per the 

negotiated settlement between the property owner and the City. 

 

There were no issues identified for Mr. D’hondt’s property at 807 N Elliott Road. 

 

c. Attachment 3 in the Findings indicates that at 807 N Elliott Road (D’hondt 

property) the narrowed right-of-way design would preserve two (2) existing palm 

trees which are unique to the neighborhood area. 

 

d. Attachment 3 in the Findings indicates that this criterion is not applicable as the 

transportation design proposal is not part of a planned unit development 

 

Mr. Smith has also included information stating: 

 

“There are other options, such as downgrading the street category of Elliot Rd., delaying 

21



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

this action, and reducing the impacts and condemnations of the owners' property that are 

preferred. While we appreciate this attempt to minimize the taking of private property for 

public use, nonetheless we oppose your attempts to condemn and take my client's private 

property for your preferred use and plan. My clients and other interested community 

members have suggested alternatives, and alternate plans.” 

 

Staff Response: 

 

The Planning Commission’s purview in this matter is narrowly focused on the issue of 

15.505.030(G) and the criteria of 15.505.030(H) related to Modification of Street Right-

of-Way and Improvement Width. It is not the Planning Commission’s role to evaluate 

options (beyond a full width improvement or reduced width improvement along the 

frontage of the four identified properties), or delaying the proposed design and 

construction of the transportation improvement. The Planning Commission has no 

authority to condemn property and has no authority over the reference to suggested 

alternatives cited by Mr. Smith along the transportation corridor. These issues are for the 

City Council to consider and to provide direction to the Engineering Division. 

 

As noted under section B.  PLANNING COMMISSION MARCH 10, 2022 

HEARING above the City Council has provided direction to staff on evaluating an 

alternative design along the frontage of Mr. D’hondt’s property. 

 

H. PRELIMINARY STAFF RECOMMENDATION: The preliminary staff 

recommendation is made in the absence of public hearing testimony and may be modified 

subsequent to the close of the public hearing. At the time this report was drafted, staff 

recommends the following motion: 

 

Move to adopt Planning Commission Order 2022-04, which approves the January 14, 2022 

Community Development Director Decision 

  

22



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

   PLANNING COMMISSION ORDER 2022-04 

 AN ORDER APPROVING THE JANUARY 14, 2022, COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR DECISION MISC221-0002 

RECITALS 

1. Paul Chiu, Senior Engineer, City of Newberg Public Works Department, Engineering 

Division applied for a Type II Modification of Street Right-of-Way and Improvement 

Width as part of the proposed N Elliott Road Improvement Project. 

2. On January 14, 2022, the Community Development Director issued a decision on the 

submitted application for a determination on the Modification of Street Right-of-Way and 

Improvement Width. 

3. On January 25, 2022, Mr. Dan D’hondt, and Mr. Rajiv Jain Managing Member of Cedar 

Terrace LLC, represented Mr. Tyler Smith of Tyler Smith & Associates P.C. filed an 

appeal of the decision. 

4. The City of Newberg has reached agreement with the property owners on the right-of-

way width for 911 N Elliott Road and 1007 N Elliott Road. 

5. Mr. Rajiv Jain, Managing Member of Cedar Terrace LLC, a party to the submitted 

appeal, has reached a resolution with the City of Newberg on the design of the right-of-

way width and is in escrow to close that right-of-way acquisition for 704 N Elliott Road. 

6. After proper notice, the Newberg Planning Commission held a public hearing on March 

10, 2022, to consider the appeal and continued the hearing to April 14, 2022. 

7. The Planning Commission continued the public hearing on April 14, 2022 to consider the 

appeal and considered testimony and deliberated. 

8. The Newberg Planning Commission finds that the application meets the applicable 

Newberg Municipal Code criteria as shown in the findings in Exhibit “A” of the January 

14, 2022, Community Development Director Decision on MISC221-0002. 

The Newberg Planning Commission orders as follows: 

1. The appeal application APL22-0001 is hereby denied. 

2. The January 14, 2022, Community Development Director Decision on MISC221-0002 

(Exhibit “A”) is hereby approved. Exhibit "A" is hereby adopted and by this reference 

incorporated. 

23



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

3. The findings shown in Exhibit “A” of the January 14, 2022, Community Development 

Director Decision on MISC221-0002 (Exhibit “A”) are hereby adopted. Exhibit "A" is 

hereby adopted and by this reference incorporated. 

4. This order shall be effective April 28th, 2022. 

Adopted by the Newberg Planning Commission this 14th day of April 2022.  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

Planning Commission Chair Planning Commission 

Secretary 

List of Exhibits: 

 Exhibit “A”: January 14, 2022, Community Development Director Decision and Findings  

  

  

24



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Exhibit “A” to Planning Commission Order 2022-04 

January 14, 2022 Community Development Director Decision  

and Findings – File APL22-0001 

 

  

25



                                      

Community Development 
 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

January 14, 2022 

 

Mr. Paul Chiu 

City of Newberg 

414 E First Street 

Newberg, OTR 97132 

 

Parties Providing Comments: Gerry Avoilo, Miguel Gonzales, Brandy Crockett, James Talt, 

Tyler Smith 

 

Dear Mr. Chiu, 

 

The Newberg Community Development Director has provided a determination based on your 

application MISC221-0002 Elliott Road Improvement Project. The decision will become 

effective on January 28, 2022, unless an appeal is filed.  

 

You may appeal this decision to the Newberg Planning Commission within 14 calendar days of 

this decision in accordance with Newberg Development Code 15.100.170. All appeals must be in 

writing on a form provided by the Planning Division. Anyone wishing to appeal must submit the 

written appeal form together with the required fee of $550.20 to the Planning Division within 14 

days of the date of this decision. 

 

The deadline for filing an appeal is 4:30 pm on January 27, 2022 

 

If you have any questions, please contact me at doug.rux@newbergoregon,gov or 503-537-1212.  

Sincerely, 

 

 
 

Doug Rux, AICP 

Community Development Director 

 

 

Attachment 

EXHIBIT "A"
Order No. 2022-04

26

mailto:doug.rux@newbergoregon,gov


                                      

Community Development 
 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

 

STAFF REPORT 

Determination – N Elliott Road – MISC221-0002 

 

FILE NO:   MISC221-0002 

 

REQUEST: Reduce the right-of-way width design for four properties for 

improvements to N Elliott Road 

 

LOCATION:  N Elliott Road (Highway 99W to Newberg High School) 

 

TAX LOT(S): The lots impacted by a reduced ROW width include R3217DB 06201, 

R3217DB 06200, R3217DB 06001, R3217DD 02501 

 

APPLICANT:  Paul Chiu, City of Newberg 

 

OWNER: N/A 

 

ZONE: Low Density Residential District (R-1), High Density Residential (R-3) 

 

PLAN DISTRICT: LDR (Low Density Residential), HDR (High Density Residential) 

 

CONTENTS 

 

Section I: Application Information 

Section II: Exhibit A Findings 

 

Attachments: 

1. Application 

2. Public Comments 

 

  

27



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Section I:  Application Information 
 

A. DESCRIPTION OF APPLICATION: 

 

The development would include right of way improvements for the N Elliott Road 

corridor from Highway 99W to Newberg High School. Proposed improvements include 

pavement, curb and gutter, sidewalk, ADA ramps, bicycle lanes, storm drainage, 

wastewater pipeline, water main, street lighting, conversion from aerial to underground 

power lines, traffic calming and roadway safety features, and landscape enhancement. 

Along the length of the roadway improvement the roadway would be narrowed below the 

28.5’ for a ½ street width improvement in front of four (4) parcels.  

 

NMC 15.505.030(G) Street Width & Design Standards for Major Collector is 36’ curb-

to-curb (2-12’ travel lanes, 2-6’ bike lanes), 2-5’ planter strips, 2-5’ sidewalks → Total 

56’ of physical improvements. Typical sections show an additional 0.5’ behind sidewalk 

to ROW. This gives a minimum ROW width of 57’ as noted in NMC, or 28.5’ for a ½ 

Street width. 

 

The Elliott Road Improvement Project is minimizing Right-of-way acquisition along the 

corridor resulting in four (4) parcels requiring less than the minimum right-of-way per 

NMC. 

 

➢ File 7 – 807 N Elliott Road: Varies from 25.5’ to 23.5’ of Right-of-way with an 

additional 3’ of Public Utility Easement. 

 

➢ File 9 – 911 N Elliott Road: 23’ of ROW with an additional 3’ of Public Utility 

Easement. 

 

➢ File 10 – 1007 N Elliott Road: 25’ of ROW with an additional 3’ of Public Utility 

Easement. 

 

➢ File 22 – 704 N Elliott Road: Varies from 25’ to 29’ of Right-of-way with an 

additional 4.5’ of Public Utility Easement. 

 

B. SITE INFORMATION: 

 
1. Location: N Elliott Road corridor from Highway 99W north to Newberg High School 

 

2. Size: Not applicable 

3. Topography: Flat 

4. Current Land Uses:  

807 N Elliott Road – Single Family Residence 

28



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

911 N Elliott Road – Single Family Residence 

1007 N Elliott Road – Multi-family Residential 

704 N Elliott Road – Single Family Residence 

5. Natural Features: There are trees, shrubs, and grass yard along the N Elliott Road 

corridor. 

 
6. Adjacent Land Uses: 

 

807 N Elliott Road 

a. North:  Single-family Residential 

b. East: Single-family Residential 

c. South: Single-family Residential 

d. West: Single-family Residential 

 

911 N Elliott Road 

 

a. North:  Multi-family Residential and Single-family Residential 

b. East: Single-family Residential 

c. South: Single-family Residential 

d. West: Single-family Residential 

 

1007 Elliott Road 

 

a. North: Multi-family Residential 

b. East: Single-family Residential 

c. South: Single-family Residential 

d. West: Single-family Residential 

 

704 N Elliott Road 

 

a. North:  Single- family Residential 

b. East: Commercial 

c. South: Commercial 

d. West: Commercial, Multi-family and Single- family Residential 

 

29



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

7. Zoning: The following zoning districts are adjacent the subject properties for the 

right-of-way reduction width. 

807 N Elliott Road 

a. North: R-1 

b. East: R-1  

c. South: R-1 

d. West: R-1 

 

911 N Elliott Road 

 

a. North: R-1 

b. East: R-1  

c. South: R-1 

d. West: R-1 

 

1007 Elliott Road 

 

a. North: R-1 

b. East: R-1  

c. South: R-1 

d. West: R-1 

 

704 N Elliott Road 

 

a. North: R-2 

b. East: C-2  

c. South: C-2 

d. West: C-2/LU and R-2 

 

8. Access and Transportation: Access to for all parcels along N Elliott Road is to N 

Elliott Road. The four residential lots where the right-of-way width is proposed to 

be reduced take access from N Elliott Road. 

 

9. Utilities: 

a. Water:  he City’s GIS system shows there is an existing 8-inch water line 

in N Elliott Road. 

b. Wastewater: The City’s GIS system shows there is an existing 8-inch 

wastewater line in N Elliott Rad.  

c. Stormwater: The City’s GIS system shows an intermittent stormwater 

system along the roadway corridor. Some areas have a stormwater system 

and other areas do not have a stormwater system. 

d. Overhead Lines: There are overhead utilities serving the properties along 

30



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

N Elliott Road or running parallel to the property frontages. Any new 

connection to any of the properties including the four properties where the 

right-of-way is proposed to be narrowed will need to be undergrounded. 

See NMC 15.430.010 for exception provisions. 

 

C. PROCESS: The Determination is a Type II application and follows the procedures in 

Newberg Development Code 15.100.030.  Following a 14-day public comment period, 

the Community Development Director makes a decision on the application based on the 

criteria listed in the attached findings. The Director’s decision is final unless appealed.  

Important dates related to this application are as follows: 

a. 11/04/2021: The Community Development Director deemed the 

application complete. 

b. 11/17/2021: The applicant mailed notice to the property owners within 

500 feet of the site. 

c. 12/01/2021: The 14-day public comment period ended. 

d. 1/14/2022: The Community Development Director issued a decision 

on the application. 

D. AGENCY COMMENTS:  The application was routed to several public agencies for 

review and comment (Attachment 1). Comments and recommendations from city 

departments have been incorporated into the findings and conditions.  As of the writing 

of this report, the city received the following agency comments:  

City Manager: Reviewed, no conflict 

 

Finance: Reviewed, no conflict 

 

Police: Reviewed, no conflict  

 

Public Works Maintenance: Reviewed, no conflict. 

 

Public Works Superintendent: Reviewed, no conflict.  

 

Public Works Director: Reviewed, no conflict 

 

Public Works Wastewater Treatment Plant: Reviewed, no conflict 

 

E. PUBLIC COMMENTS:   

31



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Public comments (summarized) were received from the following parties and are included in full 

Attachment 2. 

 

1.  Gerry Avoilo: Provided four comments. 1) Surprised by the extent of the work and the 

cost of over $3M to dress up a road to the high school. 2) Understands and supports the need for 

sidewalks on both sides of Elliott Road for safety and convenience of pedestrians. To do so would 

require a part of his front yard. 3) He walks every week and notes any streets do not have 

sidewalks on both sides, some street with no sidewalks, some streets with sidewalks on only one 

side, and many sidewalks are in need of repair. He comments that if the N Elliott Road project 

was to only install sidewalks that excess funds should be used to repair old sidewalk in the city. 

4) He was informed that widening the road was necessary to help reduce traffic speed. He 

inquired about permeant speed camera installation to reduce the speeding problem. 

 

Staff Response: 1) The Applicant’s request is to address a narrower right-of-way width from the 

required Code requirement along the frontage of four properties. The comment does not address 

the criteria of 15.505.030H.1.a.-d. The cost of the project should be addressed directly to the 

Public Works Engineering Division. 2) Mr. Avolio’s property is one of the properties where the 

applicant has requested a narrower right-of-way width for the N Elliott Road improvements. The 

Applicant is working to acquire right-of-way for the improvements which will include a sidewalk. 

3) The Applicant’s request is to address a narrower right-of-way width from the required Code 

requirement along the frontage of four properties. The comment does not address the criteria of 

15.505.030H.1.a.-d. This comment will be forwarded to the applicant for consideration in the sign 

of the N Elliott Road improvement. 4) The Applicant’s request is to address a narrower right-of-

way width from the required Code requirement along the frontage of four properties. The 

comment does not address the criteria of 15.505.030H.1.a.-d. This comment will be forwarded to 

the applicant for consideration in the sign of the N Elliott Road improvement. 

 

2. Miguel Gonzales: Provided comments in response to the process being utilized. 1) He 

does approve the Type II application. 2) The owner of the property must approve the application 

and sign the application. 3) the city does not meet the requirements of 15.505.030(h) because 

owners did not sign the application. 4) Attached section of the Code he believes are applicable. 5) 

The city has not made serious efforts to address concerns raised by residents. 

 

Staff Response: NMC 15.505.030H.1.a.-d. and 2 are applicable to the applicant’s request. 

Specifically, “ H. Modification of Street Right-of-Way and Improvement Width. The director, 

pursuant to the Type II review procedures of Chapter 15.220 NMC, may allow modification to 

the public street standards of subsection (G) of this section, when the criteria in both subsections 

(H)(1) and (2) of this section are satisfied: …” The Applicant submitted an application to address 

a modification to the design for the right-of-way width for the N Elliott Road project to reduce 

the right-of-way width along the frontage of four properties. As the Road Authority the City of 

Newberg is designing a future transportation improvement. This design will determine the right-

of-way necessary to acquire where insufficient right-of-way exists for a future transportation 

improvement.  The application did not require property owner signature for the Applicant to 

request a determination if a reduced right-of-way width is feasible to minimize impacts along the 

transportation corridor. Without the application request by the Applicant the transportation design 

would have to meet the requirements of NMC 15.505.030 G. Street Width and Design Standards 

requiring more right-of-way than may be necessary. Any right-of-way acquisition would be 

negotiated. 2) As noted above the property owner was not required to sign the application as the 

32



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Applicant is requesting a determination to reduce the right-of-way width along the frontage of 

four properties. 3) The Applicant submitted an application to determine if a narrower right-of-

way width can be approved following the procedures laid out in NMC 15.505.030H.1.a.-d. and 2. 

5) The Applicant’s request is to address a narrower right-of-way width from the required Code 

requirement along the frontage of four properties. The comment does not respond the criteria of 

15.505.030H.1.a.-d. This comment will be forwarded to the applicant for consideration in the 

design of the N Elliott Road improvement. 

 

3. Brandy Crockett: Provided comments in response to 1) Opposition to bike lanes on N 

Elliott Road. 2) Point 1 is to the actual number of people that will use the bike lanes. Point 2 is 

the City Council wants bike lanes for students to commuting to school but the number of bikes in 

racks at the High School is low. Point 3 is that most bike users don’t use bike lanes and ride with 

traffic or children use the sidewalk. Point 4 is the 10 year plan to take away street parking for bike 

lanes from Haworth and Deborah to make connecting bike lanes to Elliott Road. 

 

Staff Response: The Applicant’s request is for a determination of the necessary right-of-way 

related to four properties along N Elliott Road. The general comment of opposition to bike lanes 

and to the 4 points raised do not respond to the requirements of NMC 15.505.030H.1.a.-d. and 2. 

The comments will be forwarded to the applicant for consideration in the design of the N Elliott 

Road improvement. 

 

4. James Talt: Mr. Talt provided comments requesting modifications to the Type II Land 

Use Application based on four requests. A) Fast track the completion of bike lanes on Deborah 

Road from 99W to Haworth and designate both sides as no parking. B) Reclassify Elliott Road 

from a Major Collector to a Local Residential Street. Add needed road improvements for safety, 

accessibility, ADA, drainage, etc. and with no-street parking and shared land markings for bikes 

from Haworth south to 99W. C) Omit Plater strips. D) Add road improvements per (B) above and 

create bike lanes from Haworth north to the High School. Designate no street parking on this one 

block stretch. 

 

Staff Response: The submitted application is specific to a modification to the right-of-way width 

along N Elliott Road related to four property frontages. The submitted comments do not respond 

to the criteria of NMC 15.505.030H.1.a.-d. and 2. The comments will be forwarded to the 

applicant for consideration in the design of the N Elliott Road improvement. 

 

5. Tyler Smith: Mr. Smith provided comments indicating 1) Newberg Municipal Code 

requires the Owner of the real property in question to approve of the application or be the 

applicant.  Rajiv Jain and Cedar Terrace, LLC as well as Dan Dhondt, own 704 N Elliot Rd, and 

807 N Elliot Rd respectively.  They are not the applicant, nor do they approve of land use actions 

covering their property. 2) Your application does not meet any of the criteria of NMC 

15.505.030(h) 

 

Staff Response: The Applicant submitted an application to address a modification to the design 

for the right-of-way width for the N Elliott Road project to reduce the right-of-way width along 

the frontage of four properties. As the Road Authority the City of Newberg is designing a future 

transportation improvement. This design will determine the right-of-way necessary to acquire 

where insufficient right-of-way exists for a future transportation improvement.  The application 

did not require property owner signature for the Applicant to request a determination if a reduced 

33



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

right-of-way width is feasible to minimize impacts along the transportation corridor. Without the 

application request by the Applicant the transportation design would have to meet the 

requirements of NMC 15.505.030 G. Street Width and Design Standards requiring more right-of-

way than may be necessary. Any right-of-way acquisition would be negotiated. 

 

Mr. Smith’s comments regarding NMC 15.505.030(h) are addressed below in the findings section 

of this report. 

 

  

34



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Section II:  Findings – File MISC221-0002 

Determination – N Elliott Road 
 

15.505.030 Street standards. 

 

H. Modification of Street Right-of-Way and Improvement Width. The director, pursuant to 

the Type II review procedures of Chapter 15.220 NMC, may allow modification to the 

public street standards of subsection (G) of this section, when the criteria in both 

subsections (H)(1) and (2) of this section are satisfied: 

 

1. The modification is necessary to provide design flexibility in instances where: 

 

a. Unusual topographic conditions require a reduced width or grade separation 

of improved surfaces; or 

 

Finding: Not applicable. 

 

b. Lot shape or configuration precludes accessing a proposed development with 

a street which meets the full standards of this section; or  

 

Finding: The Applicant indicates the property at 704 N Elliott Road requires a 6-inch narrower 

street right-of-way from the 60-foot full width at the north corner of the existing multi-dwelling 

development to preserve the loss of an existing parking spaces and to minimize impact to the 

existing lot configuration according to subsection (H)(1)(b).The south portion of this lot does not 

have a right-of-way issue. Three parking spaces would be relocated as part of the roadway 

improvement to another relocation of the 704 N Elliott Road site as mitigation. 

 

Staff concurs with the applicant because of the effort to minimize the displacement of parking at 

on the north side of the access point into the development. 

 

c. A modification is necessary to preserve trees or other natural features 

determined by the City to be significant to the aesthetic character of the area; or 

 

Finding: The applicant indicates the properties at 807 N Elliott Road and 911 N Elliott Road 

requires modification of street right-of-way width because of the necessity to preserve existing 

trees and to minimize impact to the green features of the N Elliott Road corridor according to 

subsection (H)(1)(c). At 807 N Elliott Rod the narrowed right-of-way design would preserve two 

(2) existing palm trees which are unique to the neighborhood area. At 911 NE Elliott Road the 

narrowed right-of-way design preserves five (5) deciduous trees which is part of the 

neighborhood character. 

 

The property at 1007 N Elliott Road requires transition of the narrower street right-of-way to full 

width to the north as a result of preserving existing trees to the south according to subsection 

(H)(1)(c). 

35



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

 

Staff concurs with the applicant because narrowing the right-of-way design preserve trees and 

allows for transitions to occur from where the right-of-way is narrowed back to its full width 

required by NMC 15.505.030 G. 

 

d. A planned unit development is proposed and the modification of street 

standards is necessary to provide greater privacy or aesthetic quality to the 

development. 

 

Finding: Not applicable as the proposal is not part of a planned unit development . 

 

2. Modification of the standards of this section shall only be approved if the director 

finds that the specific design proposed provides adequate vehicular access based on 

anticipated traffic volumes. 

 

Finding: The narrowed right-of-way design at four (4) locations provides adequate vehicular 

access based on anticipated traffic volumes for N Elliott Road. The design includes travel lanes, 

bike lanes, and sidewalk to allow for multi-modal access along the transportation corridor.  

 

Type II Review Procedures of Chapter 15.220 

15.220.020 Site design review applicability. 

 

A. Applicability of Requirements. Site design review shall be required prior to issuance of 

building permits or commencement of work for all improvements noted below. Site design 

review permits shall be processed as either Type I or Type II, as noted below. 

 

2. Type II. 

 

a. Any new development or remodel which is not specifically identified within 

subsection (A)(1) of this section. 

 

b. Telecommunications facilities. 

 

Finding: The requested determination is not new development or remodel which is not 

specifically identified within subsection (A)(1) of this section and is not a telecommunications 

facility. These criteria do not apply. 

 

15.220.030 Site design review requirements. 

 

B. Type II. The following information is required to be submitted with all Type II 

applications for site design review: 

 

1. Site Development Plan. A site development plan shall be to scale and shall indicate 

the following as appropriate to the nature of the use: 

36



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

 

a. Access to site from adjacent right-of-way, streets and arterials; 

 

b. Parking and circulation areas; 

 

c. Location and design of buildings and signs; 

 

d. Orientation of windows and doors; 

 

e. Entrances and exits; 

 

f. Private and shared outdoor recreation spaces; 

 

g. Pedestrian circulation; 

 

h. Outdoor play areas; 

 

i. Service areas for uses such as mail delivery, trash disposal, above-ground 

utilities, loading and delivery; 

 

j. Areas to be landscaped; 

 

k. Exterior lighting; 

 

l. Special provisions for handicapped persons; 

 

m. Other site elements and spaces which will assist in the evaluation of site 

development; 

 

n. Proposed grading, slopes, and proposed drainage; 

 

o. Location and access to utilities including hydrant locations; and 

 

p. Streets, driveways, and sidewalks. 

 

2. Site Analysis Diagram. A site analysis diagram shall be to scale and shall indicate 

the following characteristics on the site and within 100 feet of the site: 

 

a. Relationship of adjacent lands; 

 

b. Location of species of trees greater than four inches in diameter at four feet 

above ground level; 

 

c. Existing and proposed topography; 

37



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

d. Natural drainage and proposed drainage and grading; 

 

e. Natural features and structures having a visual or other significant 

relationship with the site. 

3. Architectural Drawings. Architectural drawings shall be prepared which identify 

floor plans and elevations. 

 

4. Landscape Plan. The landscape plan shall indicate: 

 

a. The size, species and approximate locations of plant materials to be retained 

or placed on the site together with a statement which indicates the mature size 

and canopy shape of all plant materials; 

 

b. Proposed site contouring; and 

 

c. A calculation of the percentage of the site to be landscaped. 

 

5. Special Needs for Handicapped. Where appropriate, the design review plan shall 

indicate compliance with handicapped accessibility requirements including, but not 

limited to, the location of handicapped parking spaces, the location of accessible routes 

from the entrance to the public way, and ramps for wheelchairs. 

 

6. Existing Features and Natural Landscape. The plans shall indicate existing 

landscaping and existing grades. Existing trees or other features intended to be 

preserved or removed shall be indicated on the plans. 

 

7. Drives, Parking and Circulation. Proposed vehicular and pedestrian circulation, 

parking spaces, parking aisles, and the location and number of access points shall be 

indicated on the plans. Dimensions shall be provided on the plans for parking aisles, 

back-up areas, and other items as appropriate. 

 

8. Drainage. The direction and location of on- and off-site drainage shall be indicated 

on the plans. This shall include, but not be limited to, site drainage, parking lot 

drainage, size and location of storm drain lines, and any retention or detention 

facilities necessary for the project. 

 

9. Buffering and Screening. Buffering and screening of areas, structures and facilities 

for storage, machinery and equipment, services (mail, refuse, utility wires, and the 

like), loading and parking and similar accessory areas and structures shall be shown 

on the plans. 

 

10. Signs and Graphics. The location, colors, materials, and lighting of all exterior 

signs, graphics or other informational or directional features shall be shown on the 

plans. 

38



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

 

11. Exterior Lighting. Exterior lighting within the design review plan shall be indicated 

on the plans. The direction of the lighting, size and type of fixtures, and an indication 

of the amount of lighting shall be shown on the plans. 

 

12. Trash and Refuse Storage. All trash or refuse storage areas, along with appropriate 

screening, shall be indicated on the plans. Refuse storage areas must be constructed of 

brick, concrete block or other similar products as approved by the director. 

 

13. Roadways and Utilities. The proposed plans shall indicate any public improvements 

that will be constructed as part of the project, including, but not limited to, roadway 

and utility improvements. 

 

14. Traffic Study. A traffic study shall be submitted for any project that generates in 

excess of 40 trips per p.m. peak hour. This requirement may be waived by the director 

when a determination is made that a previous traffic study adequately addresses the 

proposal and/or when off-site and frontage improvements have already been completed 

which adequately mitigate any traffic impacts and/or the proposed use is not in a 

location which is adjacent to an intersection which is functioning at a poor level of 

service. A traffic study may be required by the director for projects below 40 trips per 

p.m. peak hour where the use is located immediately adjacent to an intersection 

functioning at a poor level of service. The traffic study shall be conducted according to 

the City of Newberg design standards. 

 

Finding: The submitted application is not a site design review per NMC 15.220.020A.2. and is 

not applicable. The application request is for a determination per NMC 15.505.030H.1.a.-d. and 

2 if a narrower right-of-way width can be utilized than required per NMC 15.505.030 G for a 

minor collector roadway. At 704 N Elliott Road 3 parking spaces will be relocated as litigation to 

another relocation on the site. At 807 N Elliott Road the reduced right-of-way width would 

maintain setbacks to the structure of 23-24 feet and to the garage of 24 feet which exceeds the 

requirements of NMC 15.410.020A1 and 15.410.020A. 

 

15.220.050 Criteria for design review (Type II process). 

 

B. Type II. The following criteria are required to be met in order to approve a Type II 

design review request: 

 

1. Design Compatibility. The proposed design review request incorporates an 

architectural design which is compatible with and/or superior to existing or proposed 

uses and structures in the surrounding area. This shall include, but not be limited to, 

building architecture, materials, colors, roof design, landscape design, and signage. 

 

Finding: The submitted application is not a site design review per NMC 15.220.020A.2. but is 

following the process referenced in NMC 15.505.030H. Design Compatibility is not applicable 

39



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

because the application is not a design review. Notification to property owners along the N 

Elliott Road corridor was provided to allow for public comment per NMC 15.100.140, 

15.100.210 and 15.100.220. 

 

2. Parking and On-Site Circulation. Parking areas shall meet the requirements of 

NMC 15.440.010. Parking studies may be required to determine if adequate parking 

and circulation are provided for uses not specifically identified in NMC 15.440.010. 

Provisions shall be made to provide efficient and adequate on-site circulation without 

using the public streets as part of the parking lot circulation pattern. Parking areas 

shall be designed so that vehicles can efficiently enter and exit the public streets with a 

minimum impact on the functioning of the public street. 

 

Finding: The submitted application is not a site design review per NMC 15.220.020A.2. but is 

following the process referenced in NMC 15.505.030H. Parking and On-Site Circulation is not 

applicable because the application is not a design review. Notification to property owners along 

the N Elliott Road corridor was provided to allow for public comment per NMC 15.100.140, 

15.100.210 and 15.100.220 on the design to reduce the right-of-way width at selected locations. 

 

3. Setbacks and General Requirements. The proposal shall comply with NMC 

15.415.010 through 15.415.060 dealing with height restrictions and public access; and 

NMC 15.405.010 through 15.405.040 and 15.410.010 through 15.410.070 dealing with 

setbacks, coverage, vision clearance, and yard requirements. 

 

Finding: The submitted application is not a site design review per NMC 15.220.020A.2. but is following 

the process referenced in NMC 15.505.030H. Setbacks and General Requirements is not applicable 

because the application is not a design review. Notification to property owners along the N Elliott 

Road corridor was provided to allow for public comment per NMC 15.100.140, 15.100.210 and 

15.100.220 on the design to reduce the right-of-way width at selected locations. 

 

4. Landscaping Requirements. The proposal shall comply with NMC 15.420.010 

dealing with landscape requirements and landscape screening. 

 

Finding: The submitted application is not a site design review per NMC 15.220.020A.2. but is following 

the process referenced in NMC 15.505.030H. Landscaping Requirements is not applicable because the 

application is not a design review. Notification to property owners along the N Elliott Road corridor 

was provided to allow for public comment per NMC 15.100.140, 15.100.210 and 15.100.220 on 

the design to reduce the right-of-way width at selected locations. 

 

5. Signs. Signs shall comply with NMC 15.435.010 et seq. dealing with signs. 

 

Finding: The submitted application is not a site design review per NMC 15.220.020A.2. but is following 

the process referenced in NMC 15.505.030H. Signs are not applicable because the application is not a 

design review. Notification to property owners along the N Elliott Road corridor was provided to 

allow for public comment per NMC 15.100.140, 15.100.210 and 15.100.220 on the design to 

40



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

reduce the right-of-way width at selected locations. 

 

6. Manufactured Dwelling, Mobile Home and RV Parks. Manufactured dwelling and 

mobile home parks shall also comply with the standards listed in NMC 15.445.075 

through 15.445.100 in addition to the other clear and objective criteria listed in this 

section. RV parks also shall comply with NMC 15.445.170 in addition to the other 

criteria listed in this section. 

 

Finding: The submitted application is not a site design review per NMC 15.220.020A.2. but is 

following the process referenced in NMC 15.505.030H. Manufactured Dwelling, Mobile Home 

and RV Parks are not applicable because the application is not a design review. Notification to 

property owners along the N Elliott Road corridor was provided to allow for public comment per 

NMC 15.100.140, 15.100.210 and 15.100.220 on the design to reduce the right-of-way width at 

selected locations. 

 

7. Zoning District Compliance. The proposed use shall be listed as a permitted or 

conditionally permitted use in the zoning district in which it is located as found in 

NMC 15.305.010 through 15.336.020. Through this site review process, the director 

may make a determination that a use is determined to be similar to those listed in the 

applicable zoning district, if it is not already specifically listed. In this case, the director 

shall make a finding that the use shall not have any different or more detrimental 

effects upon the adjoining neighborhood area than those specifically listed. 

 

Finding: The submitted application is not a site design review per NMC 15.220.020A.2. but is 

following the process referenced in NMC 15.505.030H. Transportation facilities and 

improvements are a permitted use per 15.305.010. The N Elliott Road transportation corridor is 

in the C-2 (Community Commercial), R-1 (Low Density Residential), R-2 (Medium Density 

Residential) and R-3 (High Density Residential) zones. 

 

8. Subdistrict Compliance. Properties located within subdistricts shall comply with the 

provisions of those subdistricts located in NMC 15.340.010 through 15.348.060. 

 

Finding: The submitted application is not a site design review per NMC 15.220.020A.2. but is 

following the process referenced in NMC 15.505.030H. The N Elliott Road transportation 

corridor is in the Airport Overlay (Airport Transition Surface and Airport Inner Horizontal 

Surface). The northern portion of N Elliott Road is in the Marijuana Exclusion area. 

 

9. Alternative Circulation, Roadway Frontage Improvements and Utility 

Improvements. Where applicable, new developments shall provide for access for 

vehicles and pedestrians to adjacent properties which are currently developed or will be 

developed in the future. This may be accomplished through the provision of local 

public streets or private access and utility easements. At the time of development of a 

parcel, provisions shall be made to develop the adjacent street frontage in accordance 

with city street standards and the standards contained in the transportation plan. At the 

41



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

discretion of the city, these improvements may be deferred through use of a deferred 

improvement agreement or other form of security. 

 

Finding: The submitted application is not a site design review per NMC 15.220.020A.2. but is 

following the process referenced in NMC 15.505.030H. No new developments are proposed by 

the application request. N Elliott Road does provide access to existing commercial and 

residential development along the transportation corridor. No development of a parcel is 

proposed. 

 

10. Traffic Study Improvements. If a traffic study is required, improvements identified 

in the traffic study shall be implemented as required by the director. 

 

Finding: The submitted application is not a site design review per NMC 15.220.020A.2. but is 

following the process referenced in NMC 15.505.030H. No traffic study was required or 

prepared for the design of improvements to N Elliott Road. 

 

CONCLUSION:  

The proposed determination request to narrow the right-of-way cross-section at four locations 

along the N Elliott Road corridor satisfies the approval and is approved. 

  

42



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Attachment 1:  Application Material 
 

 

 

  

43



Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • planning@newbergoregon.gov 

 

 

TYPE II APPLICATION – LAND USE 

 

File #:____________________________________ 
 
 
TYPES – PLEASE CHECK ONE: 
___ Design review  ___ Type II Major Modification  
___ Tentative Plan for Partition  ___ Variance _______________________________________ 
___ Tentative Plan for Subdivision ___ Other: (Explain) __________________________________ 
 

APPLICANT INFORMATION: 

 

APPLICANT:  

ADDRESS: 

EMAIL ADDRESS: 

PHONE:     MOBILE:     FAX: 

OWNER (if different from above):       PHONE: 

ADDRESS: 

ENGINEER/SURVEYOR:        PHONE: 

ADDRESS: 

GENERAL  INFORMATION: 

  

PROJECT NAME:      PROJECT LOCATION: 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/USE:___________________________________________ PROJECT VALUATION: __________________ 

MAP/TAX LOT NO. (i.e.3200AB-400):    ZONE:                SITE SIZE:      SQ. FT.     ACRE  

COMP PLAN DESIGNATION:    TOPOGRAPHY: 

CURRENT USE: 

SURROUNDING USES: 

NORTH:       SOUTH: 

EAST:       WEST: 

SPECIFIC PROJECT CRITERIA AND REQUIREMENTS ARE ATTACHED 

General Checklist:  ☐  Fees  ☐  Public Notice Information  ☐ Current Title Report  ☐  Written Criteria Response ☐  Owner Signature 

 
For detailed checklists, applicable criteria for the written criteria response, and number of copies per application type, turn to: 
 

Design Review ……………………………………………………………………………………………p. 12  
Partition Tentative Plat …………………………………………………………………….……………p. 14 
Subdivision Tentative Plat …………………………………………………………………….….…....p. 17  
Variance Checklist ……………………………………………………………………………………....p. 20 

 
The above statements and information herein contained are in all respects true, complete, and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief.  Tentative 
plans must substantially conform to all standards, regulations, and procedures officially adopted by the City of Newberg.  All owners must sign the 
application or submit letters of consent. Incomplete or missing information may delay the approval process. 
 
 
 
 
Applicant Signature  Date   Owner Signature   Date 
 
 
 
Print Name      Print Name 
 

 

Paul Chiu

10/20/21

ATTACHEMENT 1

44



  Page 6 

CITY OF NEWBERG TYPE II 
SAMPLE MAILED NOTICE 

 
 

  Community Development Department 
    P.O. Box 970 ▪ 414 E First Street ▪ Newberg, Oregon 97132     
    503-537-1240. Fax 503-537-1272   www.newbergoregon.gov 

  
 
 
 
 

 
      

 
   

 
 

 
 
 
APPLICANT:   
TELEPHONE:    
 

  
 

  
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WE WANT YOUR COMMENTS ON A PROPOSED NEW 
DEVELOPMENT IN YOUR NEIGHBORHOOD 

 
 

 
 

Paul Chiu (Elliott Road Project Manager)
(503) 554-1751

PROPERTY OWNER: City of Newberg (Elliott Road right-of-way)

LOCATION: Elliott Road from Hwy 99W to Newberg High School

TAX LOT NUMBER: Yamhill County TL 3217DB-06201, TL 3217DB-06200, TL 3217DB-06100, 
                                                          and TL 3217DD-02501 (Elliott Road residential)

1007
Elliott 911 Elliott

807 Elliott

704 Elliott

The Elliott Road project manager submitted an application to the City of Newberg for Type II Determination. See below for 
details. You are invited to take part in the City's review of this project by sending in your written comments. You also may 
request that the Planning Commission hold a hearing on the application. The applicable criteria used to make a decision on 
this application for preliminary subdivision plan approval are found in Newberg Development Code 15.235.050(A).
For more details about giving comments, please see the back of this sheet.

The development would include (briefly describe what the project number of lots, size of lots, new streets created, etc.)

45

baxters
Arrow

baxters
Arrow

baxters
Arrow

baxters
Arrow



  Page 7 

We are mailing you information about this project because you own land within 500 feet of the proposed new project.  We 

invite you to send any written comments for or against the proposal within 14 days from the date this notice is mailed. You also 

may request that the Newberg Planning Commission hold a hearing on the application by sending a written request during this 

14-day period and identifying the issues you would like the Planning Commission to address. 

 

If you mail your comments to the City, please put the following information on the outside of the envelope: 

 

Written Comments: File No.XX   

City of Newberg    

Community Development 

PO Box 970 

  Newberg, OR  97132 

 

   

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

All written comments must be turned in by 4:30 p.m. on enter date two weeks from date you mailed notice. Any issue which 
might be raised in an appeal of this case to the Land Use Board of Appeals (LUBA) must be submitted to the City in writing

before this date.  You must include enough detail to enable the decision maker an opportunity to respond.  The applicable 
criteria used to make a decision on this application for preliminary subdivision plan approval are found in Newberg 
Development Code 15.235.050(A).

You can look over all the information about this project or drop comments off at Newberg City Hall, 414 E. First Street.  You

can also buy copies of the information for a cost of 25 cents a page.  If you have any questions about the project, you can call 
the Newberg Planning Division at 503-537-1240.

The Community Development Director will make a decision at the end of a 14-day comment period.  If you send in written 
comments about this project, you will be sent information about any decision made by the City relating to this project. 

 

Date Mailed:  Date notice is mailed  

      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(City staff will give you the file number for your 

project at the time of application) 

46



Paul Chiu (Elliott Rd Prj Mgr)

Paul Chiu

N/A

47



 

 

Engineering Division  •  P.O. Box 970, Newberg, OR 97132 • engineering@newbergoregon.gov  •  (503) 537-1273 
 
 Newberg City Hall • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-538-9421 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: 10/20/21 
 
RE: Elliott Road Improvement Project 

WRITTEN STATEMENT FOR TYPE II DETERMINATION 
 
 
Given the following: 
 
• NMC Section 15.505 applies to this Elliott Road Improvement Project, a capital improvement project. 
• NMC 15.505.030(G) Street Width & Design Standards for Major Collector is 36’ curb-to-curb (2-12’ travel 

lanes, 2-6’ bike lanes), 2-5’ planter strips, 2-5’ sidewalks → Total 56’ of physical improvements.  Typical 
sections show an additional 0.5’ behind sidewalk to ROW.  This gives a minimum ROW width of 57’ as noted 
in NMC, or 28.5’ ½ Street width. 

• The Elliott Road Improvement Project is minimizing Right-of-way acquisition along the corridor resulting in 
four (4) parcels acquiring less than the minimum per NMC.  
o File 7 – 807 Elliott Road: Varies from 25.5’ to 23.5’ of Right-of-way with an additional 3’ of Public 

Utility Easement. 
o File 9 – 911 Elliott Road: 23’ of ROW with an additional 3’ of Public Utility Easement. 
o File 10 – 1007 Elliott Road: 25’ of ROW with an additional 3’ of Public Utility Easement. 
o File 22 – 704 Elliott Road: Varies from 25’ to 29’ of Right-of-way with an additional 4.5’ of Public 

Utility Easement.  
• NMC 15.505.030(H): Modification of Street Right-of-Way Width requires a Type II application to the Planning 

Director. 
o a. Unusual topographic conditions require a reduced width or grade separation of improved 

surfaces; or 
o b. Lot shape or configuration precludes accessing a proposed development with a street which 

meets the full standards of this section; or 
o c. A modification is necessary to preserve trees or other natural features determined by the City to 

be significant to the aesthetic character of the area; or 
o d. A planned unit development is proposed and the modification of street standards is necessary to 

provide greater privacy or aesthetic quality to the development. 
 
Reasons for Request for Variance: 
 
• Federal Relocation Act: Right-of-way acquisition for this project must follow the Federal Uniform Relocation 

Act, codified by ORS 35.235.  
o ORS35.235 Agreement for compensation; status of resolution or ordinance of public condemner; 

status of action of private condemner; agreement effort not prerequisite.  
▪ (1) Subject to ORS 758.015 and 836.050, whenever in the judgment of the condemner it is 

necessary to acquire property for a purpose for which the condemner is authorized by law to 
acquire property, the condemner shall, after first declaring by resolution or ordinance such 
necessity and the purpose for which it is required, attempt to agree with the owner with respect 
to the compensation to be paid therefor, and the damages, if any, for the taking thereof. 

▪ (2) The resolution or ordinance of a public condemner is presumptive evidence of the public 
necessity of the proposed use, that the property is necessary therefor and that the proposed 
use, that is the improvements or the project, is planned or located in a manner which will be 
most compatible with the greatest public good and the least private injury. 

• If any of these properties were to redevelop in the future, the City would condition them to dedicate the 
ultimate ½ street ROW. 

48



D'HONDT DANIEL L

807 N ELLIOTT RD

R3217DB 06201

2
5
'

2
5
'

ELLIOTT ROAD

N
O

R
W

O
O

D

C
O

U
R
T

1
5
'

3
0
'

9
+

0
0

FILM VOLUME 250,

PAGE 1282

S01°50'25"W 2284.84'

9+44.00,

26.50 LT.

8+99.55, 26.50 LT.

8+49.55, 2
8.50 LT.

7+99.00, 2
8.50 LT.

9+44.00,

23.50 LT.

8+99.49,

23.50 LT.

8+49.49,

25.50 LT.

7+99.00,

25.50 LT.

8
+

0
0

30+00

7+98.33

B

R

E

N

T

W

O

O

D

A

D

D

I

T

I

O

N

9

10

ELLIOTT ROAD

N. HWY.99 W. TO NEWBERG HIGH SCHOOL

15013190 SW 68th Parkway, Suite

23Tigard, Oregon 972

om503.968.6655  www.cesnw.c

1. RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION

1,285 SQ. FT.  MORE OR LESS

FILE NUMBER: 07

TAX LOT:  06201

TAX MAP:  3 2 17DB

ADDRESS:

SUBMITTAL DATE:  9/03/2020

REVISED DATE:     9/10/2020

REVISED DATE:

807 ELLIOTT ROAD

2. PERMANENT UTILITY EASEMENT

404 SQ. FT.  MORE OR LESS

01530 30

EXHIBIT A-1

49

chiup
Highlight



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

File 7_807 Elliott Road 
Proposed grading 

 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT A-2

50



AVOLIO GERALD &

AVOLIO JANET

911 N ELLIOTT RD

R3217DB 06200

1
5
'

25'
25'

R
E
D

W
O

O
D

C
O

U
R
T

3
0
'

1
1
+

0
0

1
2
+

0
0

40+00

INSTRUMENT NUMBER

2015-14831

I
N

S
T
R
U

M
E
N

T
 
N

U
M

B
E
R

2
0
0
7
-
2
4
5
8
8

11+60.36

10+45.00,

23.00 LT.

B

R

E

N

T

W

O

O

D

A

D

D

I

T

I

O

N

9

8

4

ELLIOTT ROAD

S01°50'25"W 2284.84'

12+06.00,

23.00 LT.

10+45.00,

26.00 LT.

12+06.00,

23.00 LT.

ELLIOTT ROAD

N. HWY.99 W. TO NEWBERG HIGH SCHOOL

15013190 SW 68th Parkway, Suite

23Tigard, Oregon 972

om503.968.6655  www.cesnw.c

1. RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION

1,027 SQ. FT.  MORE OR LESS

FILE NUMBER: 09

TAX LOT:  06200

TAX MAP:  3 2 17DB

ADDRESS:

SUBMITTAL DATE:  09/10/2020

REVISED DATE:

REVISED DATE:

911 N ELLIOTT ROAD

2. PERMANENT UTILITY EASEMENT

453 SQ. FT.  MORE OR LESS

01530 30

EXHIBIT B-1

51

chiup
Highlight



File 9_911 Elliott Road 
Proposed grading 

 

 
 

                                                                        
 

EXHIBIT B-2

52



EXHIBIT C-1

53

chiup
Rectangle

chiup
Highlight



 
 
 

File 10_1007 Elliott Road 
Proposed grading 

 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT C-2

54



CEDAR TERRACE LLC

704 N ELLIOTT RD 9-12

R3217DD 02501

ELLIOTT ROAD

3
0
'

1
5
'

4
+

0
0

5
+

0
0

S01°50'25"W 2284.84'

P
0
6
-
2
0

2

3+08.00,

33.87 RT.

3+08.00,

29.35 RT.

3+30.91,

31.71 RT.

4+20.42,

29.50 RT.

5+28.00,

29.50 RT.

3+30.64,

27.21 RT.

4+20.36,

25.00 RT.

5+28.00,

25.00 RT.

ELLIOTT ROAD

N. HWY.99 W. TO NEWBERG HIGH SCHOOL

15013190 SW 68th Parkway, Suite

23Tigard, Oregon 972

om503.968.6655  www.cesnw.c

1. RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION

2,258 SQ. FT.  MORE OR LESS

FILE NUMBER: 22

TAX LOT:  02501

TAX MAP:  3 2 17DD

ADDRESS:

SUBMITTAL DATE:  09/10/2020

REVISED DATE:

REVISED DATE:

704 N ELLIOTT ROAD

2. PERMANENT UTILITY EASEMENT

947 SQ. FT.  MORE OR LESS

01530 30

EXHIBIT D-1

55

chiup
Highlight



File 22_704 Elliott Road 
Proposed grading 

 
 
 

 
 

                                           

EXHIBIT D-2

56



MapTaxlot SITUS1 SITUSCITY SITUSZIP OWNER1 OWNER2 MAILADD1 MAILCITY MAILSTATE MAILZIP

R3217DA 00802 1204 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 SIMPSON ROBERT J SIMPSON SHARON L 1204 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DD 03600 808 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 REAB AMANDA REAB BENJAMIN 808 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DC 00300 707 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 BLACK GARRY L  707 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DB 06114 901 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 HARRIMAN WILLIAM E  901 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DD 03400 908 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 MITCHELL BRIAN A  1203 SITKA AVE NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DA 00400 2500 HAWTHORNE DR NEWBERG 97132 J & R EQUITIES  478 17TH ST SANTA MONICA CA 90402

R3217DA 00700 1210 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 SOLORZANO ANTONIO S  1210 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DB 01600 1205 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 VAN BERGEN JEFFREY VAN BERGEN CONTONA S 1205 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DD 02501 704 N ELLIOTT RD 9-12 NEWBERG 97132 CEDAR TERRACE LLC  13489 NW TREVINO ST PORTLAND OR 97229

R3217DA 00803 1202 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 BYNON DEVIN R & BYNON REGINA M 1202 ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DC 00200 713 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 GONZALEZ ANITA  713 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DD 02602 710 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 LUCKY DOG PROPERTIES LLC  5250 ROGUE RIVER HWY GRANTS PASS OR 97527

R3217DB 06002 1013 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 KOCH MICHAEL  19490 S FERGUSON TERRACE OREGON CITY OR 97045

R3217DA 00900 2505 HAWORTH AVE NEWBERG 97132 CHURCH OF CHRIST  2503 HAWORTH AVE NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DA 00300 1300 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 J & R EQUITIES  478 17TH ST SANTA MONICA CA 90402

R3217DB 01500 1207 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 SPENCER THOMAS K SPENCER WANDA C 1207 ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DA 00801 1206 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 WOOLEN NORMAN A WOOLEN STEFFANIE 1705 GEMINI LN NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DB 06201 807 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 D'HONDT DANIEL L  807 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DC 00500 609 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 CFT NV DEVELOPMENTS LLC  1683 WALNUT GROVE AVE ROSEMEAD CA 91770

R3217DD 02900 2500 HAWORTH AVE NEWBERG 97132 BROWN TYLER PAUL KASIE 2500 HAWORTH AVE NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DB 06001 1007 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 PARKS JON H PARKS GRACE L 20032 SORRENTO PL BEND OR 97702

R3217DC 00402 613 N ELLIOTT RD UNIT 101 NEWBERG 97132 KCK PARTNERS LLC  11483 SE AMITY-DAYTON HWY DAYTON OR 97114

R3217DB 05908 2409 HAWORTH AVE NEWBERG 97132 BROWN MARCIA S TRUSTEE BROWN MARCIA TRUST 2409 HAWORTH AVE NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DD 04000 2500 NORWOOD CT NEWBERG 97132 RINGSETH JAMES A RINGSETH KATIE L 2500 NORWOOD CT NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DB 01700 1203 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 MULCAHY SHAUN P MULCAHY KARRIE M 1203 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DD 03000 1004 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 ANDERSON NICHOLAS ANDERSON STACY 1004 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DB 03900 2408 WILLOW DR NEWBERG 97132 WOOLDRIDGE ELMER & BRENDA L  2408 WILLOW DR NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DD 02502 2501 NE PORTLAND RD B NEWBERG 97132 VEATCH ROGER A & CAROL E TRUSTEES FOR VEATCH FAMILY TRUST 18450 NE HILLSIDE DR NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DC 00303 621 N ELLIOTT RD E NEWBERG 97132 ELLIOTT ESTATES LLC  17370 SW 108TH PL TUALATIN OR 97062

R3217DC 00400 615 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 ELLIOTT ESTATES LLC  17370 SW 108TH PL TUALATIN OR 97062

R3217DB 06200 911 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 AVOLIO GERALD & AVOLIO JANET 911 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DD 03500 900 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 CHILD KATHLEEN  PO BOX 396 NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DD 02600 720 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 SHUCKEROW PATRICK C SHUCKEROW KATHERINE M PO BOX 253 NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DD 02601 714 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 THOMPSON EMILY  710 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DC 00301 629 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 ELLIOTT ESTATES LLC  17370 SW 108TH PL TUALATIN OR 97062

R3217DB 01800 2409 WILLOW DR NEWBERG 97132 REDWINE GARY D & REDWINE CHERI 2409 WILLOW DR NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DB 01400 1209 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 KWIESELEWICZ NATHALIE  1209 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DC 00100 803 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 CROCKETT WESLEY CROCKETT BRANDY 803 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DB 00100 2409 HAWTHORNE DR NEWBERG 97132 MARSHALL THOMAS L & TERESA  2409 HAWTHORNE DR NEWBERG OR 97132

ELLIOTT ROAD - TYPE II NOTIFICATION LIST

57



R3217DA 00802 

SIMPSON ROBERT J 

1204 N ELLIOTT RD 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DD 03600 

REAB AMANDA 

808 N ELLIOTT RD 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DC 00300 

BLACK GARRY L 

707 N ELLIOTT RD 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

R3217DB 06114 

HARRIMAN WILLIAM E 

901 N ELLIOTT RD 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DD 03400 

MITCHELL BRIAN A 

1203 SITKA AVE 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DA 00400 

J & R EQUITIES 

478 17TH ST 

SANTA MONICA, CA 90402 
 

R3217DA 00700 

SOLORZANO ANTONIO S 

1210 N ELLIOTT RD 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DB 01600 

VAN BERGEN JEFFREY 

1205 N ELLIOTT RD 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DD 02501 

CEDAR TERRACE LLC 

13489 NW TREVINO ST 

PORTLAND, OR 97229 
 

R3217DA 00803 

BYNON DEVIN R & 

1202 ELLIOTT RD 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DC 00200 

GONZALEZ ANITA 

713 N ELLIOTT RD 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DD 02602 

LUCKY DOG PROPERTIES LLC 

5250 ROGUE RIVER HWY 

GRANTS PASS, OR 97527 
 

R3217DB 06002 

KOCH MICHAEL 

19490 S FERGUSON TERRACE 

OREGON CITY, OR 97045 
 

 
R3217DA 00900 

CHURCH OF CHRIST 

2503 HAWORTH AVE 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DA 00300 

J & R EQUITIES 

478 17TH ST 

SANTA MONICA, CA 90402 
 

R3217DB 01500 

SPENCER THOMAS K 

1207 ELLIOTT RD 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DA 00801 

WOOLEN NORMAN A 

1705 GEMINI LN 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DB 06201 

D'HONDT DANIEL L 

807 N ELLIOTT RD 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

R3217DC 00500 

CFT NV DEVELOPMENTS LLC 

1683 WALNUT GROVE AVE 

ROSEMEAD, CA 91770 
 

 
R3217DD 02900 

BROWN TYLER 

2500 HAWORTH AVE 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DB 06001 

PARKS JON H 

20032 SORRENTO PL 

BEND, OR 97702 
 

R3217DC 00402 

KCK PARTNERS LLC 

11483 SE AMITY-DAYTON HWY 

DAYTON, OR 97114 
 

 
R3217DB 05908 

BROWN MARCIA S TRUSTEE 

2409 HAWORTH AVE 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DD 04000 

RINGSETH JAMES A 

2500 NORWOOD CT 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

R3217DB 01700 

MULCAHY SHAUN P 

1203 N ELLIOTT RD 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DD 03000 

ANDERSON NICHOLAS 

1004 N ELLIOTT RD 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DB 03900 

WOOLDRIDGE ELMER & BRENDA L 

2408 WILLOW DR 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

R3217DD 02502 

VEATCH ROGER A & CAROL E 

18450 NE HILLSIDE DR 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DC 00303 

ELLIOTT ESTATES LLC 

17370 SW 108TH PL 

TUALATIN, OR 97062 
 

 
R3217DC 00400 

ELLIOTT ESTATES LLC 

17370 SW 108TH PL 

TUALATIN, OR 97062 
 

58



R3217DB 06200 

AVOLIO GERALD & 

911 N ELLIOTT RD 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DD 03500 

CHILD KATHLEEN 

PO BOX 396 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DD 02600 

SHUCKEROW PATRICK C 

PO BOX 253 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

R3217DD 02601 

THOMPSON EMILY 

710 N ELLIOTT RD 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DC 00301 

ELLIOTT ESTATES LLC 

17370 SW 108TH PL 

TUALATIN, OR 97062 
 

 
R3217DB 01800 

REDWINE GARY D & 

2409 WILLOW DR 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

R3217DB 01400 

KWIESELEWICZ NATHALIE 

1209 N ELLIOTT RD 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DC 00100 

CROCKETT WESLEY 

803 N ELLIOTT RD 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DB 00100 

MARSHALL THOMAS L & TERESA 

2409 HAWTHORNE DR 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
      

     

     

     

     

     

     

59



 

 

Engineering Division  •  P.O. Box 970, Newberg, OR 97132 • engineering@newbergoregon.gov  •  (503) 537-1273 
 
 Newberg City Hall • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-538-9421 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
November 8, 2021 
 
Doug Rux 
Community Development 
City of Newberg 
PO Box 970 
Newberg, OR 97132 
 
Re: MISC221-0002 – Elliott Road 
 
 
 
Dear Mr. Rux: 
 
This letter is a response to your notice dated November 2, 2021, in particular the narrative response for 
Newberg Municipal Code 15.505.030(H): 
 
Properties 807 N Elliott Road and 911 N Elliott Road requires modification of street right-of-way width 
because of the necessity to preserve existing trees and to minimize impact to the green features of the Elliott 
Road corridor according to subsection (H)(1)(c). 
 
Property 1007 N Elliott Road requires transition of the narrower street right-of-way to full width to the north 
as a result of preserving existing trees to the south according to subsection (H)(1)(c). 
 
Please refer to Exhibits E-1, E-2 and E3 for the reasons due to the tree impact. 
 
Property 704 N Elliott Road requires a 6-inch narrower street right-of-way from the 60-foot full width at the 
north corner of the existing multi-dwelling development to preserve the loss of an existing parking space 
and to minimize impact to the existing lot configuration according to subsection (H)(1)(b).The south portion 
of this lot does not have a right-of-way issue. 
 
 
Please also note that the City Council authorized Resolution No. 2020-3681 on June 15, 2020 that they 
selected “The Buffered Bike Lane” design as the preferred alternative. This alternative specifically directed 
project staff to proceed with the narrower right-of-way design in some areas of the Elliott Road corridor. 
 
With this additional information, please review this Type II application. Please also advise me when to mail 
the Neighborhood Notice. If you have any further questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Paul Chiu, PE 
Project Manager 
 
Attachments as noted above  

60



 

 

Engineering Division  •  P.O. Box 970, Newberg, OR 97132 • engineering@newbergoregon.gov  •  (503) 537-1273 
 
 Newberg City Hall • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-538-9421 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date of Response to CDD Notice (via email): 11/8/2021 
 
RE:  807 N Elliott 
 Tree Survey (8-21-19) 
 
 
 

 

807 
N Elliott 

 

 

EXHIBIT E-1

61

chiup
Highlight



 

 

Engineering Division  •  P.O. Box 970, Newberg, OR 97132 • engineering@newbergoregon.gov  •  (503) 537-1273 
 
 Newberg City Hall • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-538-9421 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date of Response to CDD Notice (via email): 11/8/2021 
 
RE:  911 N Elliott 
 Tree Survey (8-21-19) 
 
 
 

 

911 N Elliott 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT E-2

62



 

 

Engineering Division  •  P.O. Box 970, Newberg, OR 97132 • engineering@newbergoregon.gov  •  (503) 537-1273 
 
 Newberg City Hall • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-538-9421 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date of Response to CDD Notice (via email): 11/8/2021 
 
RE:  1007 N Elliott 
 Neighboring Tree Survey (8-21-19) 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1007 N Elliott 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT E-3

63



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Attachment 2: Public Comments 

 

64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Attachment 1:  Appeal Application 

 

 

  

78



i
t j

i

APPEAL APPLICATION 2021
FILE #

TYPE - PLEASE CHECK ONE:

I I Appeal of a Type I Decision {i.e. Design Review for a Duplex, Sign, or Single Family Residence)
HH Appeal of a Type II Decision (i.e. Variance, or Design Review, Subdivision)
I I Appeal of a Type III Decision (i.e. Conditional Use Permit)
I I Appeal of Peddler, Solicitor, or Temporary Merchant
I I Other (explain):

APPLICANT INFORMATION:

- Appellant and Property owner is Dan DhondtPaul ChiuAPPLICANT:

ADDRESS: Appellant’s Address is 807 N Elliot Rd

PHONE: 503-266-5590 MOBILE: FAX:

PHONECO-APPLICANT (if applicable):

ADDRESS:

GENERAL INFORMATION:

N Elliot RoadPROJECT NAME:
MISC221-0002FILE NUMBER OF PROJECT BEING APPEALED:

PROJECT LOCATION: N Elliot Rd

Redidential/StreetPROJECT DESCRIPTION / USE:

BRIEFLY DESCRIBE THE REASON FOR YOUR APPEAL:
This determination is a Type ti application. See decision Section I (C). Type It apoplications for development permits require all of the materials required by the Newberg Code 15.100.090.

NMC 15.100.090 requires proof that the property affected is in the exclusive ownership of the applicant, or the applicany has
the consent of all owners. NMC 15.100.090. The City has not provided proof that it owns Mr. Dhondt’s property at 807 N Elliot Rd.
The City does not have the consent of Mr. Dhondt. Therefor the application does not contain proof that satisfies NMC 15.100.090(B).
That is a violation of NMC and of the case law in Johnston v. City of Albany, 34 OR LUBA 32 (1998)

SPECIFIC APPEAL REQUIREMENTS ARE ATTACHED

[^Written Response Supporting Appeal.Notice InformationFeesGeneral Checklist:

THE ABOVE STATEMENTS AND INFORMATION HEREIN CONTAINED ARE IN ALL RESPECTS TRUE, COMPLETE, AND
CORRECT TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF. I AFFIRM THAT I WAS PARTY TO THE INITIAL
PROCEEDINGS.

•MApplicant Signature Date

Pri/ft NamePrint Name

I

'

7

3JL
ir Signature UUk<̂

J

ATTACHMENT 1

79



Community Development

January 14, 2022

Mr. Paul Chiu
City of Newberg
414 E First Street
Newberg, OTR 97132

Parties Providing Comments: Gerry Avoilo, Miguel Gonzales, Brandy Crockett, James Talt,
Tyler Smith

Dear Mr. Chiu,

The Newberg Community Development Director has provided a determination based on your
application MISC221-0002 Elliott Road Improvement Project. The decision will become
effective on January 28, 2022, unless an appeal is filed.

You may appeal this decision to the Newberg Planning Commission within 14 calendar days of
this decision in accordance with Newberg Development Code 15.100.170. All appeals must be in
writing on a form provided by the Planning Division. Anyone wishing to appeal must submit the
written appeal form together with the required fee of $550.20 to the Planning Division within 14
days of the date of this decision.

The deadline for filing an appeal is 4:30 pm on January 27, 2022

If you have any questions, please contact me at doug.rux@newbergoregon,gov or 503-537-1212.
Sincerely,

Doug Rux, AICP
Community Development Director

Attachment

Newberg Community Development •414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 » 503-537-1240 * www.newbergoregon.gov

:

;
;
i

:
:> i

80



Tyler Smith

Tyler Smith
Wednesday, December 1, 2021 9:55 AM
Paul Chiu;Doug Rux
Tyler Smith;Dan Dhondt
Comments,objections and legal arguments about File No. MISC221-0002

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

; Subject:

;
(Via US Mail and e-mail)
City of Newberg
Community Development
PO Box 970
Newberg Oregon 97132

otf.

File No. MISC221-0002 (Elliot Road Variance Request)

Dear Community Development Director,Newberg City Council and Staff:

Iwrite to you today to note a few legal reasons why your proposed Application must be denied. As you are

aware our law firm represents Mr.Daniel Dhondt and Cedar Terrace,LLC in relation to their property rights.

1) Newberg Municipal Code requires the Owner of the real property in question to approve of the
application or be the applicant. Rajiv Jain and Cedar Terrace,LLC as well as Dan Dhondt;own 704 N

Elliot Rd, and 807 N Elliot Rd respectively. They are not the applicant, nor do they approve of land use
actions covering their property.

2) Your application does not meet any of the criteria of NMC 15.505.030(h)

There are other options,such as downgrading the street category of Elliot Rd.,delayingthis action,and
reducing the impacts and condemnations of the owners' property that are preferred. While we appreciate

this attempt to minimize the taking of private property for public use,nonetheless we oppose your attempts

to condemn and take my client's private property for your preferred use and plan.My clients and other

interested community members have suggested alternatives, and alternate plans.

This application was just discovered by my clients so this is a rushed response. However points1and 2 above

are elaborated as follows:

1) Newberg Municipal Code 15.100.090 (b) bars this application from being approved.
NMC15.100.090 requires that land use application provide PROOF that the property affected by the
application is in the exclusive ownership of the applicant, or otherwise have the consent of all owners of

the property.
a. Newberg does not have the consent of my clients Daniel Dhondt,nor Rajiv Jain who is the

managing member of Cedar Terrace LLC. The property that they own as fee simple title owners is

included as a part of your application. See Exhibit A-lof your application packet shows the
portion owned by Mr. Dhondt, and See Exhibit D-lof your application,which shows the portion

owned by Cedar Terrace LLC. Thus Mr. Chiu (the Applicant) nor the City of Newberg is the
l

i

i

‘

!
i
!

\

:
!

i
!

i

?

i:

j

81



"exclusive owner" of the property,nor does the Applicant have the consent of these two
owners. The application must therefore be denied under the NMC. Oregon law is clear on this
point. Where a local code provision requires the consent of all property owners affected by a land
use application, a present owner must sign the application.Johnston v. City of Albany, 34 Or LUBA
32 (1998).

b. Furthermore, the application page itself, shows that no-owner has signed the application. Mr.
Chiu apparently signed for the applicant on October 20,2021but he is neither the owner nor the
owner's agent.

2} NewbergMunicipal Code 15.505.030(h) is not met here.
NMC 15.505,030 is cited as the basis for this variance.Modification of Street Right-of-Way and
Improvement Width. The director,pursuant to the Type II review procedures of Chapter 15.220 NMC,
may allow modification to the public street standards of subsection (G) of this section,when the criteria
in both subsections (H)(1) and (2) of this section are satisfied:

" The modification is necessary to provide design flexibility in instances where:
a. Unusual topographic conditions require a reduced width or grade separation of improved surfaces;

or
b. Lot shape or configuration precludes accessing a proposed development with a street which meets

the full standards of this section;or
c. A modification is necessary to preserve trees or other natural features determined by the city to be
significant to the aesthetic character of the area;or
d. A planned unit development is proposed and the modification of street standards is necessary to
provide greater privacy or aesthetic quality to the development."

Each of those four possible alternatives is not met
(a) Here, there is no unusual topographic condition,the City is simply proposing to wideningthe

street against the wishes of these owners.Proposingto enter onto these owners lots,take their
property for public use and establish wider easements and rights of way over Cedar Terrace.

(b) The lot shape and configuration is not affective access at all since the access will exist either
way and these properties are already street frontage properties.

(c) There have not yet been any findings nor assertions about which trees are being determined
to be significant,but the opponents agree there are some important and significant trees that should
not be disturbed by the proposed plan.

(d) No planned unit development is proposed.
CONCLUSION

This application cannot be approved because the owners of at least some of the the property in question
are not the applicant,and have not consented to this application. This violates the NMC and Oregon law.

Tyler Smith|Owner and Founding Attorney
Tyler Smith & Associates P.C.
503-266-5590 (work) | 503-266-5594 (work)
503-212-6392 (fax)

2

1

:

I:

82



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Attachment 2: Graphic Illustrating the Design Modification 

 

  

83



X

X

X

X X X X X X X

X
X

X

X
X

XXX

X
X

X X X

X
X

X

X
X

X

X X X

X

X

XXXX

X
X

X

X

XXXXXXX

X
X

X

X X X X

X

X

X X X

X

X

X

X

XXXX

X
X

X X

X

X

X X

X

X
X

X

XXX

X

X
X

X

X

X

X

I V

IVIV IV
IV

IV

IV

IV

IVIV

IV

IV

IV

X X X

5+00 6+00 7+00 8+00
9+00 10+00 11+00 12+00

13+00 14+00

X X X

Elliott Rd

H
a
w

o
th

 A
ve

R
e
d
w

o
o
d
 C

t

E
 N

o
rw

o
o
d
 C

t

H
a
w

o
th

 A
v
e

1013 Elliott Rd1007 Elliott Rd

911 Elliott Rd

901 Elliott Rd807 Elliott Rd803 Elliott Rd

713 Elliott Rd

707 Elliott Rd

6
2
5
 E

llio
tt R

d

704 Elliott Rd

712 Elliott Rd

714 Elliott Rd

720 Elliott Rd

2500

E Norwood Ct

2504
E Norwood Ct

2508

E Norwood Ct

2505
E Norwood Ct

808

Elliott Rd

900
Elliott Rd

908
Elliott Rd

2504
Redwood Ct

2508
Redwood Ct

2505
Redwood Ct

1004
Elliott Rd

2500
Haworth Ave

2504

Haworth Ave

2409
Haworth Dr

ATTACHMENT 2

84



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

 

Attachment 3:  January 14, 2022, Community Development Director Decision 

 

 

  

85



                                      

Community Development 
 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

January 14, 2022 

 

Mr. Paul Chiu 

City of Newberg 

414 E First Street 

Newberg, OTR 97132 

 

Parties Providing Comments: Gerry Avoilo, Miguel Gonzales, Brandy Crockett, James Talt, 

Tyler Smith 

 

Dear Mr. Chiu, 

 

The Newberg Community Development Director has provided a determination based on your 

application MISC221-0002 Elliott Road Improvement Project. The decision will become 

effective on January 28, 2022, unless an appeal is filed.  

 

You may appeal this decision to the Newberg Planning Commission within 14 calendar days of 

this decision in accordance with Newberg Development Code 15.100.170. All appeals must be in 

writing on a form provided by the Planning Division. Anyone wishing to appeal must submit the 

written appeal form together with the required fee of $550.20 to the Planning Division within 14 

days of the date of this decision. 

 

The deadline for filing an appeal is 4:30 pm on January 27, 2022 

 

If you have any questions, please contact me at doug.rux@newbergoregon,gov or 503-537-1212.  

Sincerely, 

 

 
 

Doug Rux, AICP 

Community Development Director 

 

 

Attachment 

ATTACHMENT 3

86

mailto:doug.rux@newbergoregon,gov


                                      

Community Development 
 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

 

STAFF REPORT 

Determination – N Elliott Road – MISC221-0002 

 

FILE NO:   MISC221-0002 

 

REQUEST: Reduce the right-of-way width design for four properties for 

improvements to N Elliott Road 

 

LOCATION:  N Elliott Road (Highway 99W to Newberg High School) 

 

TAX LOT(S): The lots impacted by a reduced ROW width include R3217DB 06201, 

R3217DB 06200, R3217DB 06001, R3217DD 02501 

 

APPLICANT:  Paul Chiu, City of Newberg 

 

OWNER: N/A 

 

ZONE: Low Density Residential District (R-1), High Density Residential (R-3) 

 

PLAN DISTRICT: LDR (Low Density Residential), HDR (High Density Residential) 

 

CONTENTS 

 

Section I: Application Information 

Section II: Exhibit A Findings 

 

Attachments: 

1. Application 

2. Public Comments 

 

  

87



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Section I:  Application Information 
 

A. DESCRIPTION OF APPLICATION: 

 

The development would include right of way improvements for the N Elliott Road 

corridor from Highway 99W to Newberg High School. Proposed improvements include 

pavement, curb and gutter, sidewalk, ADA ramps, bicycle lanes, storm drainage, 

wastewater pipeline, water main, street lighting, conversion from aerial to underground 

power lines, traffic calming and roadway safety features, and landscape enhancement. 

Along the length of the roadway improvement the roadway would be narrowed below the 

28.5’ for a ½ street width improvement in front of four (4) parcels.  

 

NMC 15.505.030(G) Street Width & Design Standards for Major Collector is 36’ curb-

to-curb (2-12’ travel lanes, 2-6’ bike lanes), 2-5’ planter strips, 2-5’ sidewalks → Total 

56’ of physical improvements. Typical sections show an additional 0.5’ behind sidewalk 

to ROW. This gives a minimum ROW width of 57’ as noted in NMC, or 28.5’ for a ½ 

Street width. 

 

The Elliott Road Improvement Project is minimizing Right-of-way acquisition along the 

corridor resulting in four (4) parcels requiring less than the minimum right-of-way per 

NMC. 

 

➢ File 7 – 807 N Elliott Road: Varies from 25.5’ to 23.5’ of Right-of-way with an 

additional 3’ of Public Utility Easement. 

 

➢ File 9 – 911 N Elliott Road: 23’ of ROW with an additional 3’ of Public Utility 

Easement. 

 

➢ File 10 – 1007 N Elliott Road: 25’ of ROW with an additional 3’ of Public Utility 

Easement. 

 

➢ File 22 – 704 N Elliott Road: Varies from 25’ to 29’ of Right-of-way with an 

additional 4.5’ of Public Utility Easement. 

 

B. SITE INFORMATION: 

 
1. Location: N Elliott Road corridor from Highway 99W north to Newberg High School 

 

2. Size: Not applicable 

3. Topography: Flat 

4. Current Land Uses:  

807 N Elliott Road – Single Family Residence 

88



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

911 N Elliott Road – Single Family Residence 

1007 N Elliott Road – Multi-family Residential 

704 N Elliott Road – Single Family Residence 

5. Natural Features: There are trees, shrubs, and grass yard along the N Elliott Road 

corridor. 

 
6. Adjacent Land Uses: 

 

807 N Elliott Road 

a. North:  Single-family Residential 

b. East: Single-family Residential 

c. South: Single-family Residential 

d. West: Single-family Residential 

 

911 N Elliott Road 

 

a. North:  Multi-family Residential and Single-family Residential 

b. East: Single-family Residential 

c. South: Single-family Residential 

d. West: Single-family Residential 

 

1007 Elliott Road 

 

a. North: Multi-family Residential 

b. East: Single-family Residential 

c. South: Single-family Residential 

d. West: Single-family Residential 

 

704 N Elliott Road 

 

a. North:  Single- family Residential 

b. East: Commercial 

c. South: Commercial 

d. West: Commercial, Multi-family and Single- family Residential 

 

89



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

7. Zoning: The following zoning districts are adjacent the subject properties for the 

right-of-way reduction width. 

807 N Elliott Road 

a. North: R-1 

b. East: R-1  

c. South: R-1 

d. West: R-1 

 

911 N Elliott Road 

 

a. North: R-1 

b. East: R-1  

c. South: R-1 

d. West: R-1 

 

1007 Elliott Road 

 

a. North: R-1 

b. East: R-1  

c. South: R-1 

d. West: R-1 

 

704 N Elliott Road 

 

a. North: R-2 

b. East: C-2  

c. South: C-2 

d. West: C-2/LU and R-2 

 

8. Access and Transportation: Access to for all parcels along N Elliott Road is to N 

Elliott Road. The four residential lots where the right-of-way width is proposed to 

be reduced take access from N Elliott Road. 

 

9. Utilities: 

a. Water:  he City’s GIS system shows there is an existing 8-inch water line 

in N Elliott Road. 

b. Wastewater: The City’s GIS system shows there is an existing 8-inch 

wastewater line in N Elliott Rad.  

c. Stormwater: The City’s GIS system shows an intermittent stormwater 

system along the roadway corridor. Some areas have a stormwater system 

and other areas do not have a stormwater system. 

d. Overhead Lines: There are overhead utilities serving the properties along 

90



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

N Elliott Road or running parallel to the property frontages. Any new 

connection to any of the properties including the four properties where the 

right-of-way is proposed to be narrowed will need to be undergrounded. 

See NMC 15.430.010 for exception provisions. 

 

C. PROCESS: The Determination is a Type II application and follows the procedures in 

Newberg Development Code 15.100.030.  Following a 14-day public comment period, 

the Community Development Director makes a decision on the application based on the 

criteria listed in the attached findings. The Director’s decision is final unless appealed.  

Important dates related to this application are as follows: 

a. 11/04/2021: The Community Development Director deemed the 

application complete. 

b. 11/17/2021: The applicant mailed notice to the property owners within 

500 feet of the site. 

c. 12/01/2021: The 14-day public comment period ended. 

d. 1/14/2022: The Community Development Director issued a decision 

on the application. 

D. AGENCY COMMENTS:  The application was routed to several public agencies for 

review and comment (Attachment 1). Comments and recommendations from city 

departments have been incorporated into the findings and conditions.  As of the writing 

of this report, the city received the following agency comments:  

City Manager: Reviewed, no conflict 

 

Finance: Reviewed, no conflict 

 

Police: Reviewed, no conflict  

 

Public Works Maintenance: Reviewed, no conflict. 

 

Public Works Superintendent: Reviewed, no conflict.  

 

Public Works Director: Reviewed, no conflict 

 

Public Works Wastewater Treatment Plant: Reviewed, no conflict 

 

E. PUBLIC COMMENTS:   

91



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Public comments (summarized) were received from the following parties and are included in full 

Attachment 2. 

 

1.  Gerry Avoilo: Provided four comments. 1) Surprised by the extent of the work and the 

cost of over $3M to dress up a road to the high school. 2) Understands and supports the need for 

sidewalks on both sides of Elliott Road for safety and convenience of pedestrians. To do so would 

require a part of his front yard. 3) He walks every week and notes any streets do not have 

sidewalks on both sides, some street with no sidewalks, some streets with sidewalks on only one 

side, and many sidewalks are in need of repair. He comments that if the N Elliott Road project 

was to only install sidewalks that excess funds should be used to repair old sidewalk in the city. 

4) He was informed that widening the road was necessary to help reduce traffic speed. He 

inquired about permeant speed camera installation to reduce the speeding problem. 

 

Staff Response: 1) The Applicant’s request is to address a narrower right-of-way width from the 

required Code requirement along the frontage of four properties. The comment does not address 

the criteria of 15.505.030H.1.a.-d. The cost of the project should be addressed directly to the 

Public Works Engineering Division. 2) Mr. Avolio’s property is one of the properties where the 

applicant has requested a narrower right-of-way width for the N Elliott Road improvements. The 

Applicant is working to acquire right-of-way for the improvements which will include a sidewalk. 

3) The Applicant’s request is to address a narrower right-of-way width from the required Code 

requirement along the frontage of four properties. The comment does not address the criteria of 

15.505.030H.1.a.-d. This comment will be forwarded to the applicant for consideration in the sign 

of the N Elliott Road improvement. 4) The Applicant’s request is to address a narrower right-of-

way width from the required Code requirement along the frontage of four properties. The 

comment does not address the criteria of 15.505.030H.1.a.-d. This comment will be forwarded to 

the applicant for consideration in the sign of the N Elliott Road improvement. 

 

2. Miguel Gonzales: Provided comments in response to the process being utilized. 1) He 

does approve the Type II application. 2) The owner of the property must approve the application 

and sign the application. 3) the city does not meet the requirements of 15.505.030(h) because 

owners did not sign the application. 4) Attached section of the Code he believes are applicable. 5) 

The city has not made serious efforts to address concerns raised by residents. 

 

Staff Response: NMC 15.505.030H.1.a.-d. and 2 are applicable to the applicant’s request. 

Specifically, “ H. Modification of Street Right-of-Way and Improvement Width. The director, 

pursuant to the Type II review procedures of Chapter 15.220 NMC, may allow modification to 

the public street standards of subsection (G) of this section, when the criteria in both subsections 

(H)(1) and (2) of this section are satisfied: …” The Applicant submitted an application to address 

a modification to the design for the right-of-way width for the N Elliott Road project to reduce 

the right-of-way width along the frontage of four properties. As the Road Authority the City of 

Newberg is designing a future transportation improvement. This design will determine the right-

of-way necessary to acquire where insufficient right-of-way exists for a future transportation 

improvement.  The application did not require property owner signature for the Applicant to 

request a determination if a reduced right-of-way width is feasible to minimize impacts along the 

transportation corridor. Without the application request by the Applicant the transportation design 

would have to meet the requirements of NMC 15.505.030 G. Street Width and Design Standards 

requiring more right-of-way than may be necessary. Any right-of-way acquisition would be 

negotiated. 2) As noted above the property owner was not required to sign the application as the 

92



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Applicant is requesting a determination to reduce the right-of-way width along the frontage of 

four properties. 3) The Applicant submitted an application to determine if a narrower right-of-

way width can be approved following the procedures laid out in NMC 15.505.030H.1.a.-d. and 2. 

5) The Applicant’s request is to address a narrower right-of-way width from the required Code 

requirement along the frontage of four properties. The comment does not respond the criteria of 

15.505.030H.1.a.-d. This comment will be forwarded to the applicant for consideration in the 

design of the N Elliott Road improvement. 

 

3. Brandy Crockett: Provided comments in response to 1) Opposition to bike lanes on N 

Elliott Road. 2) Point 1 is to the actual number of people that will use the bike lanes. Point 2 is 

the City Council wants bike lanes for students to commuting to school but the number of bikes in 

racks at the High School is low. Point 3 is that most bike users don’t use bike lanes and ride with 

traffic or children use the sidewalk. Point 4 is the 10 year plan to take away street parking for bike 

lanes from Haworth and Deborah to make connecting bike lanes to Elliott Road. 

 

Staff Response: The Applicant’s request is for a determination of the necessary right-of-way 

related to four properties along N Elliott Road. The general comment of opposition to bike lanes 

and to the 4 points raised do not respond to the requirements of NMC 15.505.030H.1.a.-d. and 2. 

The comments will be forwarded to the applicant for consideration in the design of the N Elliott 

Road improvement. 

 

4. James Talt: Mr. Talt provided comments requesting modifications to the Type II Land 

Use Application based on four requests. A) Fast track the completion of bike lanes on Deborah 

Road from 99W to Haworth and designate both sides as no parking. B) Reclassify Elliott Road 

from a Major Collector to a Local Residential Street. Add needed road improvements for safety, 

accessibility, ADA, drainage, etc. and with no-street parking and shared land markings for bikes 

from Haworth south to 99W. C) Omit Plater strips. D) Add road improvements per (B) above and 

create bike lanes from Haworth north to the High School. Designate no street parking on this one 

block stretch. 

 

Staff Response: The submitted application is specific to a modification to the right-of-way width 

along N Elliott Road related to four property frontages. The submitted comments do not respond 

to the criteria of NMC 15.505.030H.1.a.-d. and 2. The comments will be forwarded to the 

applicant for consideration in the design of the N Elliott Road improvement. 

 

5. Tyler Smith: Mr. Smith provided comments indicating 1) Newberg Municipal Code 

requires the Owner of the real property in question to approve of the application or be the 

applicant.  Rajiv Jain and Cedar Terrace, LLC as well as Dan Dhondt, own 704 N Elliot Rd, and 

807 N Elliot Rd respectively.  They are not the applicant, nor do they approve of land use actions 

covering their property. 2) Your application does not meet any of the criteria of NMC 

15.505.030(h) 

 

Staff Response: The Applicant submitted an application to address a modification to the design 

for the right-of-way width for the N Elliott Road project to reduce the right-of-way width along 

the frontage of four properties. As the Road Authority the City of Newberg is designing a future 

transportation improvement. This design will determine the right-of-way necessary to acquire 

where insufficient right-of-way exists for a future transportation improvement.  The application 

did not require property owner signature for the Applicant to request a determination if a reduced 

93



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

right-of-way width is feasible to minimize impacts along the transportation corridor. Without the 

application request by the Applicant the transportation design would have to meet the 

requirements of NMC 15.505.030 G. Street Width and Design Standards requiring more right-of-

way than may be necessary. Any right-of-way acquisition would be negotiated. 

 

Mr. Smith’s comments regarding NMC 15.505.030(h) are addressed below in the findings section 

of this report. 

 

  

94



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Section II:  Findings – File MISC221-0002 

Determination – N Elliott Road 
 

15.505.030 Street standards. 

 

H. Modification of Street Right-of-Way and Improvement Width. The director, pursuant to 

the Type II review procedures of Chapter 15.220 NMC, may allow modification to the 

public street standards of subsection (G) of this section, when the criteria in both 

subsections (H)(1) and (2) of this section are satisfied: 

 

1. The modification is necessary to provide design flexibility in instances where: 

 

a. Unusual topographic conditions require a reduced width or grade separation 

of improved surfaces; or 

 

Finding: Not applicable. 

 

b. Lot shape or configuration precludes accessing a proposed development with 

a street which meets the full standards of this section; or  

 

Finding: The Applicant indicates the property at 704 N Elliott Road requires a 6-inch narrower 

street right-of-way from the 60-foot full width at the north corner of the existing multi-dwelling 

development to preserve the loss of an existing parking spaces and to minimize impact to the 

existing lot configuration according to subsection (H)(1)(b).The south portion of this lot does not 

have a right-of-way issue. Three parking spaces would be relocated as part of the roadway 

improvement to another relocation of the 704 N Elliott Road site as mitigation. 

 

Staff concurs with the applicant because of the effort to minimize the displacement of parking at 

on the north side of the access point into the development. 

 

c. A modification is necessary to preserve trees or other natural features 

determined by the City to be significant to the aesthetic character of the area; or 

 

Finding: The applicant indicates the properties at 807 N Elliott Road and 911 N Elliott Road 

requires modification of street right-of-way width because of the necessity to preserve existing 

trees and to minimize impact to the green features of the N Elliott Road corridor according to 

subsection (H)(1)(c). At 807 N Elliott Rod the narrowed right-of-way design would preserve two 

(2) existing palm trees which are unique to the neighborhood area. At 911 NE Elliott Road the 

narrowed right-of-way design preserves five (5) deciduous trees which is part of the 

neighborhood character. 

 

The property at 1007 N Elliott Road requires transition of the narrower street right-of-way to full 

width to the north as a result of preserving existing trees to the south according to subsection 

(H)(1)(c). 

95



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

 

Staff concurs with the applicant because narrowing the right-of-way design preserve trees and 

allows for transitions to occur from where the right-of-way is narrowed back to its full width 

required by NMC 15.505.030 G. 

 

d. A planned unit development is proposed and the modification of street 

standards is necessary to provide greater privacy or aesthetic quality to the 

development. 

 

Finding: Not applicable as the proposal is not part of a planned unit development . 

 

2. Modification of the standards of this section shall only be approved if the director 

finds that the specific design proposed provides adequate vehicular access based on 

anticipated traffic volumes. 

 

Finding: The narrowed right-of-way design at four (4) locations provides adequate vehicular 

access based on anticipated traffic volumes for N Elliott Road. The design includes travel lanes, 

bike lanes, and sidewalk to allow for multi-modal access along the transportation corridor.  

 

Type II Review Procedures of Chapter 15.220 

15.220.020 Site design review applicability. 

 

A. Applicability of Requirements. Site design review shall be required prior to issuance of 

building permits or commencement of work for all improvements noted below. Site design 

review permits shall be processed as either Type I or Type II, as noted below. 

 

2. Type II. 

 

a. Any new development or remodel which is not specifically identified within 

subsection (A)(1) of this section. 

 

b. Telecommunications facilities. 

 

Finding: The requested determination is not new development or remodel which is not 

specifically identified within subsection (A)(1) of this section and is not a telecommunications 

facility. These criteria do not apply. 

 

15.220.030 Site design review requirements. 

 

B. Type II. The following information is required to be submitted with all Type II 

applications for site design review: 

 

1. Site Development Plan. A site development plan shall be to scale and shall indicate 

the following as appropriate to the nature of the use: 

96



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

 

a. Access to site from adjacent right-of-way, streets and arterials; 

 

b. Parking and circulation areas; 

 

c. Location and design of buildings and signs; 

 

d. Orientation of windows and doors; 

 

e. Entrances and exits; 

 

f. Private and shared outdoor recreation spaces; 

 

g. Pedestrian circulation; 

 

h. Outdoor play areas; 

 

i. Service areas for uses such as mail delivery, trash disposal, above-ground 

utilities, loading and delivery; 

 

j. Areas to be landscaped; 

 

k. Exterior lighting; 

 

l. Special provisions for handicapped persons; 

 

m. Other site elements and spaces which will assist in the evaluation of site 

development; 

 

n. Proposed grading, slopes, and proposed drainage; 

 

o. Location and access to utilities including hydrant locations; and 

 

p. Streets, driveways, and sidewalks. 

 

2. Site Analysis Diagram. A site analysis diagram shall be to scale and shall indicate 

the following characteristics on the site and within 100 feet of the site: 

 

a. Relationship of adjacent lands; 

 

b. Location of species of trees greater than four inches in diameter at four feet 

above ground level; 

 

c. Existing and proposed topography; 

97



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

d. Natural drainage and proposed drainage and grading; 

 

e. Natural features and structures having a visual or other significant 

relationship with the site. 

3. Architectural Drawings. Architectural drawings shall be prepared which identify 

floor plans and elevations. 

 

4. Landscape Plan. The landscape plan shall indicate: 

 

a. The size, species and approximate locations of plant materials to be retained 

or placed on the site together with a statement which indicates the mature size 

and canopy shape of all plant materials; 

 

b. Proposed site contouring; and 

 

c. A calculation of the percentage of the site to be landscaped. 

 

5. Special Needs for Handicapped. Where appropriate, the design review plan shall 

indicate compliance with handicapped accessibility requirements including, but not 

limited to, the location of handicapped parking spaces, the location of accessible routes 

from the entrance to the public way, and ramps for wheelchairs. 

 

6. Existing Features and Natural Landscape. The plans shall indicate existing 

landscaping and existing grades. Existing trees or other features intended to be 

preserved or removed shall be indicated on the plans. 

 

7. Drives, Parking and Circulation. Proposed vehicular and pedestrian circulation, 

parking spaces, parking aisles, and the location and number of access points shall be 

indicated on the plans. Dimensions shall be provided on the plans for parking aisles, 

back-up areas, and other items as appropriate. 

 

8. Drainage. The direction and location of on- and off-site drainage shall be indicated 

on the plans. This shall include, but not be limited to, site drainage, parking lot 

drainage, size and location of storm drain lines, and any retention or detention 

facilities necessary for the project. 

 

9. Buffering and Screening. Buffering and screening of areas, structures and facilities 

for storage, machinery and equipment, services (mail, refuse, utility wires, and the 

like), loading and parking and similar accessory areas and structures shall be shown 

on the plans. 

 

10. Signs and Graphics. The location, colors, materials, and lighting of all exterior 

signs, graphics or other informational or directional features shall be shown on the 

plans. 

98



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

 

11. Exterior Lighting. Exterior lighting within the design review plan shall be indicated 

on the plans. The direction of the lighting, size and type of fixtures, and an indication 

of the amount of lighting shall be shown on the plans. 

 

12. Trash and Refuse Storage. All trash or refuse storage areas, along with appropriate 

screening, shall be indicated on the plans. Refuse storage areas must be constructed of 

brick, concrete block or other similar products as approved by the director. 

 

13. Roadways and Utilities. The proposed plans shall indicate any public improvements 

that will be constructed as part of the project, including, but not limited to, roadway 

and utility improvements. 

 

14. Traffic Study. A traffic study shall be submitted for any project that generates in 

excess of 40 trips per p.m. peak hour. This requirement may be waived by the director 

when a determination is made that a previous traffic study adequately addresses the 

proposal and/or when off-site and frontage improvements have already been completed 

which adequately mitigate any traffic impacts and/or the proposed use is not in a 

location which is adjacent to an intersection which is functioning at a poor level of 

service. A traffic study may be required by the director for projects below 40 trips per 

p.m. peak hour where the use is located immediately adjacent to an intersection 

functioning at a poor level of service. The traffic study shall be conducted according to 

the City of Newberg design standards. 

 

Finding: The submitted application is not a site design review per NMC 15.220.020A.2. and is 

not applicable. The application request is for a determination per NMC 15.505.030H.1.a.-d. and 

2 if a narrower right-of-way width can be utilized than required per NMC 15.505.030 G for a 

minor collector roadway. At 704 N Elliott Road 3 parking spaces will be relocated as litigation to 

another relocation on the site. At 807 N Elliott Road the reduced right-of-way width would 

maintain setbacks to the structure of 23-24 feet and to the garage of 24 feet which exceeds the 

requirements of NMC 15.410.020A1 and 15.410.020A. 

 

15.220.050 Criteria for design review (Type II process). 

 

B. Type II. The following criteria are required to be met in order to approve a Type II 

design review request: 

 

1. Design Compatibility. The proposed design review request incorporates an 

architectural design which is compatible with and/or superior to existing or proposed 

uses and structures in the surrounding area. This shall include, but not be limited to, 

building architecture, materials, colors, roof design, landscape design, and signage. 

 

Finding: The submitted application is not a site design review per NMC 15.220.020A.2. but is 

following the process referenced in NMC 15.505.030H. Design Compatibility is not applicable 

99



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

because the application is not a design review. Notification to property owners along the N 

Elliott Road corridor was provided to allow for public comment per NMC 15.100.140, 

15.100.210 and 15.100.220. 

 

2. Parking and On-Site Circulation. Parking areas shall meet the requirements of 

NMC 15.440.010. Parking studies may be required to determine if adequate parking 

and circulation are provided for uses not specifically identified in NMC 15.440.010. 

Provisions shall be made to provide efficient and adequate on-site circulation without 

using the public streets as part of the parking lot circulation pattern. Parking areas 

shall be designed so that vehicles can efficiently enter and exit the public streets with a 

minimum impact on the functioning of the public street. 

 

Finding: The submitted application is not a site design review per NMC 15.220.020A.2. but is 

following the process referenced in NMC 15.505.030H. Parking and On-Site Circulation is not 

applicable because the application is not a design review. Notification to property owners along 

the N Elliott Road corridor was provided to allow for public comment per NMC 15.100.140, 

15.100.210 and 15.100.220 on the design to reduce the right-of-way width at selected locations. 

 

3. Setbacks and General Requirements. The proposal shall comply with NMC 

15.415.010 through 15.415.060 dealing with height restrictions and public access; and 

NMC 15.405.010 through 15.405.040 and 15.410.010 through 15.410.070 dealing with 

setbacks, coverage, vision clearance, and yard requirements. 

 

Finding: The submitted application is not a site design review per NMC 15.220.020A.2. but is following 

the process referenced in NMC 15.505.030H. Setbacks and General Requirements is not applicable 

because the application is not a design review. Notification to property owners along the N Elliott 

Road corridor was provided to allow for public comment per NMC 15.100.140, 15.100.210 and 

15.100.220 on the design to reduce the right-of-way width at selected locations. 

 

4. Landscaping Requirements. The proposal shall comply with NMC 15.420.010 

dealing with landscape requirements and landscape screening. 

 

Finding: The submitted application is not a site design review per NMC 15.220.020A.2. but is following 

the process referenced in NMC 15.505.030H. Landscaping Requirements is not applicable because the 

application is not a design review. Notification to property owners along the N Elliott Road corridor 

was provided to allow for public comment per NMC 15.100.140, 15.100.210 and 15.100.220 on 

the design to reduce the right-of-way width at selected locations. 

 

5. Signs. Signs shall comply with NMC 15.435.010 et seq. dealing with signs. 

 

Finding: The submitted application is not a site design review per NMC 15.220.020A.2. but is following 

the process referenced in NMC 15.505.030H. Signs are not applicable because the application is not a 

design review. Notification to property owners along the N Elliott Road corridor was provided to 

allow for public comment per NMC 15.100.140, 15.100.210 and 15.100.220 on the design to 

100



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

reduce the right-of-way width at selected locations. 

 

6. Manufactured Dwelling, Mobile Home and RV Parks. Manufactured dwelling and 

mobile home parks shall also comply with the standards listed in NMC 15.445.075 

through 15.445.100 in addition to the other clear and objective criteria listed in this 

section. RV parks also shall comply with NMC 15.445.170 in addition to the other 

criteria listed in this section. 

 

Finding: The submitted application is not a site design review per NMC 15.220.020A.2. but is 

following the process referenced in NMC 15.505.030H. Manufactured Dwelling, Mobile Home 

and RV Parks are not applicable because the application is not a design review. Notification to 

property owners along the N Elliott Road corridor was provided to allow for public comment per 

NMC 15.100.140, 15.100.210 and 15.100.220 on the design to reduce the right-of-way width at 

selected locations. 

 

7. Zoning District Compliance. The proposed use shall be listed as a permitted or 

conditionally permitted use in the zoning district in which it is located as found in 

NMC 15.305.010 through 15.336.020. Through this site review process, the director 

may make a determination that a use is determined to be similar to those listed in the 

applicable zoning district, if it is not already specifically listed. In this case, the director 

shall make a finding that the use shall not have any different or more detrimental 

effects upon the adjoining neighborhood area than those specifically listed. 

 

Finding: The submitted application is not a site design review per NMC 15.220.020A.2. but is 

following the process referenced in NMC 15.505.030H. Transportation facilities and 

improvements are a permitted use per 15.305.010. The N Elliott Road transportation corridor is 

in the C-2 (Community Commercial), R-1 (Low Density Residential), R-2 (Medium Density 

Residential) and R-3 (High Density Residential) zones. 

 

8. Subdistrict Compliance. Properties located within subdistricts shall comply with the 

provisions of those subdistricts located in NMC 15.340.010 through 15.348.060. 

 

Finding: The submitted application is not a site design review per NMC 15.220.020A.2. but is 

following the process referenced in NMC 15.505.030H. The N Elliott Road transportation 

corridor is in the Airport Overlay (Airport Transition Surface and Airport Inner Horizontal 

Surface). The northern portion of N Elliott Road is in the Marijuana Exclusion area. 

 

9. Alternative Circulation, Roadway Frontage Improvements and Utility 

Improvements. Where applicable, new developments shall provide for access for 

vehicles and pedestrians to adjacent properties which are currently developed or will be 

developed in the future. This may be accomplished through the provision of local 

public streets or private access and utility easements. At the time of development of a 

parcel, provisions shall be made to develop the adjacent street frontage in accordance 

with city street standards and the standards contained in the transportation plan. At the 

101



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

discretion of the city, these improvements may be deferred through use of a deferred 

improvement agreement or other form of security. 

 

Finding: The submitted application is not a site design review per NMC 15.220.020A.2. but is 

following the process referenced in NMC 15.505.030H. No new developments are proposed by 

the application request. N Elliott Road does provide access to existing commercial and 

residential development along the transportation corridor. No development of a parcel is 

proposed. 

 

10. Traffic Study Improvements. If a traffic study is required, improvements identified 

in the traffic study shall be implemented as required by the director. 

 

Finding: The submitted application is not a site design review per NMC 15.220.020A.2. but is 

following the process referenced in NMC 15.505.030H. No traffic study was required or 

prepared for the design of improvements to N Elliott Road. 

 

CONCLUSION:  

The proposed determination request to narrow the right-of-way cross-section at four locations 

along the N Elliott Road corridor satisfies the approval and is approved. 

  

102



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Attachment 1:  Application Material 
 

 

 

  

103



Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • planning@newbergoregon.gov 

 

 

TYPE II APPLICATION – LAND USE 

 

File #:____________________________________ 
 
 
TYPES – PLEASE CHECK ONE: 
___ Design review  ___ Type II Major Modification  
___ Tentative Plan for Partition  ___ Variance _______________________________________ 
___ Tentative Plan for Subdivision ___ Other: (Explain) __________________________________ 
 

APPLICANT INFORMATION: 

 

APPLICANT:  

ADDRESS: 

EMAIL ADDRESS: 

PHONE:     MOBILE:     FAX: 

OWNER (if different from above):       PHONE: 

ADDRESS: 

ENGINEER/SURVEYOR:        PHONE: 

ADDRESS: 

GENERAL  INFORMATION: 

  

PROJECT NAME:      PROJECT LOCATION: 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/USE:___________________________________________ PROJECT VALUATION: __________________ 

MAP/TAX LOT NO. (i.e.3200AB-400):    ZONE:                SITE SIZE:      SQ. FT.     ACRE  

COMP PLAN DESIGNATION:    TOPOGRAPHY: 

CURRENT USE: 

SURROUNDING USES: 

NORTH:       SOUTH: 

EAST:       WEST: 

SPECIFIC PROJECT CRITERIA AND REQUIREMENTS ARE ATTACHED 

General Checklist:  ☐  Fees  ☐  Public Notice Information  ☐ Current Title Report  ☐  Written Criteria Response ☐  Owner Signature 

 
For detailed checklists, applicable criteria for the written criteria response, and number of copies per application type, turn to: 
 

Design Review ……………………………………………………………………………………………p. 12  
Partition Tentative Plat …………………………………………………………………….……………p. 14 
Subdivision Tentative Plat …………………………………………………………………….….…....p. 17  
Variance Checklist ……………………………………………………………………………………....p. 20 

 
The above statements and information herein contained are in all respects true, complete, and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief.  Tentative 
plans must substantially conform to all standards, regulations, and procedures officially adopted by the City of Newberg.  All owners must sign the 
application or submit letters of consent. Incomplete or missing information may delay the approval process. 
 
 
 
 
Applicant Signature  Date   Owner Signature   Date 
 
 
 
Print Name      Print Name 
 

 

Paul Chiu

10/20/21

ATTACHEMENT 1

104



  Page 6 

CITY OF NEWBERG TYPE II 
SAMPLE MAILED NOTICE 

 
 

  Community Development Department 
    P.O. Box 970 ▪ 414 E First Street ▪ Newberg, Oregon 97132     
    503-537-1240. Fax 503-537-1272   www.newbergoregon.gov 

  
 
 
 
 

 
      

 
   

 
 

 
 
 
APPLICANT:   
TELEPHONE:    
 

  
 

  
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WE WANT YOUR COMMENTS ON A PROPOSED NEW 
DEVELOPMENT IN YOUR NEIGHBORHOOD 

 
 

 
 

Paul Chiu (Elliott Road Project Manager)
(503) 554-1751

PROPERTY OWNER: City of Newberg (Elliott Road right-of-way)

LOCATION: Elliott Road from Hwy 99W to Newberg High School

TAX LOT NUMBER: Yamhill County TL 3217DB-06201, TL 3217DB-06200, TL 3217DB-06100, 
                                                          and TL 3217DD-02501 (Elliott Road residential)

1007
Elliott 911 Elliott

807 Elliott

704 Elliott

The Elliott Road project manager submitted an application to the City of Newberg for Type II Determination. See below for 
details. You are invited to take part in the City's review of this project by sending in your written comments. You also may 
request that the Planning Commission hold a hearing on the application. The applicable criteria used to make a decision on 
this application for preliminary subdivision plan approval are found in Newberg Development Code 15.235.050(A).
For more details about giving comments, please see the back of this sheet.

The development would include (briefly describe what the project number of lots, size of lots, new streets created, etc.)

105

baxters
Arrow

baxters
Arrow

baxters
Arrow

baxters
Arrow



  Page 7 

We are mailing you information about this project because you own land within 500 feet of the proposed new project.  We 

invite you to send any written comments for or against the proposal within 14 days from the date this notice is mailed. You also 

may request that the Newberg Planning Commission hold a hearing on the application by sending a written request during this 

14-day period and identifying the issues you would like the Planning Commission to address. 

 

If you mail your comments to the City, please put the following information on the outside of the envelope: 

 

Written Comments: File No.XX   

City of Newberg    

Community Development 

PO Box 970 

  Newberg, OR  97132 

 

   

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

All written comments must be turned in by 4:30 p.m. on enter date two weeks from date you mailed notice. Any issue which 
might be raised in an appeal of this case to the Land Use Board of Appeals (LUBA) must be submitted to the City in writing

before this date.  You must include enough detail to enable the decision maker an opportunity to respond.  The applicable 
criteria used to make a decision on this application for preliminary subdivision plan approval are found in Newberg 
Development Code 15.235.050(A).

You can look over all the information about this project or drop comments off at Newberg City Hall, 414 E. First Street.  You

can also buy copies of the information for a cost of 25 cents a page.  If you have any questions about the project, you can call 
the Newberg Planning Division at 503-537-1240.

The Community Development Director will make a decision at the end of a 14-day comment period.  If you send in written 
comments about this project, you will be sent information about any decision made by the City relating to this project. 

 

Date Mailed:  Date notice is mailed  

      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(City staff will give you the file number for your 

project at the time of application) 

106



Paul Chiu (Elliott Rd Prj Mgr)

Paul Chiu

N/A

10
7



 

 

Engineering Division  •  P.O. Box 970, Newberg, OR 97132 • engineering@newbergoregon.gov  •  (503) 537-1273 
 
 Newberg City Hall • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-538-9421 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: 10/20/21 
 
RE: Elliott Road Improvement Project 

WRITTEN STATEMENT FOR TYPE II DETERMINATION 
 
 
Given the following: 
 
• NMC Section 15.505 applies to this Elliott Road Improvement Project, a capital improvement project. 
• NMC 15.505.030(G) Street Width & Design Standards for Major Collector is 36’ curb-to-curb (2-12’ travel 

lanes, 2-6’ bike lanes), 2-5’ planter strips, 2-5’ sidewalks → Total 56’ of physical improvements.  Typical 
sections show an additional 0.5’ behind sidewalk to ROW.  This gives a minimum ROW width of 57’ as noted 
in NMC, or 28.5’ ½ Street width. 

• The Elliott Road Improvement Project is minimizing Right-of-way acquisition along the corridor resulting in 
four (4) parcels acquiring less than the minimum per NMC.  
o File 7 – 807 Elliott Road: Varies from 25.5’ to 23.5’ of Right-of-way with an additional 3’ of Public 

Utility Easement. 
o File 9 – 911 Elliott Road: 23’ of ROW with an additional 3’ of Public Utility Easement. 
o File 10 – 1007 Elliott Road: 25’ of ROW with an additional 3’ of Public Utility Easement. 
o File 22 – 704 Elliott Road: Varies from 25’ to 29’ of Right-of-way with an additional 4.5’ of Public 

Utility Easement.  
• NMC 15.505.030(H): Modification of Street Right-of-Way Width requires a Type II application to the Planning 

Director. 
o a. Unusual topographic conditions require a reduced width or grade separation of improved 

surfaces; or 
o b. Lot shape or configuration precludes accessing a proposed development with a street which 

meets the full standards of this section; or 
o c. A modification is necessary to preserve trees or other natural features determined by the City to 

be significant to the aesthetic character of the area; or 
o d. A planned unit development is proposed and the modification of street standards is necessary to 

provide greater privacy or aesthetic quality to the development. 
 
Reasons for Request for Variance: 
 
• Federal Relocation Act: Right-of-way acquisition for this project must follow the Federal Uniform Relocation 

Act, codified by ORS 35.235.  
o ORS35.235 Agreement for compensation; status of resolution or ordinance of public condemner; 

status of action of private condemner; agreement effort not prerequisite.  
▪ (1) Subject to ORS 758.015 and 836.050, whenever in the judgment of the condemner it is 

necessary to acquire property for a purpose for which the condemner is authorized by law to 
acquire property, the condemner shall, after first declaring by resolution or ordinance such 
necessity and the purpose for which it is required, attempt to agree with the owner with respect 
to the compensation to be paid therefor, and the damages, if any, for the taking thereof. 

▪ (2) The resolution or ordinance of a public condemner is presumptive evidence of the public 
necessity of the proposed use, that the property is necessary therefor and that the proposed 
use, that is the improvements or the project, is planned or located in a manner which will be 
most compatible with the greatest public good and the least private injury. 

• If any of these properties were to redevelop in the future, the City would condition them to dedicate the 
ultimate ½ street ROW. 

108



D'HONDT DANIEL L

807 N ELLIOTT RD

R3217DB 06201

2
5
'

2
5
'

ELLIOTT ROAD

N
O

R
W

O
O

D

C
O

U
R
T

1
5
'

3
0
'

9
+

0
0

FILM VOLUME 250,

PAGE 1282

S01°50'25"W 2284.84'

9+44.00,

26.50 LT.

8+99.55, 26.50 LT.

8+49.55, 2
8.50 LT.

7+99.00, 2
8.50 LT.

9+44.00,

23.50 LT.

8+99.49,

23.50 LT.

8+49.49,

25.50 LT.

7+99.00,

25.50 LT.

8
+

0
0

30+00

7+98.33

B

R

E

N

T

W

O

O

D

A

D

D

I

T

I

O

N

9

10

ELLIOTT ROAD

N. HWY.99 W. TO NEWBERG HIGH SCHOOL

15013190 SW 68th Parkway, Suite

23Tigard, Oregon 972

om503.968.6655  www.cesnw.c

1. RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION

1,285 SQ. FT.  MORE OR LESS

FILE NUMBER: 07

TAX LOT:  06201

TAX MAP:  3 2 17DB

ADDRESS:

SUBMITTAL DATE:  9/03/2020

REVISED DATE:     9/10/2020

REVISED DATE:

807 ELLIOTT ROAD

2. PERMANENT UTILITY EASEMENT

404 SQ. FT.  MORE OR LESS

01530 30

EXHIBIT A-1

109

chiup
Highlight



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

File 7_807 Elliott Road 
Proposed grading 

 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT A-2

110



AVOLIO GERALD &

AVOLIO JANET

911 N ELLIOTT RD

R3217DB 06200

1
5
'

25'
25'

R
E
D

W
O

O
D

C
O

U
R
T

3
0
'

1
1
+

0
0

1
2
+

0
0

40+00

INSTRUMENT NUMBER

2015-14831

I
N

S
T
R
U

M
E
N

T
 
N

U
M

B
E
R

2
0
0
7
-
2
4
5
8
8

11+60.36

10+45.00,

23.00 LT.

B

R

E

N

T

W

O

O

D

A

D

D

I

T

I

O

N

9

8

4

ELLIOTT ROAD

S01°50'25"W 2284.84'

12+06.00,

23.00 LT.

10+45.00,

26.00 LT.

12+06.00,

23.00 LT.

ELLIOTT ROAD

N. HWY.99 W. TO NEWBERG HIGH SCHOOL

15013190 SW 68th Parkway, Suite

23Tigard, Oregon 972

om503.968.6655  www.cesnw.c

1. RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION

1,027 SQ. FT.  MORE OR LESS

FILE NUMBER: 09

TAX LOT:  06200

TAX MAP:  3 2 17DB

ADDRESS:

SUBMITTAL DATE:  09/10/2020

REVISED DATE:

REVISED DATE:

911 N ELLIOTT ROAD

2. PERMANENT UTILITY EASEMENT

453 SQ. FT.  MORE OR LESS

01530 30

EXHIBIT B-1

111

chiup
Highlight



File 9_911 Elliott Road 
Proposed grading 

 

 
 

                                                                        
 

EXHIBIT B-2

112



EXHIBIT C-1

113

chiup
Rectangle

chiup
Highlight



 
 
 

File 10_1007 Elliott Road 
Proposed grading 

 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT C-2

114



CEDAR TERRACE LLC

704 N ELLIOTT RD 9-12

R3217DD 02501

ELLIOTT ROAD

3
0
'

1
5
'

4
+

0
0

5
+

0
0

S01°50'25"W 2284.84'

P
0
6
-
2
0

2

3+08.00,

33.87 RT.

3+08.00,

29.35 RT.

3+30.91,

31.71 RT.

4+20.42,

29.50 RT.

5+28.00,

29.50 RT.

3+30.64,

27.21 RT.

4+20.36,

25.00 RT.

5+28.00,

25.00 RT.

ELLIOTT ROAD

N. HWY.99 W. TO NEWBERG HIGH SCHOOL

15013190 SW 68th Parkway, Suite

23Tigard, Oregon 972

om503.968.6655  www.cesnw.c

1. RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION

2,258 SQ. FT.  MORE OR LESS

FILE NUMBER: 22

TAX LOT:  02501

TAX MAP:  3 2 17DD

ADDRESS:

SUBMITTAL DATE:  09/10/2020

REVISED DATE:

REVISED DATE:

704 N ELLIOTT ROAD

2. PERMANENT UTILITY EASEMENT

947 SQ. FT.  MORE OR LESS

01530 30

EXHIBIT D-1

115

chiup
Highlight



File 22_704 Elliott Road 
Proposed grading 

 
 
 

 
 

                                           

EXHIBIT D-2

116



MapTaxlot SITUS1 SITUSCITY SITUSZIP OWNER1 OWNER2 MAILADD1 MAILCITY MAILSTATE MAILZIP

R3217DA 00802 1204 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 SIMPSON ROBERT J SIMPSON SHARON L 1204 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DD 03600 808 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 REAB AMANDA REAB BENJAMIN 808 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DC 00300 707 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 BLACK GARRY L  707 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DB 06114 901 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 HARRIMAN WILLIAM E  901 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DD 03400 908 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 MITCHELL BRIAN A  1203 SITKA AVE NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DA 00400 2500 HAWTHORNE DR NEWBERG 97132 J & R EQUITIES  478 17TH ST SANTA MONICA CA 90402

R3217DA 00700 1210 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 SOLORZANO ANTONIO S  1210 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DB 01600 1205 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 VAN BERGEN JEFFREY VAN BERGEN CONTONA S 1205 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DD 02501 704 N ELLIOTT RD 9-12 NEWBERG 97132 CEDAR TERRACE LLC  13489 NW TREVINO ST PORTLAND OR 97229

R3217DA 00803 1202 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 BYNON DEVIN R & BYNON REGINA M 1202 ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DC 00200 713 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 GONZALEZ ANITA  713 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DD 02602 710 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 LUCKY DOG PROPERTIES LLC  5250 ROGUE RIVER HWY GRANTS PASS OR 97527

R3217DB 06002 1013 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 KOCH MICHAEL  19490 S FERGUSON TERRACE OREGON CITY OR 97045

R3217DA 00900 2505 HAWORTH AVE NEWBERG 97132 CHURCH OF CHRIST  2503 HAWORTH AVE NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DA 00300 1300 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 J & R EQUITIES  478 17TH ST SANTA MONICA CA 90402

R3217DB 01500 1207 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 SPENCER THOMAS K SPENCER WANDA C 1207 ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DA 00801 1206 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 WOOLEN NORMAN A WOOLEN STEFFANIE 1705 GEMINI LN NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DB 06201 807 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 D'HONDT DANIEL L  807 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DC 00500 609 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 CFT NV DEVELOPMENTS LLC  1683 WALNUT GROVE AVE ROSEMEAD CA 91770

R3217DD 02900 2500 HAWORTH AVE NEWBERG 97132 BROWN TYLER PAUL KASIE 2500 HAWORTH AVE NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DB 06001 1007 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 PARKS JON H PARKS GRACE L 20032 SORRENTO PL BEND OR 97702

R3217DC 00402 613 N ELLIOTT RD UNIT 101 NEWBERG 97132 KCK PARTNERS LLC  11483 SE AMITY-DAYTON HWY DAYTON OR 97114

R3217DB 05908 2409 HAWORTH AVE NEWBERG 97132 BROWN MARCIA S TRUSTEE BROWN MARCIA TRUST 2409 HAWORTH AVE NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DD 04000 2500 NORWOOD CT NEWBERG 97132 RINGSETH JAMES A RINGSETH KATIE L 2500 NORWOOD CT NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DB 01700 1203 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 MULCAHY SHAUN P MULCAHY KARRIE M 1203 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DD 03000 1004 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 ANDERSON NICHOLAS ANDERSON STACY 1004 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DB 03900 2408 WILLOW DR NEWBERG 97132 WOOLDRIDGE ELMER & BRENDA L  2408 WILLOW DR NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DD 02502 2501 NE PORTLAND RD B NEWBERG 97132 VEATCH ROGER A & CAROL E TRUSTEES FOR VEATCH FAMILY TRUST 18450 NE HILLSIDE DR NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DC 00303 621 N ELLIOTT RD E NEWBERG 97132 ELLIOTT ESTATES LLC  17370 SW 108TH PL TUALATIN OR 97062

R3217DC 00400 615 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 ELLIOTT ESTATES LLC  17370 SW 108TH PL TUALATIN OR 97062

R3217DB 06200 911 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 AVOLIO GERALD & AVOLIO JANET 911 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DD 03500 900 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 CHILD KATHLEEN  PO BOX 396 NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DD 02600 720 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 SHUCKEROW PATRICK C SHUCKEROW KATHERINE M PO BOX 253 NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DD 02601 714 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 THOMPSON EMILY  710 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DC 00301 629 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 ELLIOTT ESTATES LLC  17370 SW 108TH PL TUALATIN OR 97062

R3217DB 01800 2409 WILLOW DR NEWBERG 97132 REDWINE GARY D & REDWINE CHERI 2409 WILLOW DR NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DB 01400 1209 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 KWIESELEWICZ NATHALIE  1209 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DC 00100 803 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG 97132 CROCKETT WESLEY CROCKETT BRANDY 803 N ELLIOTT RD NEWBERG OR 97132

R3217DB 00100 2409 HAWTHORNE DR NEWBERG 97132 MARSHALL THOMAS L & TERESA  2409 HAWTHORNE DR NEWBERG OR 97132

ELLIOTT ROAD - TYPE II NOTIFICATION LIST

117



R3217DA 00802 

SIMPSON ROBERT J 

1204 N ELLIOTT RD 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DD 03600 

REAB AMANDA 

808 N ELLIOTT RD 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DC 00300 

BLACK GARRY L 

707 N ELLIOTT RD 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

R3217DB 06114 

HARRIMAN WILLIAM E 

901 N ELLIOTT RD 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DD 03400 

MITCHELL BRIAN A 

1203 SITKA AVE 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DA 00400 

J & R EQUITIES 

478 17TH ST 

SANTA MONICA, CA 90402 
 

R3217DA 00700 

SOLORZANO ANTONIO S 

1210 N ELLIOTT RD 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DB 01600 

VAN BERGEN JEFFREY 

1205 N ELLIOTT RD 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DD 02501 

CEDAR TERRACE LLC 

13489 NW TREVINO ST 

PORTLAND, OR 97229 
 

R3217DA 00803 

BYNON DEVIN R & 

1202 ELLIOTT RD 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DC 00200 

GONZALEZ ANITA 

713 N ELLIOTT RD 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DD 02602 

LUCKY DOG PROPERTIES LLC 

5250 ROGUE RIVER HWY 

GRANTS PASS, OR 97527 
 

R3217DB 06002 

KOCH MICHAEL 

19490 S FERGUSON TERRACE 

OREGON CITY, OR 97045 
 

 
R3217DA 00900 

CHURCH OF CHRIST 

2503 HAWORTH AVE 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DA 00300 

J & R EQUITIES 

478 17TH ST 

SANTA MONICA, CA 90402 
 

R3217DB 01500 

SPENCER THOMAS K 

1207 ELLIOTT RD 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DA 00801 

WOOLEN NORMAN A 

1705 GEMINI LN 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DB 06201 

D'HONDT DANIEL L 

807 N ELLIOTT RD 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

R3217DC 00500 

CFT NV DEVELOPMENTS LLC 

1683 WALNUT GROVE AVE 

ROSEMEAD, CA 91770 
 

 
R3217DD 02900 

BROWN TYLER 

2500 HAWORTH AVE 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DB 06001 

PARKS JON H 

20032 SORRENTO PL 

BEND, OR 97702 
 

R3217DC 00402 

KCK PARTNERS LLC 

11483 SE AMITY-DAYTON HWY 

DAYTON, OR 97114 
 

 
R3217DB 05908 

BROWN MARCIA S TRUSTEE 

2409 HAWORTH AVE 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DD 04000 

RINGSETH JAMES A 

2500 NORWOOD CT 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

R3217DB 01700 

MULCAHY SHAUN P 

1203 N ELLIOTT RD 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DD 03000 

ANDERSON NICHOLAS 

1004 N ELLIOTT RD 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DB 03900 

WOOLDRIDGE ELMER & BRENDA L 

2408 WILLOW DR 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

R3217DD 02502 

VEATCH ROGER A & CAROL E 

18450 NE HILLSIDE DR 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DC 00303 

ELLIOTT ESTATES LLC 

17370 SW 108TH PL 

TUALATIN, OR 97062 
 

 
R3217DC 00400 

ELLIOTT ESTATES LLC 

17370 SW 108TH PL 

TUALATIN, OR 97062 
 

118



R3217DB 06200 

AVOLIO GERALD & 

911 N ELLIOTT RD 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DD 03500 

CHILD KATHLEEN 

PO BOX 396 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DD 02600 

SHUCKEROW PATRICK C 

PO BOX 253 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

R3217DD 02601 

THOMPSON EMILY 

710 N ELLIOTT RD 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DC 00301 

ELLIOTT ESTATES LLC 

17370 SW 108TH PL 

TUALATIN, OR 97062 
 

 
R3217DB 01800 

REDWINE GARY D & 

2409 WILLOW DR 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

R3217DB 01400 

KWIESELEWICZ NATHALIE 

1209 N ELLIOTT RD 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DC 00100 

CROCKETT WESLEY 

803 N ELLIOTT RD 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
 

 
R3217DB 00100 

MARSHALL THOMAS L & TERESA 

2409 HAWTHORNE DR 

NEWBERG, OR 97132 
      

     

     

     

     

     

     

119



 

 

Engineering Division  •  P.O. Box 970, Newberg, OR 97132 • engineering@newbergoregon.gov  •  (503) 537-1273 
 
 Newberg City Hall • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-538-9421 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
November 8, 2021 
 
Doug Rux 
Community Development 
City of Newberg 
PO Box 970 
Newberg, OR 97132 
 
Re: MISC221-0002 – Elliott Road 
 
 
 
Dear Mr. Rux: 
 
This letter is a response to your notice dated November 2, 2021, in particular the narrative response for 
Newberg Municipal Code 15.505.030(H): 
 
Properties 807 N Elliott Road and 911 N Elliott Road requires modification of street right-of-way width 
because of the necessity to preserve existing trees and to minimize impact to the green features of the Elliott 
Road corridor according to subsection (H)(1)(c). 
 
Property 1007 N Elliott Road requires transition of the narrower street right-of-way to full width to the north 
as a result of preserving existing trees to the south according to subsection (H)(1)(c). 
 
Please refer to Exhibits E-1, E-2 and E3 for the reasons due to the tree impact. 
 
Property 704 N Elliott Road requires a 6-inch narrower street right-of-way from the 60-foot full width at the 
north corner of the existing multi-dwelling development to preserve the loss of an existing parking space 
and to minimize impact to the existing lot configuration according to subsection (H)(1)(b).The south portion 
of this lot does not have a right-of-way issue. 
 
 
Please also note that the City Council authorized Resolution No. 2020-3681 on June 15, 2020 that they 
selected “The Buffered Bike Lane” design as the preferred alternative. This alternative specifically directed 
project staff to proceed with the narrower right-of-way design in some areas of the Elliott Road corridor. 
 
With this additional information, please review this Type II application. Please also advise me when to mail 
the Neighborhood Notice. If you have any further questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Paul Chiu, PE 
Project Manager 
 
Attachments as noted above  

120



 

 

Engineering Division  •  P.O. Box 970, Newberg, OR 97132 • engineering@newbergoregon.gov  •  (503) 537-1273 
 
 Newberg City Hall • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-538-9421 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date of Response to CDD Notice (via email): 11/8/2021 
 
RE:  807 N Elliott 
 Tree Survey (8-21-19) 
 
 
 

 

807 
N Elliott 

 

 

EXHIBIT E-1

121

chiup
Highlight



 

 

Engineering Division  •  P.O. Box 970, Newberg, OR 97132 • engineering@newbergoregon.gov  •  (503) 537-1273 
 
 Newberg City Hall • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-538-9421 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date of Response to CDD Notice (via email): 11/8/2021 
 
RE:  911 N Elliott 
 Tree Survey (8-21-19) 
 
 
 

 

911 N Elliott 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT E-2

122



 

 

Engineering Division  •  P.O. Box 970, Newberg, OR 97132 • engineering@newbergoregon.gov  •  (503) 537-1273 
 
 Newberg City Hall • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-538-9421 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date of Response to CDD Notice (via email): 11/8/2021 
 
RE:  1007 N Elliott 
 Neighboring Tree Survey (8-21-19) 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1007 N Elliott 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT E-3

123



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Attachment 2: Public Comments 

 

124



12
5



12
6



12
7



12
8



12
9



13
0



13
1



13
2



13
3



13
4



13
5



13
6



13
7



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Attachment 4: Memorandum From Paul Chiu to Doug Rux, March 1, 2022 

 

 

 

  

138



 

 

Engineering Division  •  P.O. Box 970, Newberg, OR 97132 • engineering@newbergoregon.gov  •  (503) 537-1273 
 
 Newberg City Hall • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-538-9421 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

 
 
 
 
3/1/22 
 
To: Doug Rux 
From: Paul Chiu 
RE: File 7 – D’Hondt at 807 N Elliott Road 
 
Couple of questions from Doug with answers from Paul: 

1. What documentation do you have in your project case file on negotiations with Mr. Dhondt on ROW acquisition? 
I have a paper file folder. In summary: 
11/6/20 UF sent certified General Info Notice to D’Hondt (emailed Tyler Smith his attorney) intent for property acquisition. 
11/10/20 OVG mailed a 15-day notice to D’Hondt prior to conducting a site visit for real estate valuation. 
5/5/21 UF emailed Smith that UF will send offer packets. 
5/10/21 UF sent certified Offer Letter to D’Hondt and Smith, starting the clock for 40 day consideration. 
6/3/21 Smith emailed City Attorney James Walker his clients need more time to see if the offer is close. 
6/15/21 D’Hondt sent a certified mail to UF declining the offer and noted the process of getting an appraisal and should 

have relocation benefits.  
6/18/21 Smith emailed UF cc D’Hondt and Walker that offer was too low and thus declined it. 
6/21/21 UF emailed Smith cc D’Hondt and Walker that UF will wait for D’Hondt’s counteroffer, and also wanted to explain 

relocation benefit and how eligibility is determined. 
7/30/21 UF sent a certified letter to D’Hondt and Smith explaining why relocation benefit does not apply and that D’Hondt 

is not eligible to receive it. 
8/18/21 UF emailed D’Hondt (webmandan@gmail.com) if he is still planning to submit a counteroffer. 
8/20/21 D’Hondt replied UF’s email that they absolutely intend to formulate a reply and submit a counteroffer. D’Hondt 

noted that his pest control business has been owned and operated from this location for over 30 years. 
9/10/21 UF emailed D’Hondt asking for a timeline of when they will be sending the counteroffer. 
9/13/21 Smith emailed UF that the City’s offer failed to consider major things, alleging that City did not comply with ORS 

35.510 and 35.520. 
10/8/21 UF turned over File 7 folder to City of Newberg. 

 
2. How long has outreach and negotiations with property owners along the corridor been occurring? 

5/6/19 Council meeting (Resolution 2019-3547) hiring KAI as project consultant. 
5/8/19 Newberg Graphic published news on Elliott Road reconstruction. 
6/4/19 Staff drafted a response to keep Council informed. 
7/23/19 (Also 7/24/19) Walking Tours with neighbors. 
9/18/19  Open House at Mabel Rush School Library, sharing concepts and soliciting public feedback. 
11/18/19 Presented project info to Council. 
5/18/20 Presented preferred alternative to City Council. 
5/28/20  Online Neighborhood Meeting via zoom. 
6/10/20 Presented project to Traffic Safety Commission via zoom. 
6/15/20 Council meeting (Resolution 2020-3681) directing staff to negotiate with property owners. 
8/2020 More meetings with neighbors. 
3/15/21 Presented Information to Council. 
10/7/21 Memo to City Manager for Council update. 
 
Outreach started in July 2019 – see timeline above. 
Negotiation began after Council’s direction in June 2020. 
 

3. How many times and on what dates has this project been before City Council for briefings, feedback and direction? 
See timeline in #2. 
 

4. What do you have in your case file that shows Mr. Dhondt is the owner of the parcel at 807 N Elliott Road based on your 
ROW negotiations? 
There is a paper copy in the file showing a Northwest Title Company Statutory Warranty Deed dated 12/6/1990. 

 
Abbreviation: 
KAI = Kittelson & Associates, Inc. (consultant) 
OVG=Oregon Valuation Group (subconsultant) 
UF = Universal Field Services, Inc. (subconsultant) 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 4

139



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Attachment 5: Johnston v. City of Albany, 34 OR LUBA 32 (1998) 

 

140



1 

2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 

44 

BEFORE THE LAND USE BOARD OF APPEALS 

OF THE STATE OF OREGON 
 

)SUE JOHNSTON and ROBLEY W.
JOHNSTON,  ) 
   ) 

Petitioners, )
   ) 
 vs.  ) 
   ) 
CITY OF ALBANY, LUBA No. 97-076)
   ) 

FINAL OPINIONRespondent, )
   AND ORDER)
 and  ) 
   ) 
RICHARD B. LEFOR, JACQUELINE O. )
LEFOR, DAVID KRAEMER, and )
THORNTON COFFEY, dba PERIWINKLE  ) 
PARK PARTNERSHIP, ) 
   ) 
  Intervenors-Respondent. ) 
 
 
 Appeal from City of Albany. 
 
 Corinne C. Sherton, Salem, filed the petition for review 
and argued on behalf of petitioners.  With her on the brief 
was Johnson Kloos & Sherton. 
 
 No appearance by respondent. 
 
 David Hilgemann, Salem, filed the response brief and 
argued on behalf of intervenors-respondent.  With him on the 
brief was Graves & Hilgemann. 
 

HANNA,Judge;LawAdministrativeLIVINGSTON,
Administrative Law Judge, participated in the decision. 
 
  REMANDED 01/13/98 
 

this Order.review ofjudicialtoYou are entitled
Judicial review is governed by the provisions of ORS 197.850. 

Page 1 

ATTACHMENT 5

141



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 Opinion by Livingston. 

NATURE OF THE DECISION 

 Petitioners appeal a decision by the city planning staff 

to approve a site plan review application for a 68-unit 

manufactured home park. 

MOTION TO INTERVENE 

 Richard B. LeFlor, Jacqueline O. LeFlor, David Kraemer 

and Thornton Coffey, dba Periwinkle Park Partnership 

(intervenors), move to intervene on the side of respondent.  

There is no opposition to the motion, and it is allowed. 

FACTS 

 Intervenors seek to establish a 68-unit manufactured home 

park on a site zoned Residential Single Family District (RS-

6.5).  The precise size of the site is in dispute; it is 

approximately 10 acres.  The subject property is bordered to 

the north by Grand Prairie Road, and to the south by 

Periwinkle Creek.  Under Albany Development Code (ADC) 3.050, 

manufactured home parks are permitted in an RS-6.5 zone 

subject to site plan review.   

 Intervenors submitted their original site plan review 

application on July 29, 1996.  Record 306.  After a comment 

period, and in response to issues raised by neighboring 

property owners, intervenors submitted a revised site plan on 

December 2, 1996, and a second revised site plan on February 

18, 1997.  Record Exhibits B, D.  The city mailed notice to 

neighboring property owners on February 21, 1997, providing a 

Page 2 

142



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 
16 
17 
18 
19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

14-day comment period that closed on March 7, 1997.  Record 

120.  The city planning division issued its decision approving 

intervenors' application, with conditions, on March 31, 1997.  

Record 5.  On April 4, 1997, the city issued an amended notice 

of decision, including an additional finding of fact and 

condition of approval regarding storm drainage.  Record 1. 

 This appeal followed. 

FIRST ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR 

 Petitioners contend that the city failed to comply with 

an applicable provision of the city's land use regulations by 

acting on an application that includes property not owned by 

the applicants.  Petitioners argue that the city's decision 

violates ADC 1.203(2), which requires that a land use 

application shall include a   

"[s]igned statement indicating that the property 
affected by the application is in the exclusive 
ownership or control of the applicant, or that the 
applicant has the consent of all partners in 
ownership of the affected property."   

 A.  Tax Lot 115 

 The proposed manufactured home park includes all or 

portions of five tax lots, which are numbered 100, 102, 103, 

113, and 115.  Record 18; Record Exhibit H.  Tax lot 115 is 

located on the northern edge of the subject property, and is 

owned by Larry and Linda Klinefelter.  The eastern half of tax 

lot 115 contains a house owned and occupied by the 

Klinefelters; the western half contains a septic system and 

drain field for that house.  The western half of tax lot 115 

Page 3 

143



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

is included as part of the proposed manufactured home park in 

the application approved by the city. 

 Petitioners contend that intervenors failed to obtain the 

necessary consent of the Klinefelters to include the western 

half of tax lot 115 in the development application.  

Petitioners point to a letter in the record from the 

Klinefelters to the city planner in which they raise numerous 

objections to the application.  Record 82-83.   

 Regarding the ownership of the western portion of tax lot 

115, the findings set forth in the staff report state: 

"Tax Lot 115 is subject to the terms and provisions 
of a 1976 agreement * * *.  In that agreement, a 
former owner had agreed to convey the western 
portion of the property in exchange for connection 
to city services when available.  This agreement has 
not been challenged by any party, and accordingly 
the portion of TL 115 has been included in the 
subject property, the 1976 agreement serving as 
consent to the application."  Record 19.   

 The 1976 agreement was entered into by the Easdales and 

the Wingos, when tax lot 115 was conveyed by the Easdales to 

the Wingos.  Under the agreement, the Wingos took title to 

both the eastern portion of tax lot 115, containing the house, 

and to the western portion, containing the drain field.  

However, the agreement provides that the Wingos, or their 

successors in interest, must reconvey the western portion of 

the property back to the Easdales, or to their successors in 

interest, within six months after the city provides an 

available sewer connection to the property.  Record 43-46.  

The Klinefelters purchased tax lot 115 subject to the 1976 

Page 4 

144



agreement. 1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

                    

 Petitioners contend that the 1976 agreement, standing 

alone, does not provide evidentiary support for the city's 

finding that the requisite consent has been obtained under ADC 

1.203(2).  We agree.  The 1976 agreement requires that the 

Klinefelters must connect to the city sewer system within six 

months after the city makes connection to a sewer line in an 

adjoining street or sewer easement available.  Record 45.  

Only after the connection with the sewer line is made and the 

existing septic system is abandoned must the Klinefelters 

reconvey the western portion of tax lot 115 back to the 

sellers.  Record 46.  Until that time, under the terms of the 

agreement, the Klinefelters retain full control and possession 

of tax lot 115 in its entirety.  Under ADC 1.203(2), no 

portion of that property can be included in a development 

application without a signed statement indicating that 

intervenor has obtained the consent of the Klinefelters.  The 

record contains no such signed statement.  The city's 

determination that the mere existence of the 1976 agreement 

establishes the requisite consent to the application was in 

error.1

 

1The copy of the 1976 agreement in the record before this Board contains 
only the signatures of the Easdales, and not the signatures of the Wingos, 
who are the Klinefelters' predecessors in interest.  Record 46.  
Petitioners argue that the agreement is therefore unenforceable.  If there 
is no version of the 1976 agreement that contains the signatures of the 
Wingos, petitioners may be correct.  See, e.g., Martin v. Allbritton, 124 
Or App 345, 349, 862 P2d 569 (1993).  However, since we conclude that even 
if the agreement were enforceable, it would not constitute consent, we need 
not reach petitioners' argument that the agreement is not enforceable. 

Page 5 

145



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 

31 
32 
33 

 Intervenors contend that petitioners do not have standing 

to raise an objection based on the lack of consent from the 

Klinefelters, because only the Klinefelters can raise this 

issue.  Intervenors are incorrect.  Petitioners appeared 

below, and are entitled to challenge the city's conclusion 

that the consent requirement of ADC 1.203(2) is satisfied by 

the terms of the 1976 agreement.  Although petitioners are not 

parties to the 1976 agreement, petitioners have standing to 

challenge the city's reliance on that agreement to satisfy an 

applicable approval criterion. 

 This subassignment of error is sustained. 

 B.  Tax Lots 100 and 113 

 Petitioners contend that the city's decision violates ADC 

1.203(2) because there is no evidence in the record that a 

city official with authority to do so consented to the 

inclusion of city-owned portions of tax lots 100 and 113 in 

the subject application.  Regarding the ownership of tax lots 

100 and 113, the staff report states: 

"The ownership of a portion of TL 100 over 
Periwinkle Creek became an issue when it was 
discovered in early January 1997 that the City of 
Albany had apparently received title in 1975 (Linn 
County Vol 113, Page 116) but a closer examination 
of the legal description disclosed an incorrect 
bearing that the applicant was willing to contest.  
The chain of title could not be resolved without 
litigation.  In lieu of litigation, the City agreed 
to consent to the application due to the clouded 
ownership interest of a portion of TL 100 in 
exchange for other consideration. 

"* * * The applicant negotiated with the City for 
the acquisition of Tax Lot 113.  The City agreed to 
release a portion of TL 113 in exchange for other 

Page 6 

146



1 
2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

consideration and consented to the application."  
Record 18-19.  

 Petitioners argue that the record contains only 

statements by city planning division staff that the city has 

agreed to allow certain city-owned portions of tax lots 100 

and 113 to be included in the application, and that  

"[t]here are no actual documents in the record, 
signed by a city official with responsibility for 
the City's proprietary interests in real property, 
allowing the City's portions of Tax Lots 113 and 100 
to be included in a private manufactured home park."  
Petition for Review 10-11.   

 We agree.  ADC 1.203(2) requires a "[s]igned statement 

indicating that * * * the applicant has the consent of all 

partners in ownership of the affected property."  Intervenors 

point to the above-quoted findings set forth in the city staff 

report as evidence that the city consented to the application.  

However, the city's findings, which were issued as part of the 

final decision, do not constitute substantial evidence in the 

record supporting that decision.   

 Intervenors also argue that there is "ample evidence that 

duly authorized representatives of [the city] consented to the 

inclusion" of city-owned portions of tax lots 100 and 113.  

Response Brief 9.  First, we note that even if intervenors are 

correct, the applicable criterion is not satisfied.  ADC 

1.203(2) requires that a land use application must include the 

signed statement of the applicant, indicating that the 

applicant either owns the property or has obtained the consent 

of those who do.  Aside from the above-quoted findings, 

Page 7 

147



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 
22 
23 
24 
25 

26 

27 

28 

intervenors point only to a letter from an associate city 

planner to intervenors stating that "the city has consented" 

to including portions of the tax lots at issue as part of the 

application.  Record 59.  However, that letter is dated March 

11, 1997, which is one day after the close of the record, and 

even if the letter had been included in the record, the 

planners' statement would not satisfy ADC 1.203(2).   

 This subassignment of error is sustained. 

 The first assignment of error is sustained. 

SECOND ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR 

 Petitioners contend that the city failed to comply with 

provisions of the city's land use regulations applicable to 

manufactured home park applications containing land within a 

floodplain district.  Specifically, petitioners argue that, 

under applicable code provisions, the city was required to 

process intervenors' application using a "Type III" process, 

and that its failure to provide a required public hearing 

prejudiced petitioners' substantial rights.   

 ADC 6.080 provides that the city's floodplain district 

regulations, which are set forth in ADC 6.070 to 6.170, apply 

"to all areas within the City of Albany that are 
subject to inundation from a 100-year flood.  These 
areas are depicted on federal Flood Insurance Rate 
Maps (FIRMs) and Floodway Maps by the letter A, AE, 
or AO."    

In its decision, the city concludes that, under the applicable 

FIRMs, "for the stretch of Periwinkle Creek that flows through 

the subject property, Zone A is contained within the channel 

Page 8 

148



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 
6 
7 

of the creek on the subject property."  Record 30-31.  

Specific regulations set forth at ADC 6.131 apply to 

manufactured home parks that are planned in a floodplain 

district: 

"Manufactured home parks and manufactured home 
subdivisions proposed in the floodplain district 
shall be reviewed by the Planning Division.  
Notwithstanding other provisions of this code, all 8 

9 manufactured home park and subdivision applications 
10 which contain land within the floodplain district 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 

39 

shall be processed under a Type III process.  In 
addition to the general review criteria applicable 
to manufactured home parks and subdivisions in 
Article 10, application for such within the 
floodplain district shall include an evacuation plan 
indicating alternate vehicular access and escape 
routes."  (Emphasis added). 

 Notwithstanding its determination that the subject 

property contains Zone A land that is subject to inundation by 

a 100-year flood, the findings adopted by the city conclude 

that the provisions of ADC 6.131 relating to manufactured home 

parks in floodplain districts do not apply because there will 

be no homes placed in the floodplain area:  

"The proposed development will be reasonably safe 
from flooding because that portion of the subject 
property within Periwinkle Creek that has been 
identified as a flood hazard area, Zone A, has been 
excluded from the proposed development and set aside 
for open/ recreational space.  The flood hazard area 
will not be improved for the proposed development.  
All manufactured homes will be sited on the portion 
of the property outside the flood hazard area and 
access to the proposed development will not be 
impeded by the flood hazard area.  Therefore, the 
provisions for flood plain land use [ADC 6.070-
6.160], and particularly a manufactured home 
development [ADC 6.131], are not applicable to this 
request."  Record 31.  (Bracketed text in original.) 

 Petitioners argue, and we agree, that the above-quoted 

Page 9 

149



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

findings fail to establish that the subject application does 

not "contain land within the floodplain district," which is 

the sole criterion for whether the provisions of ADC 6.131 

apply.  Further, the city's finding that "[t]he flood hazard 

area will not be improved for the proposed development" cannot 

be reconciled with the conditions of approval imposed by the 

city that require intervenors to construct a 10-foot wide 

paved bicycle/pedestrian path and an access ramp within the 

flood hazard area.  Record 7-8.   

 We conclude that the city's decision does not comply with 

applicable provisions of the floodplain regulations set forth 

in ADC 6.070 to 6.170, and that the decision must be remanded 

for application of those provisions, and for any applicable 

Type III procedures required by ADC 6.131.  See Venable v. 14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

City of Albany, 149 Or App 274, ___ P2d ___ (1997).   

 The second assignment of error is sustained. 

THIRD ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR 

A. Access to Evidence 

 Petitioners contend that during the course of the 

proceedings below, they were improperly denied access to 

certain documents related to the proposed mobile home park 

that were submitted to the city planning staff prior to the 

date the original application was filed.  In response, 

intervenors submit two affidavits of city staff who state that 

petitioners were informed that any documents submitted to the 

city by intervenors prior to the application date should not 

Page 10 

150



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

be considered part of the application file.  However, 

according to intervenors and the city staff affidavits, 

petitioners were never denied access to the entire file, 

including the pre-application documents, and in fact had 

regular access to the entire file.  Based on the affidavits 

submitted by both parties, we agree with intervenors. 

 This subassignment of error is denied. 

B. Acceptance of Evidence after Close of Comment Period 

 Petitioners assert that the city improperly accepted 

evidence from intervenors after the close of the final comment 

period on March 7, 1997.  Petitioners point to four documents 

in the record that were received by the planning division 

after March 7, 1997, and which were specifically relied upon 

by the city in making the challenged decision.  Among those 

documents is the 1976 agreement on which the city based its 

determination that the applicant had satisfied the "consent" 

requirement of ADC 1.203(2), and which is the subject of 

petitioners' first assignment of error.  That document, along 

with an attached warranty deed, was received by the county on 

March 21, 1997.  Record 43.  According to petitioners, they 

had no knowledge that those documents had been placed before 

the decision maker until after the challenged decision was 

issued on March 31, 1997.  Petition for Review 20.   

 Intervenors respond that petitioners were not prejudiced 

by this "procedural error" because they were generally aware 

of the issues discussed in the disputed documents and were 

Page 11 

151



able to raise arguments regarding those issues earlier in the 

proceedings before the city.  Regarding the 1976 agreement and 

warranty deed, intervenors assert that because petitioners 

were able to include extensive argument regarding those 

documents in their brief before this Board, they were not 

prejudiced in the proceedings below.  Intervenors' arguments 

are without merit.  Where the city closes the 14-day comment 

period required for a limited land use decision under ORS 

197.195(3)(c)(A), but continues to accept additional evidence 

from intervenors after the close of the 14-day period, the 

city violates ORS 197.195(3)(c)(F) and ADC 1.330(4)(f).  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

Azevedo v. City of Albany, 29 Or LUBA 516, 520 (1995). 12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 

29 

30 

 This subassignment of error is sustained. 

 The third assignment of error is sustained, in part. 

FOURTH ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR 

 Petitioners contend that the city's findings regarding 

the acreage of the proposed manufactured home park and the 

related findings regarding the density of the proposed park 

are not supported by substantial evidence in the record.  The 

findings adopted by the city state:  

"1.2 The proposed development meets the minimum area 
requirement for a manufactured home park 
because the subject property is approximately 
10.5 acres as calculated from Linn County 
Assessor's records:  Tax Lot 100, 5.7 acres; 
Tax Lot 102, 2.28 acres; Tax Lot 103, 1.53 
acres; a portion of Tax Lot 113, 0.4 acres; and 
a portion of Tax Lot 115, 0.5 acres. 

"* * * * * 

"1.3 The proposed 68-space development complies with 

Page 12 

152



1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

the density standard for a manufactured home 
park because the 10.5-acre park area divided by 
the 6,500 square foot minimum lot area of the 
RS-6.5 zone yields a maximum of 70 spaces.  The 
resulting density is 6.5 spaces per acre."  
Record 20. 

 This Board is authorized to reverse or remand a 

challenged limited land use decision if it is "not supported 

by substantial evidence in the record."  ORS 197.828(2)(a).  

Where petitioners challenge the evidentiary support for 

findings addressing an applicable approval standard, and no 

party cites any evidence in the record to support such 

findings, the challenged decision must be remanded.  Neuman v. 13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

City of Albany, 28 Or LUBA 337, 346 (1994).   

 Petitioners are correct that the above-quoted findings 

regarding park size and density are not supported by 

substantial evidence in the record.  Intervenors do not point 

to any evidence in the record supporting the city's conclusion 

that the proposed park will be 10.5 acres in size.

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

                    

2  Rather, 

intervenors rely exclusively on findings prepared by the 

staff, which were not available until after the expiration of 

the period for the submission of comments and evidence.  The 

staff findings state that the acreage determination is based 

 

2The second notice of filing mailed by city planning staff states the 
size of the proposed park as 12.11 acres.  Record 181, 197.  The third 
notice of filing states the acreage as 10.88 acres.  Record 120.  The 
record also contains a February 26, 1997 letter from intervenors' own 
engineer, stating his conclusion, based on a review of the site plan, that 
"the total area within the park boundary is 9.68 acres."  Record 105.  The 
February 26, 1997 letter responds to a February 24, 1997 memorandum from a 
city planner that expresses concerns about the south property line of the 
subject property and the boundaries of tax lots 100 and 115.  Record 110.  
This is the extent of the evidence in the record to which we are directed 
regarding the acreage of the proposed park.  

Page 13 

153



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

on the county assessor's records.  However, the data from the 

county assessor is not in the record.  Because the city's 

findings regarding the acreage of the proposed park are not 

supported by substantial evidence in the record, the 

corresponding findings regarding the density standards set 

forth in ADC 10.220 are also defective. 

 The fourth assignment of error is sustained. 

FIFTH ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR 

 Petitioners contend that the challenged decision does not 

comply with applicable standards regarding landscaping and 

maintenance of common outdoor space.  According to 

petitioners, the decision fails to satisfy ADC 10.390, which 

provides, in relevant part: 

"Landscaping.  All common areas within a 
manufactured home park -- exclusive of required 
buffer areas, buildings and roadways -- shall be 
landscaped and maintained in accordance with the 
following minimum standards per each 1,000 square 
feet of open area.   

14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 

20 

21 

22 
23 
24 
25 

26 

27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 

"(1) One tree at least six feet in height. 

"(2) Five shrubs or accent plants. 

"(3) The remaining area containing walkways and 
attractive ground cover at least 50% of which 
must be living ground cover within one year of 
planting." 

 The city's decision states: 

"The only common area shown on the site plan is the 
open/recreation space over Periwinkle Creek.  As 
noted under the recreation area standard * * *, the 
open/recreation space over Periwinkle Creek will 
remain in a natural condition without landscaping, 
which would increase the difficulty of creek 
maintenance and increase the flood hazard associated 
with the creek.  This area will be maintained in its 

Page 14 

154



1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

natural condition with the exception of the 
construction of a pedestrian/bicycle path located on 
the north side of the stream, and also with the 
exception of periodic maintenance to maintain 
adequate stream flow.  For this reason, the standard 
[of ADC 10.390] does not apply."  Record 24.  

 Petitioners argue that the standards set forth in ADC 

10.390 do not provide an exception from the landscape 

requirements for manufactured home parks where the common 

areas are located in a floodplain.  Petitioners point out that 

the only areas that are excepted from the common space 

landscaping requirements of ADC 10.390 are required buffers, 

buildings, or roadways, none of which are present in this 

instance.   

 Intervenors respond that the pedestrian/bicycle path 

located in the identified common area fits within the ADC 

10.390 exception for roadways.  According to intervenors, the 

city's decision  

"recognizes that the open/recreation space contains 
a bicycle path/maintenance roadway which must be 
kept clear of landscaping and other development to 
facilitate periodic maintenance of the banks of 
Periwinkle Creek to maintain adequate stream flows."  
Response Brief 20. 

Intervenors maintain that the city correctly concluded that 

the requirements of ADC 10.390 do not apply to intervenors' 

application. 

 We disagree.  The challenged decision does not include 

findings that the "required roadway" exception to the ADC 

10.390 landscaping requirements applies to the Periwinkle 

Creek common area as a result of the bicycle/pedestrian path.  

Page 15 

155



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

Rather, the findings state that ADC 10.390 does not apply 

because landscaping around the creek "would increase the 

difficulty of creek maintenance and increase the flood hazard 

associated with the creek."  Record 24.  Although this 

conclusion may be correct, the city's decision does not 

suggest that this site fits any exception to the requirements 

set forth in ADC 10.390 regarding landscaping of common areas 

in manufactured home parks. 

 The fifth assignment of error is sustained. 

SIXTH ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR 

 Petitioners contend that the challenged decision does not 

comply with applicable site plan review standards regarding 

the compatibility of design and operating characteristics of 

the proposed manufactured home park with surrounding 

development and land uses.  Petitioners argue that the city's 

decision fails to demonstrate compliance with ADC 8.070(3), 

which provides: 

"Review Criteria.  A site plan approval will be 
granted if the review body finds that the applicant 
has met all of the following criteria which are 
applicable to the proposed development. 

18 
19 
20 
21 

22 

23 
24 
25 
26 
27 

28 

29 

30 

"* * * * * 

"(3) The design and operating characteristics of the 
proposed development are reasonably compatible 
with surrounding development and land uses, and 
any negative impacts have been sufficiently 
minimized." 

 Petitioners argue that the findings adopted by the city 

fail to adequately identify the physical characteristics of 

the surrounding development and the proposed development, and 

Page 16 

156



1 

2 

3 

4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

therefore fail to make the required assessment regarding 

compatibility.  Intervenors respond that, in its final 

decision, the city 

"carefully considered each of the four review 
criteria set forth in ADC 8.070, and summarized its 
analysis, findings, and conclusions at length in its 
Staff Report.  In conducting its review, [the city] 
incorporated conditions of approval into its 
decision in order to minimize any negative impacts 
of the proposed development."  Response Brief 22. 

 The findings describe past and present development 

patterns in the area surrounding the subject property.  These 

development patterns are considered in the evaluation of the 

physical design of the proposed development, including 

building placement, setbacks, parking areas, external storage 

areas, open areas and landscaping.  Record 32-33.  The 

findings adequately address ADC 8.070(3). 

 The sixth assignment of error is denied. 

 The city's decision is remanded. 

Page 17 

157



Agenda Item No:V.B

Planning Commission Agenda Item Report
Meeting Date: April 14, 2022
Submitted by: Doug Rux
Submitting Department: Community Development  
Item Type: PC QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC  HEARING
Agenda Section: 

Subject:
Conditional use permit approval to use a single-family dwelling as
a vacation rental home

Suggested Action:
Adopt Planning Commission Order 2022-05.

Attachments:
CUP22-0003 2035 N Heritage Way w Attachments.pdf

158

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1318153/CUP22-0003_2035_N_Heritage_Way_w_Attachments.pdf


                                      

Community Development 
 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

VACATION RENTAL CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT  

2035 N Heritage Way 

  

HEARING DATE:  April 14, 2022 

FILE NO:   CUP22-0003 

REQUEST:  Conditional use permit approval to use a single-family dwelling as 

a vacation rental home 

LOCATION:  2035 N Heritage Way 

TAX LOT:  R3218AB 01211 

APPLICANT/OWNER: Todd and Melissa Nelson 

ZONE:  R-2 (Medium Density Residential) 

PLAN DISTRICT:  MDR (Medium Density Residential) 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Planning Commission Order 2022-05 with: 

 

Exhibit A:  Findings 

Exhibit B:  Conditions of Approval 

Attachment 1: Application 

Attachment 2: Agency Comments 

Attachment 3: Public Comments 

 
 
  

159



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

A. DESCRIPTION OF APPLICATION: The applicant is requesting Conditional Use 

Permit (CUP) approval to use an existing three-bedroom home as a vacation rental 

located at 2035 N Heritage Way. The use as a vacation rental would provide 

accommodations to families and travelers that want to experience wine country and will 

be occupied by the owners part time. The applicant has stated that two off-street parking 

spaces will be available in the driveway with two additional spaces in the garage for use 

by short-term tenants. The subject property is zoned R-2 (Medium Density Residential). 

Attachment 1 contains the submitted application. 

B. LOCATION: 2035 N Heritage Way 

 

C. SITE INFORMATION: 

1. Location: 2035 N Heritage Way 

2. Total Lot Size: 5,414 square feet 

3. Topography: Slight grade from the backyard to the front  

4. Current Land Uses: Single family residential  

5. Natural Features: None 

6. Adjacent Land Uses:  

160



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

a. North: Single-family residential 

b. South: Single-family residential 

c. East: Single-family residential 

d. West: Single-family residential 

 

7. Zoning: 

a. North: R-2 (Medium Density Residential) 

b. South: R-2 (Medium Density Residential) 

c. East: R-2 (Medium Density Residential) 

d. West: R-2 (Medium Density Residential) 

 

8. Access and Transportation: Access to the vacation rental will occur via N 

Heritage Way. N Heritage Way is classified as a local residential street in the 

City’s Interactive Planning Map. N Heritage Way is a paved road.  

9. Utilities: 

Water:  The City’s GIS illustrates an 8-inch water main in N Heritage Way with 

an existing service lateral to the property.  

 

Wastewater: The City’s GIS illustrates an 8-inch wastewater line in N Heritage 

Way with an existing service lateral to the property. 

 

Stormwater: The City’s GIS illustrates a storm collector system drains into the 

gutter and then into the City’s stormwater system. 
 

Overhead Lines: Any new overhead utility connections to the property must be 

undergrounded. See NMC 15.430.010 for exception provisions.   
 

D. PROCESS: This Conditional Use Permit request is a Type III application and follows 

the procedures in Newberg Development Code 15.100.050. The Planning Commission 

will hold a quasi-judicial public hearing on the application. The Commission will make a 

decision on the application based on the criteria listed in the attached findings. The 

Planning Commission’s decision is final unless appealed. Important dates related to this 

application are as follows: 

2/23/22: The Community Development Director deemed the application 

161



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

complete.  

3/7/22: The applicant mailed notice to the property owners within 500 feet 

of the site. 

3/23/22: The Newberg Graphic published notice of the Planning 

Commission hearing and notice was posted in four public places. 

4/4/22: The applicant posted notice on the site.  

4/14/22: The Planning Commission will hold a quasi-judicial public hearing 

to consider the application. 

E. AGENCY COMMENTS: The application was routed to several public agencies and 

City departments for review and comment. Comments and recommendations from City 

departments have been incorporated into the findings and conditions of approval. As of 

the writing of this report, the City received the following responses from the following 

referral agencies (Attachment 2): 

 

 City Manager: Reviewed, no conflict 

 

 Ziply: Reviewed, no conflict 

 

 Finance: Reviewed, no conflict 

 

 Police: Reviewed, no conflict 

 

 Public Works Maintenance: Reviewed, no conflict 

 

 Public Works Maintenance Superintendent: Reviewed, no conflict 

 

 Public Works Director: Reviewed, no conflict 

 

 Public Works Maintenance Supervisor: Reviewed, no conflict 

  

 Public Works Engineering: Reviewed, no conflict 

 

 Building Official: Reviewed, no conflict 

 

F. PUBLIC COMMENTS: As of the writing of this report, the City has received no public 

comments on the proposal.   

 
G. ANALYSIS: The proposed vacation rental is compatible with the surrounding residential 

uses and neighborhood due to its size and scope. The characteristics of a vacation rental 

162



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

are not dissimilar to other rented and owned dwellings. The location of the proposed 
vacation rental is convenient and attractive for visitors to downtown, George Fox 
University, and surrounding tourist attractions to Newberg.  

 
The maximum occupancy is regulated by the number of bedrooms – two guests per 
bedroom. Therefore, the maximum number of guests is six (6) in the house based on the 
current 3-bedrooms in the home. There are two off-street parking spaces in the 
driveway for short term guests provided on the subject property.  
 

H. PRELIMINARY STAFF RECOMMENDATION: The preliminary staff recommendation is 
made in the absence of public hearing testimony and may be modified after the close of 
the public hearing. At the time this report was drafted, staff recommends the following 
motion: 

 
Move to adopt Planning Commission Order 2022-05, which approves the requested conditional 

use permit with the attached conditions of approval in Exhibit “B”. 
  

163



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

   PLANNING COMMISSION ORDER 2022-05 

 AN ORDER APPROVING CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT CUP22-0003 FOR A 

VACATION RENTAL HOME AT 2035 N HERITAGE WAY, YAMHILL 

COUNTY TAX LOT R3218DD 05800 

RECITALS 

1. Todd and Melissa Nelson applied for a conditional use permit for a vacation rental home 

at 2035 N Heritage Way, Yamhill County Tax Lot R3218DD 05800. 

2. After proper notice, the Newberg Planning Commission held a public hearing on April 

14, 2022, to consider the application. The Commission considered testimony and 

deliberated. 

3. The Newberg Planning Commission finds that the application, as conditioned in Exhibit 

“B”, meets the applicable Newberg Municipal Code criteria as shown in the findings in 

Exhibit “A”. 

The Newberg Planning Commission orders as follows: 

1. Conditional Use Permit Application CUP22-0003 is hereby approved, subject to the 

conditions contained in Exhibit “B”. Exhibit “B” is hereby adopted and by this reference 

incorporated. 

2. The findings shown in Exhibit “A” are hereby adopted. Exhibit “A” is hereby adopted 

and by this reference incorporated. 

3. This order shall be effective on April 28, 2022, unless appealed prior to this date. 

4. This order shall expire one year after the effective date above if the applicant does not 

commence use of the home as a vacation rental unless an extension is granted per 

Newberg Development Code 15.225.100. 

Adopted by the Newberg Planning Commission this 14th day of April 2022.  

ATTEST: 

 

 

Planning Commission Chair Planning Commission 

Secretary 

164



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

List of Exhibits: 

 Exhibit “A”: Findings  

 Exhibit “B”: Conditions of Approval 

 
  

165



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Exhibit “A” to Planning Commission Order 2022-05 

Findings – File CUP22-0003 

Vacation Rental at 2035 N Heritage Way 

A. Conditional Use Permit Criteria That Apply - Newberg Development Code 

15.225.060. 

A. The location, size, design and operating characteristics of the proposed 

development are such that it can be made reasonably compatible with 

and have minimal impact on the livability or appropriate development of 

abutting properties and the surrounding neighborhood, with 

consideration to be given to harmony in scale, bulk, coverage and 

density; to the availability of public facilities and utilities; to the 

generation of traffic and the capacity of surrounding streets, and to any 

other relevant impact of the development. 

Finding:  The vacation rental would be in an existing three-bedroom, single-family dwelling in a 

neighborhood northwest of Downtown Newberg. The property owners are planning to use the 

dwelling as a short-term vacation rental for families, travelers, and to occupy the property part-

time. The site landscaping, maintenance, and management will be managed by a property 

management group (Lifestyle Properties).  

The proposed vacation rental use is similar to a regular residential use in design and operating 

characteristics. The home has three bedrooms so a maximum of six renters would be allowed to 

occupy the home. Two off-street parking spaces are provided on the property with two more 

available in the garage. The owner is conditioned to keep at least two off-street parking spaces 

available for of vacation rental guests. Single-family R-2 zoned properties are located to the 

north, south, east, and west of the subject property. The subject property is zoned R-2. A 

vacation rental use is compatible with the surrounding residential neighborhood and would 

effectively function no differently than the existing residential uses in the surrounding area. This 

criterion is met. 

 

B. The location, design, and site planning of the proposed development will 

provide a convenient and functional living, working, shopping or civic 

environment, and will be as attractive as the nature of the use and its 

location and setting warrants. 

Finding: The location of the dwelling is attractive for a vacation rental due to its proximity to 

downtown Newberg. The downtown area is just over a mile to the south. The home is well 

maintained and has recent improvements as noted in the application material. A vacation rental is 

a compatible use with other residential uses because it is similar in size and scope to a long-term 

rented (longer than 30-days) or owned dwelling. This criterion is met. 

C. The proposed development will be consistent with this code. 

166



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Finding: The vacation rental standards are addressed in findings below; if the development 

complies with the standards of NMC Section 15.445.300, the application will be consistent with 

code requirements.  
 

B. Applicable Criteria - NMC 15.445.300 Vacation Rental Homes 

15.445.310 Where allowed.  

Vacation rental homes are permitted in areas shown on Chapter 15.305 NMC. 

The vacation rental home must be a structure approved for occupancy as 

a single-family dwelling unit.  

Finding: The subject property is zoned R-2. The table below is an excerpt from Chapter 15.305 

of the NMC, which states vacation rental homes are permitted as a conditional use in the R-2 

zone. The owner has applied for conditional use permit approval for the proposed vacation rental 

home. The structure was previously approved for occupancy as a single-family dwelling unit.  

Use R-1 R-2 R-3 R-4 RP C-1 C-2 C-3 

Vacation rental 

home 

C C C S S S(13) S(13) S(13) 

 

This criterion is met. 

 

15.445.320 Registration required. 

Prior to use or advertising for use of a dwelling as a vacation rental home, 

the owner or operator shall register the vacation rental home with the city on 

forms provided by the director. The registration shall include such information 

required by the director, including the name and contact information for 

the owner, operator and a local contact.  

Finding: As required by NMC 15.445.320, prior to the use of the home as a vacation rental the 

owner or applicant will be required to register the vacation rental home with the City and will be 

required to pay the transient lodging tax. This criterion will be met with the adherence to the 

aforementioned condition of approval. 

15.445.330 Standards. 

A. The vacation rental home shall provide a minimum of two parking spaces on 

the site that are available for use of the rental occupants. 

B. The applicant shall provide for regular refuse collection. 

C. The vacation rental home may not be occupied by more than two rental 

occupants per bedroom, up to a maximum of 15 people. 

D. The premises of the vacation rental home may not include any 

occupied recreational vehicle, trailer, tent or temporary shelter during the 

167

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=291.1
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15305.html#15.305
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=291.1
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=273
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=104
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=291.1
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=291.1
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=101
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=291.1
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=291.1
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=291.1
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=222
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=291.1
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=291.1
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=241
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=285


 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

rental occupancy.  

Finding: The proposed vacation rental would be in an existing three-bedroom single-family 

dwelling. There are two off-street parking spaces available on the existing driveway and an 

additional two in the garage. The applicant will be responsible for providing for regular refuse 

collection and has indicated that service is currently set up with Waste Management. Prior to the 

use of the home as a vacation rental, the property must be enrolled in regular weekly refuse 

collection services, in order to comply with this Section of the NMC. The home has three 

bedrooms; therefore, the maximum number of guests is limited to six (6). Guest contracts shall 

not allow recreational vehicles, trailers, tents, or temporary shelters during the rental occupancy. 

The owner is conditioned to keep at least two off-street parking spaces available for use of 

vacation rental guests. The owner has proposed at least two off-street parking spaces. These 

criteria are met with the adherence to the aforementioned conditions of approval. 

15.445.340 Registration posting. 

The applicant shall post the vacation rental home registration within 

the dwelling adjacent to the front door. At a minimum, the posting will contain the 

following information: 

A. The name of the operator and a telephone number where the operator may be 

reached. 

B. The telephone number for the police department. 

C. The maximum number of occupants permitted to stay in the dwelling. 

D. The standards for the rental occupancy. 

E. The solid waste collection day. 

Finding: The applicant has acknowledged the requirements listed in NMC Section 15.445.340 

and has stated that they will comply with these requirements. Prior to the use of the home as a 

vacation rental and during the use of the home as a vacation rental, the applicant is required to 

post the required information for NMC 15.445.040(A-E) by the front door of the vacation rental.  

Operator Name: Todd and Melissa Nelson 

Phone Number: (480) 250-6307 

In the event of an emergency, call: 911 | Non-Emergency Police #: (503) 538-

8321 

Max Number of Guests: six (6) 

Trash Pick-Up Day: Monday 

City of Newberg Vacation Rental Standards: 

• Each vacation rental home shall provide a minimum of two parking 

spaces on the site that are available for use of the rental occupants. 

• The applicant shall provide for regular refuse collection. 

• The vacation rental home may not be occupied by more than two rental 

occupants per bedroom, up to a maximum of 6 people.  

168



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

• The premises of the vacation rental home may not include any 

occupied recreational vehicle, trailer, tent, or temporary shelter during the 

rental occupancy.  

 

The requirements of Section 15.445.040 will be met with the adherence to the aforementioned 

conditions of approval. 

15.445.350 Complaints and revocation of registration. 

If the city receives two or more written complaints within a one-year period 

regarding a vacation rental home occupancy, and the issues have not been 

resolved through the code enforcement officer, the city manager may schedule 

a hearing to consider revoking the vacation rental home registration. 

The hearing may be conducted by the city manager, or other such hearings 

officer as the city manager may appoint for this purpose. The city manager shall 

notify the owner and operator of the hearing, those submitting written 

complaints, and may invite others to submit testimony at the hearing. 

After hearing the facts, the city manager may do any of the following: 

A. Revoke the registration for noncompliance with the standards in this section. 

If this permit is revoked, the premises may not be used as a vacation rental 

home for a period of two years, or a period of lesser time as determined by 

the hearings officer. 

B. Impose additional conditions necessary to fulfill the purpose of this section. 

C. Establish a probationary period to monitor compliance. 

D. Dismiss the complaint. 

E. Refer the matter to the code enforcement officer for citation in municipal 

court or other appropriate jurisdiction. 

The hearings officer’s decision may be appealed to the planning commission by 

the applicant, owner, or person filing the written complaint within 14 calendar 

days of the date of the decision in the manner provided in NMC 15.100.170.  

Finding: The City will follow the procedures listed above in the event complaints are received 

about the vacation rental home. The applicant’s narrative acknowledges Section 15.445.050 

complaints and revocation of registration. The applicants have indicated they understand the 

potential for an approval to be revoked if the requirements for operating a vacation rental are not 

adhered to. 

C. CONCLUSION: 

Based on the above-mentioned findings, the application meets the required criteria within 

the Newberg Municipal Code, subject to completion of and adherence to the attached 

conditions of approval in Exhibit “B”.  

169

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=291.1
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=72
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=148
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=291.1
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=148
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=154
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=154
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=148
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=148
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=148
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=291.1
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=291.1
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=154
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=72
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=154
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=229
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=226
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15100.html#15.100.170


 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Exhibit “B” to Planning Commission Order 2022-05 

Conditions of Approval – File CUP22-0003 

Vacation Rental Home at 2035 N Heritage Way 

THE FOLLOWING MUST BE ACCOMPLISHED PRIOR TO USE AS A VACATION 

RENTAL AND ADHERED TO IN ORDER TO CONTINUE THE USE OF A VACATION 

RENTAL: 

1. Transient Lodging Tax: Prior to the use of the home as a vacation rental the 

owner or applicant will be required to register the vacation rental home with the 

City of Newberg and will be required to pay the transient lodging tax.  

2. Refuse Collection: Prior to the use of the home as a vacation rental, the property 

must be enrolled in regular weekly refuse collection services. 

 

3. Parking: The owner is conditioned to keep at two least off-street parking spaces 

available for use of vacation rental guests. 

 

4. Posting: Prior to the use of the home as a vacation rental and during the use of the 

home as a vacation rental, the applicant is required to post the required 

information for NMC 15.445.040(A-E) by the front door of the vacation rental.  

Operator Name: Todd and Melissa Nelson 

Phone Number: (480) 250-6307  

In the event of an emergency, call: 911 | Non-Emergency Police #: (503) 538-

8321 

Max Number of Guests: Six (6) 

Trash Pick-Up Day: Monday 

City of Newberg Vacation Rental Standards: 

• Each vacation rental home shall provide a minimum of two parking spaces 

on the site that are available for use of the rental occupants. 

• The applicant shall provide for regular refuse collection. 

• The vacation rental home may not be occupied by more than two rental 

occupants per bedroom, up to a maximum of 6 people.  

• The premises of the vacation rental home may not include any occupied 

recreational vehicle, trailer, tent, or temporary shelter during the rental 

occupancy.  

 

  

170



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Attachment 1:  Application 

 
 
  

171



CUP22-0003

172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Attachment 2:  Agency Comments 

 
 
 
  

197



198



19
9



20
0



20
1



20
2



20
3



20
4



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
LAND USE APPLICATION REFERRAL

REFERRAL TO: Ziply Fiber Attn: Engineering

The enclosed material has been referred to you for your information and comment. Any comments you
wish to make should be returned to the Community Development Department prior to: March 21. 2022.
Please refer questions and comments to Doug Rux.

NOTE: Full size plans are available at the Community Development Department Office.

APPLICANT: Todd and Melissa Nelson

REQUEST: Short Term Rental

SITE ADDRESS: 2035 N Heritage Way

LOCATION:

TAX LOT: R3218AB 01211

FILE NO:

ZONE: R-2

HEARING DATE:

Reviewed, no conflict.

Reviewed; recommend denial for the following reasons:

Require additional information to review. (Please list information required)

Meeting requested.

Comments. (Attach additional pages as needed)

Reviewed By: Date:

New berg Community Development » 414 E First Street. New berg. OR 97132 » 503-537-1240 « planning » newbergoregon.go\

CUP22-0003

20
5

saa224
Stamp

saa224
Text Box
X

saa224
Text Box
3/11/22

saa224
Text Box
Scott Albert - Network EngineerZiply Fiber



Agenda Item No:VI.A

Planning Commission Agenda Item Report
Meeting Date: April 14, 2022
Submitted by: Doug Rux
Submitting Department: Community Development  
Item Type: PC NEW BUSINESS
Agenda Section: 

Subject:
Update City of Newberg Planning Commission Participation Guidelines for consistency with NMC Chapter 2.15
Departments, Boards and Commissions

Suggested Action:
Adopt Planning Commission Resolution No. 2022-379

Attachments:
GEN22-0006 Planning Commission Participation Guidelines Update w Exhibit-Attachment.pdf

206

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1314841/GEN22-0006_Planning_Commission_Participation_Guidelines_Update_w_Exhibit-Attachment.pdf


                                      

Community Development 
 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

CITY OF NEWBERG PLANNING COMMISSION GUIDELINES AMENDMENT  

  

MEETING DATE:  April 14, 2022 

FILE NO:   GEN22-0006 

REQUEST:  Update City of Newberg Planning Commission Participation 

Guidelines for consistency with NMC Chapter 2.15 Departments, 

Boards and Commissions 

LOCATION:  N/A 

TAX LOT:  N/A 

APPLICANT/OWNER: Community Development Department 

ZONE:  N/A 

PLAN DISTRICT:  N/A 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Planning Commission Resolution No. 2022-379 with: 

 

Attachment 1: City of Newberg Planning Commission Participation Guidelines Tack 

Changes 

 

 

 

  

207



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

A. DESCRIPTION OF REQUEST: The City Council updated NMC Title 2 

Administration and Personnel, Chapter 2.15 Departments, Boards and Commissions on 

December 6, 2021. The updates were brought forward to the full City Council by a 

subcommittee on committees. The changes went into effect on January 6, 2022.   

The changes addressed removal of committee members for absenteeism, membership 

residency, terms of office, student commissioners, and election of chair and vice chair. 

The NMC changes require updates to the City of Newberg Planning Commissioner 

Participation Guidelines. 

B. ANALYSIS: The amendments to the City of Newberg Planning Commission 

Participation Guidelines occur to the following sections. 

 

SECTION 3 – PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS  

Rule 3.1 Attendance.  

The language has been modified to reflect attending 75% of the Commission meetings 

unless the absence has been excused. 

 

Rule 3.3 Report of Absences.  

The language has been modified to reflect the Community Development Director 

reporting to the Chair and City Council if a member has not met the 75% attendance 

requirement and to refill the Commission seat. 

 

Rule 3.5 Student Planning Commissioner 

The language has been modified to reflect that student commissioners can be high school 

or college students, appointments are in conformance with NMC 2.15.005, and the 

appointment term is one year. 

 

Rule 7.7 Time Limits for Testimony 

This is a general clean up to reference the Community development Director rather than 

the Planning Director. 

 

H. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: The staff recommendation is: 

 

Move to adopt Planning Commission Resolution No. 2022-379, which approves the requested 

updates to the City of Newberg Planning Commission Participation Guidelines in Exhibit “A”. 

  

208



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

   PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 2022-379 

 A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE CITY OF NEWBERG PLANNING 

COMMISSION PARTICIPATION GUIDELINES  

RECITALS 

1. The City Council adopted Ordinance No. 2021-2892 amending NMC Title 2 

Administration and Personnel, Chapter 2.15 Departments, Boards and Commissions on 

December 6, 2021. 

2. The City of Newberg Planning Commission Participation Guidelines need to be amended 

to be in alignment with Ordinance No. 2021-2892.  

3. The Newberg Planning Commission finds that the amendments are in alignment with 

Ordinance No. 2021-2892.  

The Newberg Planning Commission orders as follows: 

1. Resolution No. 2022-379 is adopted amending the City of Newberg Planning 

Commission Participation Guidelines as contained in Exhibit “A”. Exhibit “A” is hereby 

adopted and by this reference incorporated. 

Adopted by the Newberg Planning Commission this 14th day of April 2022.  

ATTEST: 

 

 

Planning Commission Chair Planning Commission 

Secretary 

List of Exhibits: 

 Exhibit “A”: City of Newberg Planning Commission Participation Guidelines 

 

  

209



 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 1 

Exhibit A 
 
 

CITY OF NEWBERG 

PLANNING 

COMMISSION 

PARTICIPATION 

GUIDELINES 

 
Adopted January 12, 2012 

Amended June 9, 2016 

Amended April 14, 2022 

 

210



 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 2 

 

NEWBERG PLANNING 

COMMISSION PARTICIPATION 

GUIDELINES  
 

Newberg planning commission members will strive to: 

 

1)  Trust and respect the opinions of fellow commission members, staff, and 

the public and actively participate in the decisions of the planning 

commission. 

 

2)  Attend all planning commission meetings. 

 

3) Notify the planning staff of an absence as soon as practical prior to the 

meeting time. 

 

4)  Make every attempt to resolve any personal conflict with a fellow planning 

commissioner prior to bringing the conflict to the attention of the planning 

commission. 

 

5)  Study material presented in a timely manner and be informed on the issues 

that come before the commission. 

 

6) Follow the commission rules. 

 

 

211



 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 3 

 

NEWBERG PLANNING 

COMMISSION 

MEETING EXPECTATIONS 
 
 

Newberg planning commission members will: 

 

1) Be courteous and respectful of citizens and create a welcoming 

environment that actively involves citizens in the governmental process. 

 

2) Communicate in clear, concise and audible verbal and written 

communications. 

 

3) Use a friendly and sincere tone of voice.  

 

4) Honor and act on all requests for action and/or information in a timely and 

courteous manner. 

 

5) Discuss issues, but not personalities, with non-commission members.   

 

6) After an issue has been voted on, commission members will speak for 

themselves carefully, in a manner that does not undermine the integrity or 

motives of the planning commission, even if their personal opinion differs 

from the planning commission’s decision.  

 

7) Vote on all motions before the commission, or explain the reasons for 

abstaining. 

212



 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 4 

 

 

 

CITY OF NEWBERG 

PLANNING 

COMISSION 

RULES  
 

 

Adopted January 12, 2012 

Amended June 9, 2016 

Amended April 14, 2022 

213



 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 5 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Table of Contents ........................................................................................................................................ 5 

SECTION 1 – AUTHORITY ...................................................................................................................... 7 

Rule 1.1 Authority of Rules ................................................................................................................ 7 

Rule 1.2 Questions about these Rules ................................................................................................. 7 

Rule 1.3 Presentation of Rules to Planning Commission Members.................................................... 7 

Rule 1.4 Amendments to Planning Commission Rules ...................................................................... 7 

SECTION 2 – GENERAL RULES ............................................................................................................. 7 

Rule 2.1 Public Meetings Law ............................................................................................................ 7 

Rule 2.2 Quorum ................................................................................................................................. 7 

Rule 2.3 Lack of Quorum .................................................................................................................... 7 

Rule 2.4 Rules of Order ....................................................................................................................... 8 

Rule 2.5 Enforcement of Rules ........................................................................................................... 8 

Rule 2.6 Suspension of Rules .............................................................................................................. 8 

Rule 2.7 Commissioners Duties to Uphold Rules and Decorum ........................................................ 8 

Rule 2.8 Removal of Any Person for Violation of Rules .................................................................... 8 

Rule 2.9 Records of Proceedings ........................................................................................................ 8 

SECTION 3 – PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS ......................................................................... 9 

Rule 3.1 Attendance ............................................................................................................................ 9 

Rule 3.2 Excused Absences................................................................................................................. 9 

Rule 3.3 Report of Absences ............................................................................................................... 9 

Rule 3.4 Mayor as Ex-Officio Member of the Planning Commission  ............................................... 9 

Rule 3.5 Student Planning Commissioner ........................................................................................... 9 

Rule 3.6 Planning Commissioner Training ......................................................................................... 9 

SECTION 4 – PRESIDING OFFICER ..................................................................................................... 10 

Rule 4.1 Chair.................................................................................................................................... 10 

Rule 4.2 Vice Chair ........................................................................................................................... 10 

Rule 4.3 Chair Pro Tem ..................................................................................................................... 10 

Rule 4.4 Election of Chair and Vice Chair ........................................................................................ 10 

SECTION 5 – PLANNING COMMISSION MEETINGS ....................................................................... 10 

Rule 5.1 Regular Meetings ................................................................................................................ 10 

Rule 5.2 Meeting Times and Places .................................................................................................. 10 

Rule 5.3 Notice of Meeting ........................................................................................................... 1011 

Rule 5.4 Special Meetings ................................................................................................................. 11 

Rule 5.5 Cancellation of Meeting...................................................................................................... 11 

SECTION 6 – AGENDAS AND ADDITIONAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION ............................. 11 

Rule 6.1 Preparation of Agenda ........................................................................................................ 11 

Rule 6.2 Non-Agenda Items .............................................................................................................. 11 

Rule 6.3 Time for Submission of Items ............................................................................................ 11 

Rule 6.4 Staff Reports ....................................................................................................................... 11 

Rule 6.5 Agenda Availability ............................................................................................................ 11 

Rule 6.6 Regular Meeting Agenda .................................................................................................... 12 

Rule 6.7 Consent Calendar ................................................................................................................ 12 

SECTION 7 – PROCEDURES AT MEETINGS ..................................................................................... 12 

Rule 7.1 Call to Order ....................................................................................................................... 12 

Rule 7.2 Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items ............................................................................. 12 

Rule 7.3 Legislative Public Hearings ............................................................................................ 1213 

214



 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 6 

Rule 7.4 Quasi-judicial Public Hearings ........................................................................................... 13 

Rule 7.5 Public Comment Registration ............................................................................................. 13 

Rule 7.6 Public Testimony ................................................................................................................ 13 

Rule 7.7 Time Limits for Testimony ................................................................................................. 13 

Rule 7.8 Written Testimony .............................................................................................................. 13 

Rule 7.9 Ex parte Contact.............................................................................................................. 1314 

Rule 7.10 Questions of Speakers ......................................................................................................... 14 

Rule 7.11 Order of Deliberation .......................................................................................................... 14 

Rule 7.12 Speaking and Addressing the Chair .................................................................................... 14 

Rule 7.13 Motions, Seconds, and Decisions by Unanimous Consent ................................................. 14 

Rule 7.14 Voting and Abstaining from Voting ................................................................................... 14 

Rule 7.15 Tabled Items ................................................................................................................... 1415 

Rule 7.16 Reconsideration .............................................................................................................. 1415 

SECTION 8 – ELECTRONIC MAILAND ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATION ................................ 15 

Rule 8.1 Electronic Mail and Electronic Communication ................................................................ 15 

Rule 8.2 Electronic Mail and Electronic Communication Regarding Quasi-Judicial Items ............. 15 

SECTION 9 - RELATIONSHIP WITH THE CITY COUNCIL .............................................................. 15 

Rule 9.1 Role of Planning Commission in Relation to the City Council .......................................... 15 

Rule 9.2  Joint Meetings with City Council or Other Boards ............................................................ 15 

Rule 9.3 Planning Commission Presentations at City Council Work Sessions ............................ 1516 

Rule 9.4 Attendance at and Participation in City Council Meetings................................................. 16 

 

 

 

215



 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 7 

Newberg Planning Commission Rules 

 

SECTION 1 – AUTHORITY 

Rule 1.1 Authority of Rules 

The planning commission will adopt commission rules by resolution to govern its meetings and 

proceedings. These rules will decide questions and give direction on debating, voting, membership, 

attendance, agendas, and other matters. The rules are intended to serve as a guide for the planning 

commission.  One of the goals of the planning commission is to work with the residents of Newberg 

and provide a positive atmosphere at planning commission meetings.  These rules provide the basic 

outline required to work together.  The commission may need to vary from these rules from time to time 

to best serve the public interest.  

 

Rule 1.2 Questions about these Rules 

All questions regarding these rules will be resolved by majority vote of the commission. 

 

Rule 1.3 Presentation of Rules to Planning Commission Members 

These planning commission rules will be presented to all planning commission members at or before 

the time they take the oath of office.  

 

Rule 1.4 Amendments to Planning Commission Rules 

Amendments to these planning commission rules will be made by resolution. 

SECTION 2 – GENERAL RULES 

Rule 2.1 Public Meetings Law 

All planning commission meetings will be held in accordance with the Oregon Public Meetings 

Law (“OPML”).  The meetings of the commission, including regular meetings, special meetings, 

work sessions and emergency meetings are open to the public.  The meetings are considered a 

limited public forum at which planning commission business is conducted in accordance with the 

agenda and rules of the planning commission. The chair, along with the commission, has the 

authority to require discussion at the meetings be addressed to the matters that are appropriate to be 

considered, to limit the time for discussion, and to restrict input concerning the matters to be 

discussed. The planning commission has the right to require persons attending the meeting, 

addressing the commission or participating in the meeting to conform to the rules of the commission 

and directions of the chair. 

 

Rule 2.2 Quorum 

Section 2.15.280 of city’s municipal code provides that a majority of the voting members of the 

planning commission constitutes a quorum to conduct business.  

 

Rule 2.3 Lack of Quorum 

If there is a lack of quorum at any scheduled meeting, any hearings scheduled shall be continued to the 

next scheduled meeting of the commission by announcement to those present, or by posting notice of 

such continuance prominently at the meeting location.  

 

 

216



 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 8 

Rule 2.4 Rules of Order 

"Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised, Tenth Edition” or the latest editions published thereafter 

hereafter referred to as “Robert’s Rules of Order” will govern all planning commission proceedings 

unless they conflict with these rules. The chair will have the authority to appoint a parliamentarian for 

the commission. If there is no person appointed as parliamentarian or that person is absent, the city 

attorney or community development director will advise the chair concerning parliamentarian matters.  

 

Rule 2.5 Enforcement of Rules 

The chair will enforce the planning commission rules. In addition, the chair has the authority to preserve 

decorum and will determine all points of order, subject to the right of any planning commissioner to 

appeal to the commission. The chair will enforce order, prevent attacks on personalities or the 

impugning of members’ motives, and keep those in debate to the question under discussion. 

 

Rule 2.6 Suspension of Rules 

The vote to suspend commission rules, including Robert’s Rules of Order, requires a majority vote of 

those members of the planning commission who are present. If the motion is carried, the rules will be 

suspended for that item only. 

 

Rule 2.7 Commissioners Duties to Uphold Rules and Decorum 

Commissioners will preserve order and decorum during planning commission meetings, and will not by 

conversation or other action delay or interrupt the proceedings or refuse to obey the orders of the chair 

and commission rules. Commissioners will, when addressing staff or commissioners, confine 

themselves to questions or issues that are under discussion, will not engage in personal attacks, will not 

impugn the motives of any speaker, and will at all times, while in session or otherwise, conduct 

themselves in a manner appropriate to the dignity of office. Commissioners will not attack the 

knowledge, skills, abilities and personalities or impugn city staff members’ motives in commission or at 

any city meetings.  

 

Rule 2.8 Removal of Any Person for Violation of Rules 

Any persons making disruptive or threatening remarks or actions during a meeting will forthwith be 

barred from further audience at that meeting, unless permission to continue is granted by a majority 

vote of the commissioners present. The community development director or chair may summon the 

assistance of the police or other administrative staff to prevent further interruption by such person by 

any action necessary, including the removal of that individual. In case the community development 

director or chair should fail to act, any commissioner may obtain the floor and move to require 

enforcement of this rule, upon an affirmative vote of the majority of the commissioners present, the 

police or administrative staff will be authorized to remove the person(s) as the chair so directs. 

 

Rule 2.9 Records of Proceedings 

The Community Development Department will provide a secretary for the commission who will keep a 

record of commission proceedings. The records of the proceedings are to be known as “minutes.” The 

minutes will be kept in accordance with the Oregon Public Records and Meetings Law. 

 

217



 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 9 

SECTION 3 – PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS 

Rule 3.1 Attendance 

It is the duty of each commissioner to attend all meetings of the planning commission unless 

excused. Any member who fails to attend at least seventy-five percent of the regular meetings in 

any one year of their term shall be disqualified from serving on the commission unless absences are 

determined to be excused. Upon certification of such disqualification by the commission the 

commissioner will be replaced by the city council as is provided for the filling of vacancies.  

 

Rule 3.2 Excused Absences 

When a commissioner cannot attend a meeting, the member is to notify the community development 

director prior to the meeting.  Absences will be considered excused when such notice is given.  An 

absence will be considered unexcused if there is no notification of the absence prior to the meeting, 

unless otherwise determined by vote of the commission. 

 

Rule 3.3 Report of Absences 

The community development director will report to the commission chair  any time a commissioner 

fails to attend at least seventy-five percent of the regular meetings in any one year of their term. The 

community development director also will report to the city council any time a commissioner fails to 

attend at least seventy-five percent of the regular meetings in any one year of their term. The purpose of 

this notice is to inform the council of the member’s attendance, and to refill the commission seat as is 

provided for the filling of vacancies.  

 

Rule 3.4 Mayor as Ex-Officio Member of the Planning Commission 

By code, the mayor serves as a non-voting ex-officio member of the planning commission. The 

mayor shall be invited to, but is not obligated to, attend all meetings and activities of the planning 

commission.  When attending, the mayor shall sit with the commission.   

 

When participating in legislative matters, the mayor shall be invited to participate in the discussion.  

The mayor shall recuse himself/herself from quasi-judicial matters that eventually may be before the 

council for decision.  This is to avoid questions of ex parte contact or bias in the decision. 

 

Rule 3.5  Student Planning Commissioner 

The student planning commissioner is a high school student or college student is appointed in 

accordance with NMC 2.15.005 The student planning commissioner is expected to attend all planning 

commission meetings. The student commissioner serves a one-year term and is allowed and encouraged 

to participate in all planning commission events and activities.  

 

Rule 3.6 Planning Commissioner Training 

The City shall offer training to planning commissioners to educate them in their duties. It shall be 

the duty of any newly appointed planning commissioner to attend a basic training session from staff 

within 30 days of his or her appointment. It shall be the duty of any re-appointed planning 

commissioner to attend at least a one-hour training session from staff or offered by the city within 

12 months of the beginning of that person’s appointed term.  Planning commissioners are strongly 

encouraged to attend training of some kind annually.  

 

218



 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 10 

SECTION 4 – PRESIDING OFFICER 

Rule 4.1 Chair 

The chair will preside over and facilitate all planning commission meetings, preserve order, enforce 

commission rules, and determine the order of business pursuant to planning commission rules. The 

chair is a voting member of the commission and will sign all records of planning commission decisions.  

 

Rule 4.2 Vice Chair 

In the absence of the chair, or if the chair is unable to perform the chair’s duties, the vice chair will act 

as the presiding officer.  Whenever in these rules the chair is mentioned, the vice chair acting as 

presiding officer can exercise the same authority as the chair.  The vice chair also assists the chair in 

his/her duties, such as keeping time, maintaining order, and determining order of speakers. 

 

Rule 4.3 Chair Pro Tem 

In the absence of the chair and vice chair at any meeting of the planning commission where a quorum is 

present, the planning commission members present shall appoint a chair pro tem who will act as 

presiding officer.  The chair pro tem will exercise all the authority of the chair during that meeting.  

 

Rule 4.4 Election of Chair and Vice Chair 

At the first meeting of each year, or upon vacancy of the current chair or vice chair, the commission 

shall elect a chair and vice chair for the remainder of the calendar year.  The commission’s policy is to 

rotate the positions by seniority in such a fashion that each member has the opportunity to serve first as 

vice-chair, and then the following year as chair. Newly appointed members will be placed at the bottom 

of the current rotation to allow them to serve a few years first as commissioner then later as chair and 

vice chair. In case multiple members are appointed at the same time, the commission will decide 

seniority by vote.  The policy does not compel any member to serve as chair who is unwilling, nor does 

it compel election when the majority determines the commission would be better served by election of 

different officers. The commission shall consent to the election of each chair and vice chair and absent 

such consent, shall elect positions by majority vote.  

SECTION 5 – PLANNING COMMISSION MEETINGS 

Rule 5.1 Regular Meetings 

Section 2.15.280 of city’s municipal code provides that the planning commission must meet at least 

once a month at a time and place designated by the planning commission. The planning commission 

designates through these rules that the regular meetings of the commission will be held on the second 

Thursday of each month, except on holidays in which event the commission will meet on the second 

Wednesday. The commission also will meet on the fourth Thursday if business so requires.   

 

Rule 5.2 Meeting Times and Places 

The regular meetings of the commission will begin at 7:00 p.m. Regular planning commission meetings 

will take place in the Public Safety Building in the training room at 401 E Third St., unless specifically 

designated to occur at another location. Any other such location will be noted in the notice of the 

meeting. There will be no new items presented after 10:00 p.m. except by vote of the planning 

commission.  

 

Rule 5.3 Notice of Meeting 

The notice of the regular meeting of the planning commission, including the agenda which lists items to 

be considered by the planning commission, will be given in accordance with the OPML. However, the 

notice does not limit the matters that can be considered by the planning commission nor prevent the 

219



 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 11 

commission from taking up any matter brought before the commission in accordance with the OPML.  

 

Rule 5.4 Special Meetings 

The chair, upon the chair’s own motion and after consulting the community development director, may, 

or at the request of three members of the commission, shall, by giving notice to the members of the 

commission, call a special meeting of the commission for a time not earlier than 24 hours after the 

notice is given. Notice of a special meeting shall be posted at City Hall and to the extent feasible, 

provided to interested persons and the local newspaper at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

 

Rule 5.5 Cancellation of Meeting 

Upon a majority vote of the planning commission members present, a meeting may be canceled when 

deemed appropriate. If there is no business to transact or a quorum of the planning commission cannot 

attend and there is no urgent necessity to have the meeting, the community development director with 

advice and consent of the chair may cancel the meeting. Planning commission members will be notified 

of the cancellation prior to notice being given to the public. Notice of cancellation will be given as soon 

as possible to the public in a manner aimed at giving adequate notice. 

SECTION 6 – AGENDAS AND ADDITIONAL ITEMS FOR 

CONSIDERATION 

Rule 6.1 Preparation of Agenda 

The community development director with the advice and consent of the chair will prepare the agenda 

along with appropriate documentation for planning commission meetings. Any member of the planning 

commission may request, through the chair, for a matter to be placed upon the agenda. Such request is 

subject to the advice of the community development director. Each meeting agenda’s format will be 

prepared as prescribed in the rules.  If there is no item to be considered under a section of the agenda, 

that section will be omitted from the agenda and the agenda will be renumbered accordingly. The final 

authority on the agenda matters is the planning commission. 

 

Rule 6.2 Non-Agenda Items 

Prior to the meeting, the community development director may send out additions to the agenda with 

the appropriate documentation. The planning commission may consider the items which are not listed 

on the published agenda. The planning commission must, by a majority, place the item on the agenda. 

Action may then be taken on the item.  

 

Rule 6.3 Time for Submission of Items 

Items for the planning commission agenda will be submitted in time to allow for sufficient research by 

staff. 

 

Rule 6.4 Staff Reports 

Normally the staff will send a report of each planning commission item to be considered by the 

planning commission at least eight days prior to the commission meeting. 

 

Rule 6.5 Agenda Availability 

Planning commission agendas and the accompanying documents are available at the city planning 

division office and are posted on the city website normally eight days prior to the planning commission 

meeting. Interested persons are encouraged to read the agenda along with supporting material, and 

address questions to the community development director or city staff prior to the meeting. The 

community development director and planning commission value public input. In order to efficiently 

conduct city business, those who have concerns are encouraged to address these issues prior to the 

220



 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 12 

planning commission meeting.  

 

Rule 6.6 Regular Meeting Agenda 

The regular meeting agenda will be as follows: 

 

I. Call Meeting to Order 

II. Administration of Oath of Office (if needed) 

III. Roll Call 

IV. Public Comment (30 minutes maximum which may be extended at the chair’s 

discretion; an opportunity to speak for not more than five minutes per speaker 

allowed) 

V. Consent Calendar 

VI. Public Hearings 

VII. Continued Business 

VIII. New Business 

IX. Items from Staff 

X. Items from Commissioners 

XI. Adjournment 

 

At the chair’s discretion, the chair may change the order of the agenda and allow communications 

concerning items on the agenda or other commission business.  

 

Rule 6.7 Consent Calendar 

The community development director will place items which have been previously reviewed by the 

planning commission or items which are routine in nature on the consent calendar. Items may be 

removed from the consent calendar by the chair or by request of a planning commission member. Public 

comments will be held prior to the approval of the consent calendar to allow the public to address items 

under consent calendar.  

SECTION 7 – PROCEDURES AT MEETINGS 

Rule 7.1 Call to Order 

The chair will call the planning commission members to order at the hour designated for the meeting.  

The secretary will call roll.  Should there not be a quorum within 15 minutes, the members present will 

adjourn until a quorum can be gathered or until the next scheduled meeting time established by the 

planning commission or to the next regular meeting time. 

 

Rule 7.2 Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items 

Persons speaking to the planning commission concerning items not on the agenda or items that are on 

the consent calendar would speak under the public comment period. Those persons will be given the 

opportunity to speak for up to five minutes. Speakers may share their time at the discretion of the chair. 

The maximum time allowed for public comment, including all speakers, is 30 minutes. The chair has 

the discretion to extend these time limits. Speakers may address the planning commission for less than 

their allotted time. Speakers may also submit information at the meeting. The commission normally will 

not take immediate action on any request raised, but may consider acting on a request during items from 

commissioners.  

 

Rule 7.3 Legislative Public Hearings 

For legislative hearings, the commission will follow the legislative hearing format shown in Exhibit 

“1”. The planning commission’s legislative authority is usually exercised by the adoption of a 

221



 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 13 

resolution. 

 

Rule 7.4 Quasi-judicial Public Hearings 

For quasi-judicial hearing, the commission will follow the quasi-judicial hearing format shown in 

Exhibit “2”.  The planning commission’s quasi-judicial authority is usually exercised by adoption of an 

order when the commission is the final decision maker, and by adoption of a resolution when the 

commission is a recommending body only.   

 

Rule 7.5 Public Comment Registration 

In order to properly notify persons who participate in the hearing and to be able to send them 

information, it is necessary for the interested person to register at the planning commission meeting 

before making oral comments and/or providing input at the meeting. The interested person shall register 

for each subject under which they wish to provide comment.  The public comment registration forms 

will be made part of the meeting records in accordance with OPML. The registration forms will contain 

a provision by which a person may indicate that they do not wish for their address, phone number, and 

email address to be released in any public records request. When the interested person addresses the 

commission or gives oral comments, that person should state their name, but does not need to state their 

mailing address, phone number, or email address. A form complying with this rule will be available at 

all meetings of the planning commission. The community development director may produce and revise 

the necessary form that complies with this rule.    

 

Rule 7.6 Public Testimony 

Each interested person addressing the commission should do so in a courteous and considerate manner. 

The person needs to register and follow other rules as provided in the commission rules. The public will 

be furnished guidelines and should comply with these guidelines for testifying before the planning 

commission.  

 

Rule 7.7 Time Limits for Testimony 

The principal applicant for a proposal will be allotted 15 minutes for an initial presentation.  Prior to the 

meeting the applicant may petition the community development director  for additional time for the 

initial presentation, not to exceed 30 minutes. 

 

A principal opponent, if any, will be allotted time in the same manner as the principal applicant.   

 

All other speakers will be given the opportunity to speak for up to five minutes. Speakers may share 

their time at the discretion of the chair.  

 

The chair has the discretion to extend these time limits. 

 

Rule 7.8 Written Testimony 

In order to be considered at a hearing, written testimony must be received at the Community 

Development Department by noon on the third business day (typically Monday) prior to any meeting.  

Written testimony received after that date will be read out loud at the meeting, subject to time limits for 

speakers, and will be included in the record if there are future proceedings.  

 

Rule 7.9 Ex parte Contact 

Whenever the planning commission conducts a quasi-judicial public hearing, the planning commission 

must declare any ex parte contact.  Rules concerning ex parte contact are set forth in state law.  

 

Commissioners may visit a site individually prior to hearing an application, and shall declare the 

222



 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 14 

substance of that visit as ex parte contact.  Otherwise, planning commissioners should avoid ex parte 

contacts. 

 

Rule 7.10 Questions of Speakers 

Commissioners may ask questions of speakers following their testimony.  Such questions should be 

directed to elicit information that will help the commission reach a decision.  Commissioners should 

avoid debating or arguing with speakers.    

 

Rule 7.11 Order of Deliberation 

The commission’s deliberation on an agenda item may begin with a formal motion, or an informal 

discussion.  If the informal discussion is not leading toward a decision, the chair shall call for a formal 

motion.   

 

The chair shall determine the order of speakers to a motion.  Except as otherwise determined by the 

chair, the maker of the motion will speak first to the motion, followed by the second, and then by other 

commissioners in the order they request to speak.   

 

Rule 7.12 Speaking and Addressing the Chair 

When any commissioner is about to speak in debate or deliver any matter to the planning commission, 

that commissioner should respectfully address the chair, and be given the floor before speaking.  The 

commissioner should confine the remarks to the question under consideration. 

 

The commissioner should use electronic speaking equipment provided to insure his or her comments are 

recorded. 

 

Rule 7.13 Motions, Seconds, and Decisions by Unanimous Consent   

Generally, no motion will be considered unless it has been seconded. However, routine motions that 

have the general consent of the planning commission do not require a second, unless requested by any 

member of the planning commission. Motions brought forth by the chair, which receive no seconds, but 

also no objections, will be passed by unanimous consent. 

 

Rule 7.14 Voting and Abstaining from Voting 

Commissioners shall vote on each motion brought before the commission, or shall explain the reason 

for abstaining.   

 

Commissioners who abstain from participating in a matter due to a conflict of interest shall retire to the 

lobby during the time the matter is under consideration.  A commissioner in the lobby will continue to 

be counted in the quorum.  Commissioners may not provide testimony before the commission on any 

matter from which they abstain, but may designate a representative to speak to their interests. 

 

Rule 7.15 Tabled Items 

Items that are tabled may be taken from table by majority vote any time during the calendar year, but no 

later.  Items may be postponed to a time certain, including to a following year. 

 

Rule 7.16 Reconsideration 

When a question has been decided, it will be in order for a member who voted on the prevailing side to 

move for reconsideration at the same meeting or next meeting only.  For quasi-judicial matters, a 

motion for reconsideration at the next meeting only may be made upon request of the applicant, having 

waived rights to the time limits for decisions, and only to correct any technical issue in a decision and 

not to reverse a decision or decide again any substantive issue. 

223



 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 15 

SECTION 8 – ELECTRONIC MAILAND ELECTRONIC 

COMMUNICATION 

Rule 8.1 Electronic Mail and Electronic Communication 

E-mail or other forms of electronic communication may be used to schedule meetings, send 

informative messages, or request information from other planning commissioners or the community 

development director, except as limited by these rules or other applicable law.  E-mail or other 

electronic communication may not be used to discuss policy issues with a quorum of the planning 

commission at one time or a quorum of a standing advisory body in any manner which would be in 

violation of the OPML.  All planning commission e-mail correspondence is subject to the Oregon 

Public Records and Meetings Laws and is subject to disclosure.    

 

Rule 8.2 Electronic Mail and Electronic Communication Regarding Quasi-Judicial Items 

Commissioners shall refrain from sending electronic communication regarding the substance of any 

quasi-judicial item.  If commissioners receive e-mail or electronic communication concerning the 

substance of any quasi-judicial item, they shall forward the communication to the community 

development director.  As such information may be ex parte contact, commissioners shall avoid 

reading such communication outside the period the record is open for written comment.  If reading 

such items is unavoidable, the commissioner shall declare the ex parte contact. 

SECTION 9 - RELATIONSHIP WITH THE CITY COUNCIL 

Rule 9.1 Role of Planning Commission in Relation to the City Council 

Members of the planning commission are appointed by the mayor with consent of the city council. 

The mayor and council appoint them to provide study and perspective on issues beyond what the 

council can provide. Commissioners provide the highest value providing independent 

recommendations and not anticipating or mimicking what they feel the council’s decision on a 

matter would be. 

 

After the city council has voted on an issue that previously has been before the planning 

commission, commission members will speak for themselves carefully, in a manner that does not 

undermine the integrity or motives of the city council, even if the their personal opinions or the 

commission’s decisions differ from the city council’s decision.  

  

Rule 9.2  Joint Meetings with City Council or Other Boards 

The commission should periodically hold joint meetings with the city council to share directly 

information and perspectives regarding particular issues. The mayor shall preside at such joint 

meetings. 

 

The commission also may have joint meetings with other boards or commissions, such as the traffic 

safety commission.  The chairs of the boards shall determine the agenda and the manner of 

facilitating the meeting.  

 

Rule 9.3 Planning Commission Presentations at City Council Work Sessions 

The city council has established a work session before council meetings, and has invited the 

planning commission to make presentations on any matter during that meeting.  The commission 

may appear as a whole, the chair or vice-chair may represent the commission, or the commission 

may appoint one or more members to represent the commission to the council.  The planning 

commission chair shall notify the mayor as far in advance as possible and at least one week in 

advance of the meeting if the commission wishes to make use of this time  

224



 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 16 

 

Rule 9.4 Attendance at and Participation in City Council Meetings 

In legislative matters, after the planning commission has taken action on an item, the mayor or city 

manager may request that the chair or chair’s designee attend a city council meeting to report the 

commission’s recommendation.  The planning commission also may appoint a representative to 

attend the city council meeting and convey the commission’s recommendation.  

 

On quasi-judicial items, the planning commission’s report to the council consists of their written 

decision, findings and the record.  Commission members do not speak at the council meeting unless 

requested by the city council or mayor. 

 

Otherwise, planning commissioners may attend any meeting of the city council.  They may speak to 

the council for themselves as a citizen on any item.  

 

225



Exhibit “1” 

To Planning Commission Rules 
 

 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 17 

OUTLINE FOR LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARING 
Newberg Planning Commission 

  

1. CALL TO ORDER 
OPEN THE PUBLIC HEARING, ANNOUNCE THE PURPOSE, DISCUSS TESTIMONY 
PROCEDURE, AND TIME ALLOTMENTS 

 
2.    CALL FOR ABSTENTIONS AND OBJECTIONS TO JURISDICTION  
 
3. STAFF REPORT 
 COMMISSION MAY ASK BRIEF QUESTIONS FOR CLARIFICATION 

   
4. PUBLIC TESTIMONY 
 5 MINUTE TIME LIMIT PER SPEAKER (15 MINUTE LIMIT FOR APPLICANT AND 
PRINCIPAL OPPONENT).  SPEAKER GOES TO WITNESS TABLE, STATES NAME & 
PRESENTS TESTIMONY.  COMMISSION MAY ASK QUESTIONS OF SPEAKERS. 
 A. APPLICANT(S) (IF ANY) 
 B. OTHER PROPONENTS                 
 C. OPPONENTS AND UNDECIDED 
 D. STAFF READS WRITTEN CORRESPONDENCE (TIME LIMIT APPLIES)  
 E. APPLICANT (IF ANY) REBUTTAL 
 
5. CLOSE OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY PORTION OF HEARING 
 
6.  FINAL COMMENTS FROM STAFF AND RECOMMENDATION  

 
7. PLANNING COMMISSION DELIBERATION 

 
8. ACTION BY THE PLANNING COMMMISSION 
 A. RESOLUTION – Usually requires passage of resolution. 
 B. VOTE – Vote is done by roll call. 

C. COMBINATION – Can be combined with other commission action; separate vote 
on each action is required. 

 

226



Exhibit “2” 

To Planning Commission Rules 
 

 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 18 

OUTLINE FOR QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING 
Newberg Planning Commission 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

OPEN THE PUBLIC HEARING, ANNOUNCE THE PURPOSE, DISCUSS TESTIMONY 
PROCEDURE, AND TIME ALLOTMENTS 

 
2.    CALL FOR ABSTENTIONS, BIAS, EX PARTE CONTACT, AND OBJECTIONS TO 

JURISDICTION  
 
3. LEGAL ANNOUNCEMENT 
 READ “QUASI-JUDICIAL ANNOUNCEMENTS” SHEET 
 
4. STAFF REPORT 
 COMMISSION MAY ASK BRIEF QUESTIONS FOR CLARIFICATION 

   
5. PUBLIC TESTIMONY 
 5 MINUTE TIME LIMIT PER SPEAKER (15 MINUTE LIMIT FOR APPLICANT AND 
PRINCIPAL OPPONENT).  SPEAKER GOES TO WITNESS TABLE, STATES NAME & 
PRESENTS TESTIMONY.  COMMISSION MAY ASK QUESTIONS OF SPEAKERS. 
 A. APPLICANT(S) 
 B. OTHER PROPONENTS                 
 C. OPPONENTS AND UNDECIDED 
 D. STAFF READS WRITTEN CORRESPONDENCE (TIME LIMIT APPLIES)  
 E. APPLICANT REBUTTAL 
 
6 CLOSE OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY PORTION OF HEARING 
 
7.  FINAL COMMENTS FROM STAFF AND RECOMMENDATION  
 
8. PLANNING COMMISSION DELIBERATION INCLUDING DISCUSSION OF CRITERIA 

WITH FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
9. ACTION BY THE PLANNING COMMMISSION 
 A. ORDER OR RESOLUTION – Usually requires passage of order if the 

commission is the final decision maker, or a resolution if the commission is only 
advisory to the council. 

 B. VOTE – Vote is done by roll call. 
C. COMBINATION – Can be combined with other commission action; separate vote 

on each action is required. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

227



 

 
Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Attachment 1:  City of Newberg Planning Commission Participation Guidelines Track 

Changes 

228



 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 1 

Exhibit A 
 
 

CITY OF NEWBERG 

PLANNING 

COMMISSION 

PARTICIPATION 

GUIDELINES 

 
Adopted January 12, 2012 

Amended June 9, 2016 

Amended April 14, 2022 

 

229



 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 2 

 

NEWBERG PLANNING 

COMMISSION PARTICIPATION 

GUIDELINES  
 

Newberg planning commission members will strive to: 

 

1)  Trust and respect the opinions of fellow commission members, staff, and 

the public and actively participate in the decisions of the planning 

commission. 

 

2)  Attend all planning commission meetings. 

 

3) Notify the planning staff of an absence as soon as practical prior to the 

meeting time. 

 

4)  Make every attempt to resolve any personal conflict with a fellow planning 

commissioner prior to bringing the conflict to the attention of the planning 

commission. 

 

5)  Study material presented in a timely manner and be informed on the issues 

that come before the commission. 

 

6) Follow the commission rules. 

 

 

230



 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 3 

 

NEWBERG PLANNING 

COMMISSION 

MEETING EXPECTATIONS 
 
 

Newberg planning commission members will: 

 

1) Be courteous and respectful of citizens and create a welcoming 

environment that actively involves citizens in the governmental process. 

 

2) Communicate in clear, concise and audible verbal and written 

communications. 

 

3) Use a friendly and sincere tone of voice.  

 

4) Honor and act on all requests for action and/or information in a timely and 

courteous manner. 

 

5) Discuss issues, but not personalities, with non-commission members.   

 

6) After an issue has been voted on, commission members will speak for 

themselves carefully, in a manner that does not undermine the integrity or 

motives of the planning commission, even if their personal opinion differs 

from the planning commission’s decision.  

 

7) Vote on all motions before the commission, or explain the reasons for 

abstaining. 

231



 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 4 

 

 

 

CITY OF NEWBERG 

PLANNING 

COMISSION 

RULES  
 

 

Adopted January 12, 2012 

Amended June 9, 2016 

Amended April 14, 2022 

232



 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 5 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Table of Contents ........................................................................................................................................ 5 

SECTION 1 – AUTHORITY ...................................................................................................................... 7 

Rule 1.1 Authority of Rules ................................................................................................................ 7 

Rule 1.2 Questions about these Rules ................................................................................................. 7 

Rule 1.3 Presentation of Rules to Planning Commission Members.................................................... 7 

Rule 1.4 Amendments to Planning Commission Rules ...................................................................... 7 

SECTION 2 – GENERAL RULES ............................................................................................................. 7 

Rule 2.1 Public Meetings Law ............................................................................................................ 7 

Rule 2.2 Quorum ................................................................................................................................. 7 

Rule 2.3 Lack of Quorum .................................................................................................................... 7 

Rule 2.4 Rules of Order ....................................................................................................................... 8 

Rule 2.5 Enforcement of Rules ........................................................................................................... 8 

Rule 2.6 Suspension of Rules .............................................................................................................. 8 

Rule 2.7 Commissioners Duties to Uphold Rules and Decorum ........................................................ 8 

Rule 2.8 Removal of Any Person for Violation of Rules .................................................................... 8 

Rule 2.9 Records of Proceedings ........................................................................................................ 8 

SECTION 3 – PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS ......................................................................... 9 

Rule 3.1 Attendance ............................................................................................................................ 9 

Rule 3.2 Excused Absences................................................................................................................. 9 

Rule 3.3 Report of Absences ............................................................................................................... 9 

Rule 3.4 Mayor as Ex-Officio Member of the Planning Commission  ............................................... 9 

Rule 3.5 Student Planning Commissioner ........................................................................................... 9 

Rule 3.6 Planning Commissioner Training ......................................................................................... 9 

SECTION 4 – PRESIDING OFFICER ..................................................................................................... 10 

Rule 4.1 Chair.................................................................................................................................... 10 

Rule 4.2 Vice Chair ........................................................................................................................... 10 

Rule 4.3 Chair Pro Tem ..................................................................................................................... 10 

Rule 4.4 Election of Chair and Vice Chair ........................................................................................ 10 

SECTION 5 – PLANNING COMMISSION MEETINGS ....................................................................... 10 

Rule 5.1 Regular Meetings ................................................................................................................ 10 

Rule 5.2 Meeting Times and Places .................................................................................................. 10 

Rule 5.3 Notice of Meeting ............................................................................................................... 11 

Rule 5.4 Special Meetings ................................................................................................................. 11 

Rule 5.5 Cancellation of Meeting...................................................................................................... 11 

SECTION 6 – AGENDAS AND ADDITIONAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION ............................. 11 

Rule 6.1 Preparation of Agenda ........................................................................................................ 11 

Rule 6.2 Non-Agenda Items .............................................................................................................. 11 

Rule 6.3 Time for Submission of Items ............................................................................................ 11 

Rule 6.4 Staff Reports ....................................................................................................................... 11 

Rule 6.5 Agenda Availability ........................................................................................................ 1211 

Rule 6.6 Regular Meeting Agenda .................................................................................................... 12 

Rule 6.7 Consent Calendar ................................................................................................................ 12 

SECTION 7 – PROCEDURES AT MEETINGS ..................................................................................... 12 

Rule 7.1 Call to Order ....................................................................................................................... 12 

Rule 7.2 Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items ............................................................................. 12 

Rule 7.3 Legislative Public Hearings ................................................................................................ 13 

233



 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 6 

Rule 7.4 Quasi-judicial Public Hearings ........................................................................................... 13 

Rule 7.5 Public Comment Registration ............................................................................................. 13 

Rule 7.6 Public Testimony ................................................................................................................ 13 

Rule 7.7 Time Limits for Testimony ................................................................................................. 13 

Rule 7.8 Written Testimony .............................................................................................................. 13 

Rule 7.9 Ex parte Contact.................................................................................................................. 14 

Rule 7.10 Questions of Speakers ......................................................................................................... 14 

Rule 7.11 Order of Deliberation .......................................................................................................... 14 

Rule 7.12 Speaking and Addressing the Chair .................................................................................... 14 

Rule 7.13 Motions, Seconds, and Decisions by Unanimous Consent ................................................. 14 

Rule 7.14 Voting and Abstaining from Voting ................................................................................... 14 

Rule 7.15 Tabled Items ....................................................................................................................... 15 

Rule 7.16 Reconsideration .................................................................................................................. 15 

SECTION 8 – ELECTRONIC MAILAND ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATION ................................ 15 

Rule 8.1 Electronic Mail and Electronic Communication ................................................................ 15 

Rule 8.2 Electronic Mail and Electronic Communication Regarding Quasi-Judicial Items ............. 15 

SECTION 9 - RELATIONSHIP WITH THE CITY COUNCIL .............................................................. 15 

Rule 9.1 Role of Planning Commission in Relation to the City Council .......................................... 15 

Rule 9.2  Joint Meetings with City Council or Other Boards ............................................................ 15 

Rule 9.3 Planning Commission Presentations at City Council Work Sessions ................................ 16 

Rule 9.4 Attendance at and Participation in City Council Meetings................................................. 16 

 

 

 

234



 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 7 

Newberg Planning Commission Rules 

 

SECTION 1 – AUTHORITY 

Rule 1.1 Authority of Rules 

The planning commission will adopt commission rules by resolution to govern its meetings and 

proceedings. These rules will decide questions and give direction on debating, voting, membership, 

attendance, agendas, and other matters. The rules are intended to serve as a guide for the planning 

commission.  One of the goals of the planning commission is to work with the residents of Newberg 

and provide a positive atmosphere at planning commission meetings.  These rules provide the basic 

outline required to work together.  The commission may need to vary from these rules from time to time 

to best serve the public interest.  

 

Rule 1.2 Questions about these Rules 

All questions regarding these rules will be resolved by majority vote of the commission. 

 

Rule 1.3 Presentation of Rules to Planning Commission Members 

These planning commission rules will be presented to all planning commission members at or before 

the time they take the oath of office.  

 

Rule 1.4 Amendments to Planning Commission Rules 

Amendments to these planning commission rules will be made by resolution. 

SECTION 2 – GENERAL RULES 

Rule 2.1 Public Meetings Law 

All planning commission meetings will be held in accordance with the Oregon Public Meetings 

Law (“OPML”).  The meetings of the commission, including regular meetings, special meetings, 

work sessions and emergency meetings are open to the public.  The meetings are considered a 

limited public forum at which planning commission business is conducted in accordance with the 

agenda and rules of the planning commission. The chair, along with the commission, has the 

authority to require discussion at the meetings be addressed to the matters that are appropriate to be 

considered, to limit the time for discussion, and to restrict input concerning the matters to be 

discussed. The planning commission has the right to require persons attending the meeting, 

addressing the commission or participating in the meeting to conform to the rules of the commission 

and directions of the chair. 

 

Rule 2.2 Quorum 

Section 2.15.280 of city’s municipal code provides that a majority of the voting members of the 

planning commission constitutes a quorum to conduct business.  

 

Rule 2.3 Lack of Quorum 

If there is a lack of quorum at any scheduled meeting, any hearings scheduled shall be continued to the 

next scheduled meeting of the commission by announcement to those present, or by posting notice of 

such continuance prominently at the meeting location.  

 

 

235



 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 8 

Rule 2.4 Rules of Order 

"Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised, Tenth Edition” or the latest editions published thereafter 

hereafter referred to as “Robert’s Rules of Order” will govern all planning commission proceedings 

unless they conflict with these rules. The chair will have the authority to appoint a parliamentarian for 

the commission. If there is no person appointed as parliamentarian or that person is absent, the city 

attorney or community development director will advise the chair concerning parliamentarian matters.  

 

Rule 2.5 Enforcement of Rules 

The chair will enforce the planning commission rules. In addition, the chair has the authority to preserve 

decorum and will determine all points of order, subject to the right of any planning commissioner to 

appeal to the commission. The chair will enforce order, prevent attacks on personalities or the 

impugning of members’ motives, and keep those in debate to the question under discussion. 

 

Rule 2.6 Suspension of Rules 

The vote to suspend commission rules, including Robert’s Rules of Order, requires a majority vote of 

those members of the planning commission who are present. If the motion is carried, the rules will be 

suspended for that item only. 

 

Rule 2.7 Commissioners Duties to Uphold Rules and Decorum 

Commissioners will preserve order and decorum during planning commission meetings, and will not by 

conversation or other action delay or interrupt the proceedings or refuse to obey the orders of the chair 

and commission rules. Commissioners will, when addressing staff or commissioners, confine 

themselves to questions or issues that are under discussion, will not engage in personal attacks, will not 

impugn the motives of any speaker, and will at all times, while in session or otherwise, conduct 

themselves in a manner appropriate to the dignity of office. Commissioners will not attack the 

knowledge, skills, abilities and personalities or impugn city staff members’ motives in commission or at 

any city meetings.  

 

Rule 2.8 Removal of Any Person for Violation of Rules 

Any persons making disruptive or threatening remarks or actions during a meeting will forthwith be 

barred from further audience at that meeting, unless permission to continue is granted by a majority 

vote of the commissioners present. The community development director or chair may summon the 

assistance of the police or other administrative staff to prevent further interruption by such person by 

any action necessary, including the removal of that individual. In case the community development 

director or chair should fail to act, any commissioner may obtain the floor and move to require 

enforcement of this rule, upon an affirmative vote of the majority of the commissioners present, the 

police or administrative staff will be authorized to remove the person(s) as the chair so directs. 

 

Rule 2.9 Records of Proceedings 

The Community Development Department will provide a secretary for the commission who will keep a 

record of commission proceedings. The records of the proceedings are to be known as “minutes.” The 

minutes will be kept in accordance with the Oregon Public Records and Meetings Law. 

 

236



 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 9 

SECTION 3 – PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS 

Rule 3.1 Attendance 

It is the duty of each commissioner to attend all meetings of the planning commission unless 

excused. Any member who fails to attend at least seventy-five percent of the regular meetings in 

any one year of their term shall be disqualified from serving on the commission unless absences are 

determined to be excused. Upon certification of such disqualification by the commission the 

commissioner will be replaced by the city council as is provided for the filling of vacancies. A 

member of the commission may be removed by the city council after hearing for misconduct or 

nonperformance of duty. Per Newberg Code 2.15.250(C), a member who is absent from two 

consecutive meetings without an excuse as approved by the planning commission is rebuttably 

presumed to be in nonperformance of duty and the city council shall declare the position vacant 

unless finding otherwise following the hearing.  

 

Rule 3.2 Excused Absences 

When a commissioner cannot attend a meeting, the member is to notify the community development 

director prior to the meeting.  Absences will be considered excused when such notice is given.  An 

absence will be considered unexcused if there is no notification of the absence prior to the meeting, 

unless otherwise determined by vote of the commission. 

 

Rule 3.3 Report of Absences 

The community development director will report to the commission chair city council any time a 

commissioner fails to attend at least seventy-five percent of the regular meetings in any one year of 

their term. has four or more absences in a twelve-month period, along with the reasons for any excused 

absences. The community development director also will report to the city council any time a 

commissioner fails to attend at least seventy-five percent of the regular meetings in any one year of 

their term. has two or more unexcused absences in a twelve-month period. The purpose of this notice is 

to inform the council of the member’s attendance, and to refill the commission seat as is provided for 

the filling of vacanciesdoes not require any particular action by the council unless they so elect.  

 

Rule 3.4 Mayor as Ex-Officio Member of the Planning Commission 

By code, the mayor serves as a non-voting ex-officio member of the planning commission.  The 

mayor shall be invited to, but is not obligated to, attend all meetings and activities of the planning 

commission.  When attending, the mayor shall sit with the commission.   

 

When participating in legislative matters, the mayor shall be invited to participate in the discussion.  

The mayor shall recuse himself/herself from quasi-judicial matters that eventually may be before the 

council for decision.  This is to avoid questions of ex parte contact or bias in the decision. 

 

Rule 3.5  Student Planning Commissioner 

The student planning commissioner is a high school student or college student is appointed in 

accordance with NMC 2.15.005 who applies for the position by filling out an application for the city 

committee and gives the City of Newberg a letter of recommendation from a teacher. The mayor selects 

an individual student and the city council approves the mayor’s nomination. The student planning 

commissioner is expected to attend all planning commission meetings., unless excused by the planning 

commission. The student commissioner serves a one yearone-year term and is allowed and encouraged 

to participate in all planning commission events and activities except for voting. The chair shall seek the 

opinion of the student prior to any significant votes.  

 

237



 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 10 

Rule 3.6 Planning Commissioner Training 

The City shall offer training to planning commissioners to educate them in their duties. It shall be 

the duty of any newly appointed planning commissioner to attend a basic training session from staff 

within 30 days of his or her appointment. It shall be the duty of any re-appointed planning 

commissioner to attend at least a one-hour training session from staff or offered by the city within 

12 months of the beginning of that person’s appointed term.  Planning commissioners are strongly 

encouraged to attend training of some kind annually.  

 

SECTION 4 – PRESIDING OFFICER 

Rule 4.1 Chair 

The chair will preside over and facilitate all planning commission meetings, preserve order, enforce 

commission rules, and determine the order of business pursuant to planning commission rules. The 

chair is a voting member of the commission and will sign all records of planning commission decisions.  

 

Rule 4.2 Vice Chair 

In the absence of the chair, or if the chair is unable to perform the chair’s duties, the vice chair will act 

as the presiding officer.  Whenever in these rules the chair is mentioned, the vice chair acting as 

presiding officer can exercise the same authority as the chair.  The vice chair also assists the chair in 

his/her duties, such as keeping time, maintaining order, and determining order of speakers. 

 

Rule 4.3 Chair Pro Tem 

In the absence of the chair and vice chair at any meeting of the planning commission where a quorum is 

present, the planning commission members present shall appoint a chair pro tem who will act as 

presiding officer.  The chair pro tem will exercise all the authority of the chair during that meeting.  

 

Rule 4.4 Election of Chair and Vice Chair 

At the first meeting of each year, or upon vacancy of the current chair or vice chair, the commission 

shall elect a chair and vice chair for the remainder of the calendar year.  The commission’s policy is to 

rotate the positions by seniority in such a fashion that each member has the opportunity to serve first as 

vice-chair, and then the following year as chair. Newly appointed members will be placed at the bottom 

of the current rotation to allow them to serve a few years first as commissioner then later as chair and 

vice chair. In case multiple members are appointed at the same time, the commission will decide 

seniority by vote.  The policy does not compel any member to serve as chair who is unwilling, nor does 

it compel election when the majority determines the commission would be better served by election of 

different officers. The commission shall consent to the election of each chair and vice chair and absent 

such consent, shall elect positions by majority vote.  

SECTION 5 – PLANNING COMMISSION MEETINGS 

Rule 5.1 Regular Meetings 

Section 2.15.280 of city’s municipal code provides that the planning commission must meet at least 

once a month at a time and place designated by the planning commission. The planning commission 

designates through these rules that the regular meetings of the commission will be held on the second 

Thursday of each month, except on holidays in which event the commission will meet on the second 

Wednesday. The commission also will meet on the fourth Thursday if business so requires.   

 

Rule 5.2 Meeting Times and Places 

The regular meetings of the commission will begin at 7:00 p.m. Regular planning commission meetings 

238



 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 11 

will take place in the Public Safety Building in the training room at 401 E. Third St., unless specifically 

designated to occur at another location. Any other such location will be noted in the notice of the 

meeting. There will be no new items presented after 10:00 p.m. except by vote of the planning 

commission.  

 

Rule 5.3 Notice of Meeting 

The notice of the regular meeting of the planning commission, including the agenda which lists items to 

be considered by the planning commission, will be given in accordance with the OPML. However, the 

notice does not limit the matters that can be considered by the planning commission nor prevent the 

commission from taking up any matter brought before the commission in accordance with the OPML.  

 

Rule 5.4 Special Meetings 

The chair, upon the chair’s own motion and after consulting the community development director, may, 

or at the request of three members of the commission, shall, by giving notice to the members of the 

commission, call a special meeting of the commission for a time not earlier than 24 hours after the 

notice is given. Notice of a special meeting shall be posted at City Hall and to the extent feasible, 

provided to interested persons and the local newspaper at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

 

Rule 5.5 Cancellation of Meeting 

Upon a majority vote of the planning commission members present, a meeting may be canceled when 

deemed appropriate. If there is no business to transact or a quorum of the planning commission cannot 

attend and there is no urgent necessity to have the meeting, the community development director with 

advice and consent of the chair may cancel the meeting. Planning commission members will be notified 

of the cancellation prior to notice being given to the public. Notice of cancellation will be given as soon 

as possible to the public in a manner aimed at giving adequate notice. 

SECTION 6 – AGENDAS AND ADDITIONAL ITEMS FOR 

CONSIDERATION 

Rule 6.1 Preparation of Agenda 

The community development director with the advice and consent of the chair will prepare the agenda 

along with appropriate documentation for planning commission meetings. Any member of the planning 

commission may request, through the chair, for a matter to be placed upon the agenda. Such request is 

subject to the advice of the community development director. Each meeting agenda’s format will be 

prepared as prescribed in the rules.  If there is no item to be considered under a section of the agenda, 

that section will be omitted from the agenda and the agenda will be renumbered accordingly. The final 

authority on the agenda matters is the planning commission. 

 

Rule 6.2 Non-Agenda Items 

Prior to the meeting, the community development director may send out additions to the agenda with 

the appropriate documentation. The planning commission may consider the items which are not listed 

on the published agenda. The planning commission must, by a majority, place the item on the agenda. 

Action may then be taken on the item.  

 

Rule 6.3 Time for Submission of Items 

Items for the planning commission agenda will be submitted in time to allow for sufficient research by 

staff. 

 

Rule 6.4 Staff Reports 

Normally the staff will send a report of each planning commission item to be considered by the 

239



 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 12 

planning commission at least eight days prior to the commission meeting. 

 

Rule 6.5 Agenda Availability 

Planning commission agendas and the accompanying documents are available at the city planning 

division office and are posted on the city website normally eight days prior to the planning commission 

meeting. Interested persons are encouraged to read the agenda along with supporting material, and 

address questions to the community development director or city staff prior to the meeting. The 

community development director and planning commission value public input. In order to efficiently 

conduct city business, those who have concerns are encouraged to address these issues prior to the 

planning commission meeting.  

 

Rule 6.6 Regular Meeting Agenda 

The regular meeting agenda will be as follows: 

 

I. Call Meeting to Order 

II. Administration of Oath of Office (if needed) 

III. Roll Call 

IV. Public Comment (30 minutes maximum which may be extended at the chair’s 

discretion; an opportunity to speak for not more than five minutes per speaker 

allowed) 

V. Consent Calendar 

VI. Public Hearings 

VII. Continued Business 

VIII. New Business 

IX. Items from Staff 

X. Items from Commissioners 

XI. Adjournment 

 

At the chair’s discretion, the chair may change the order of the agenda and allow communications 

concerning items on the agenda or other commission business.  

 

Rule 6.7 Consent Calendar 

The community development director will place items which have been previously reviewed by the 

planning commission or items which are routine in nature on the consent calendar. Items may be 

removed from the consent calendar by the chair or by request of a planning commission member. Public 

comments will be held prior to the approval of the consent calendar to allow the public to address items 

under consent calendar.  

SECTION 7 – PROCEDURES AT MEETINGS 

Rule 7.1 Call to Order 

The chair will call the planning commission members to order at the hour designated for the meeting.  

The secretary will call roll.  Should there not be a quorum within 15 minutes, the members present will 

adjourn until a quorum can be gathered or until the next scheduled meeting time established by the 

planning commission or to the next regular meeting time. 

 

Rule 7.2 Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items 

Persons speaking to the planning commission concerning items not on the agenda or items that are on 

the consent calendar would speak under the public comment period. Those persons will be given the 

opportunity to speak for up to five minutes. Speakers may share their time at the discretion of the chair. 

240



 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 13 

The maximum time allowed for public comment, including all speakers, is 30 minutes. The chair has 

the discretion to extend these time limits. Speakers may address the planning commission for less than 

their allotted time. Speakers may also submit information at the meeting. The commission normally will 

not take immediate action on any request raised, but may consider acting on a request during items from 

commissioners.  

 

Rule 7.3 Legislative Public Hearings 

For legislative hearings, the commission will follow the legislative hearing format shown in Exhibit 

“1”. The planning commission’s legislative authority is usually exercised by the adoption of a 

resolution. 

 

Rule 7.4 Quasi-judicial Public Hearings 

For quasi-judicial hearing, the commission will follow the quasi-judicial hearing format shown in 

Exhibit “2”.  The planning commission’s quasi-judicial authority is usually exercised by adoption of an 

order when the commission is the final decision maker, and by adoption of a resolution when the 

commission is a recommending body only.   

 

Rule 7.5 Public Comment Registration 

In order to properly notify persons who participate in the hearing and to be able to send them 

information, it is necessary for the interested person to register at the planning commission meeting 

before making oral comments and/or providing input at the meeting. The interested person shall register 

for each subject under which they wish to provide comment.  The public comment registration forms 

will be made part of the meeting records in accordance with OPML. The registration forms will contain 

a provision by which a person may indicate that they do not wish for their address, phone number, and 

email address to be released in any public records request. When the interested person addresses the 

commission or gives oral comments, that person should state their name, but does not need to state their 

mailing address, phone number, or email address. A form complying with this rule will be available at 

all meetings of the planning commission. The community development director may produce and revise 

the necessary form that complies with this rule.    

 

Rule 7.6 Public Testimony 

Each interested person addressing the commission should do so in a courteous and considerate manner. 

The person needs to register and follow other rules as provided in the commission rules. The public will 

be furnished guidelines and should comply with these guidelines for testifying before the planning 

commission.  

 

Rule 7.7 Time Limits for Testimony 

The principal applicant for a proposal will be allotted 15 minutes for an initial presentation.  Prior to the 

meeting the applicant may petition the community development director planning director for additional 

time for the initial presentation, not to exceed 30 minutes. 

 

A principal opponent, if any, will be allotted time in the same manner as the principal applicant.   

 

All other speakers will be given the opportunity to speak for up to five minutes. Speakers may share 

their time at the discretion of the chair.  

 

The chair has the discretion to extend these time limits. 

 

Rule 7.8 Written Testimony 

In order to be considered at a hearing, written testimony must be received at the Community 

241



 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 14 

Development Department by noon on the third business day (typically Monday) prior to any meeting.  

Written testimony received after that date will be read out loud at the meeting, subject to time limits for 

speakers, and will be included in the record if there are future proceedings.  

 

Rule 7.9 Ex parte Contact 

Whenever the planning commission conducts a quasi-judicial public hearing, the planning commission 

must declare any ex parte contact.  Rules concerning ex parte contact are set forth in state law.  

 

Commissioners may visit a site individually prior to hearing an application, and shall declare the 

substance of that visit as ex parte contact.  Otherwise, planning commissioners should avoid ex parte 

contacts. 

 

Rule 7.10 Questions of Speakers 

Commissioners may ask questions of speakers following their testimony.  Such questions should be 

directed to elicit information that will help the commission reach a decision.  Commissioners should 

avoid debating or arguing with speakers.    

 

Rule 7.11 Order of Deliberation 

The commission’s deliberation on an agenda item may begin with a formal motion, or an informal 

discussion.  If the informal discussion is not leading toward a decision, the chair shall call for a formal 

motion.   

 

The chair shall determine the order of speakers to a motion.  Except as otherwise determined by the 

chair, the maker of the motion will speak first to the motion, followed by the second, and then by other 

commissioners in the order they request to speak.   

 

Rule 7.12 Speaking and Addressing the Chair 

When any commissioner is about to speak in debate or deliver any matter to the planning commission, 

that commissioner should respectfully address the chair, and be given the floor before speaking.  The 

commissioner should confine the remarks to the question under consideration. 

 

The commissioner should use electronic speaking equipment provided to insure his or her comments are 

recorded. 

 

Rule 7.13 Motions, Seconds, and Decisions by Unanimous Consent   

Generally, no motion will be considered unless it has been seconded. However, routine motions that 

have the general consent of the planning commission do not require a second, unless requested by any 

member of the planning commission. Motions brought forth by the chair, which receive no seconds, but 

also no objections, will be passed by unanimous consent. 

 

Rule 7.14 Voting and Abstaining from Voting 

Commissioners shall vote on each motion brought before the commission, or shall explain the reason 

for abstaining.   

 

Commissioners who abstain from participating in a matter due to a conflict of interest shall retire to the 

lobby during the time the matter is under consideration.  A commissioner in the lobby will continue to 

be counted in the quorum.  Commissioners may not provide testimony before the commission on any 

matter from which they abstain, but may designate a representative to speak to their interests. 

 

242



 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 15 

Rule 7.15 Tabled Items 

Items that are tabled may be taken from table by majority vote any time during the calendar year, but no 

later.  Items may be postponed to a time certain, including to a following year. 

 

Rule 7.16 Reconsideration 

When a question has been decided, it will be in order for a member who voted on the prevailing side to 

move for reconsideration at the same meeting or next meeting only.  For quasi-judicial matters, a 

motion for reconsideration at the next meeting only may be made upon request of the applicant, having 

waived rights to the time limits for decisions, and only to correct any technical issue in a decision and 

not to reverse a decision or decide again any substantive issue. 

SECTION 8 – ELECTRONIC MAILAND ELECTRONIC 

COMMUNICATION 

Rule 8.1 Electronic Mail and Electronic Communication 

E-mail or other forms of electronic communication may be used to schedule meetings, send 

informative messages, or request information from other planning commissioners or the community 

development director, except as limited by these rules or other applicable law.  E-mail or other 

electronic communication may not be used to discuss policy issues with a quorum of the planning 

commission at one time or a quorum of a standing advisory body in any manner which would be in 

violation of the OPML.  All planning commission e-mail correspondence is subject to the Oregon 

Public Records and Meetings Laws and is subject to disclosure.    

 

Rule 8.2 Electronic Mail and Electronic Communication Regarding Quasi-Judicial Items 

Commissioners shall refrain from sending electronic communication regarding the substance of any 

quasi-judicial item.  If commissioners receive e-mail or electronic communication concerning the 

substance of any quasi-judicial item, they shall forward the communication to the community 

development director.  As such information may be ex parte contact, commissioners shall avoid 

reading such communication outside the period the record is open for written comment.  If reading 

such items is unavoidable, the commissioner shall declare the ex parte contact. 

SECTION 9 - RELATIONSHIP WITH THE CITY COUNCIL 

Rule 9.1 Role of Planning Commission in Relation to the City Council 

Members of the planning commission are appointed by the mayor with consent of the city council. 

 The mayor and council appoint them to provide study and perspective on issues beyond what the 

council can provide.  Commissioners provide the highest value providing independent 

recommendations and not anticipating or mimicking what they feel the council’s decision on a 

matter would be. 

 

After the city council has voted on an issue that previously has been before the planning 

commission, commission members will speak for themselves carefully, in a manner that does not 

undermine the integrity or motives of the city council, even if the their personal opinions or the 

commission’s decisions differ from the city council’s decision.  

  

Rule 9.2  Joint Meetings with City Council or Other Boards 

The commission should periodically hold joint meetings with the city council to share directly 

information and perspectives regarding particular issues.  The mayor shall preside at such joint 

meetings. 

 

243



 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 16 

The commission also may have joint meetings with other boards or commissions, such as the traffic 

safety commission.  The chairs of the boards shall determine the agenda and the manner of 

facilitating the meeting.  

 

Rule 9.3 Planning Commission Presentations at City Council Work Sessions 

The city council has established a work session before council meetings, and has invited the 

planning commission to make presentations on any matter during that meeting.  The commission 

may appear as a whole, the chair or vice-chair may represent the commission, or the commission 

may appoint one or more members to represent the commission to the council.  The planning 

commission chair shall notify the mayor as far in advance as possible and at least one week in 

advance of the meeting if the commission wishes to make use of this time  

 

Rule 9.4 Attendance at and Participation in City Council Meetings 

In legislative matters, after the planning commission has taken action on an item, the mayor or city 

manager may request that the chair or chair’s designee attend a city council meeting to report the 

commission’s recommendation.  The planning commission also may appoint a representative to 

attend the city council meeting and convey the commission’s recommendation.  

 

On quasi-judicial items, the planning commission’s report to the council consists of their written 

decision, findings and the record.  Commission members do not speak at the council meeting unless 

requested by the city council or mayor. 

 

Otherwise, planning commissioners may attend any meeting of the city council.  They may speak to 

the council for themselves as a citizen on any item.  

 

244



Exhibit “1” 

To Planning Commission Rules 
 

 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 17 

OUTLINE FOR LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARING 
Newberg Planning Commission 

  

1. CALL TO ORDER 
OPEN THE PUBLIC HEARING, ANNOUNCE THE PURPOSE, DISCUSS TESTIMONY 
PROCEDURE, AND TIME ALLOTMENTS 

 
2.    CALL FOR ABSTENTIONS AND OBJECTIONS TO JURISDICTION  
 
3. STAFF REPORT 
 COMMISSION MAY ASK BRIEF QUESTIONS FOR CLARIFICATION 

   
4. PUBLIC TESTIMONY 
 5 MINUTE TIME LIMIT PER SPEAKER (15 MINUTE LIMIT FOR APPLICANT AND 
PRINCIPAL OPPONENT).  SPEAKER GOES TO WITNESS TABLE, STATES NAME & 
PRESENTS TESTIMONY.  COMMISSION MAY ASK QUESTIONS OF SPEAKERS. 
 A. APPLICANT(S) (IF ANY) 
 B. OTHER PROPONENTS                 
 C. OPPONENTS AND UNDECIDED 
 D. STAFF READS WRITTEN CORRESPONDENCE (TIME LIMIT APPLIES)  
 E. APPLICANT (IF ANY) REBUTTAL 
 
5. CLOSE OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY PORTION OF HEARING 
 
6.  FINAL COMMENTS FROM STAFF AND RECOMMENDATION  

 
7. PLANNING COMMISSION DELIBERATION 

 
8. ACTION BY THE PLANNING COMMMISSION 
 A. RESOLUTION – Usually requires passage of resolution. 
 B. VOTE – Vote is done by roll call. 

C. COMBINATION – Can be combined with other commission action; separate vote 
on each action is required. 

 

245



Exhibit “2” 

To Planning Commission Rules 
 

 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Guidelines & Rules                                    Page 18 

OUTLINE FOR QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING 
Newberg Planning Commission 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

OPEN THE PUBLIC HEARING, ANNOUNCE THE PURPOSE, DISCUSS TESTIMONY 
PROCEDURE, AND TIME ALLOTMENTS 

 
2.    CALL FOR ABSTENTIONS, BIAS, EX PARTE CONTACT, AND OBJECTIONS TO 

JURISDICTION  
 
3. LEGAL ANNOUNCEMENT 
 READ “QUASI-JUDICIAL ANNOUNCEMENTS” SHEET 
 
4. STAFF REPORT 
 COMMISSION MAY ASK BRIEF QUESTIONS FOR CLARIFICATION 

   
5. PUBLIC TESTIMONY 
 5 MINUTE TIME LIMIT PER SPEAKER (15 MINUTE LIMIT FOR APPLICANT AND 
PRINCIPAL OPPONENT).  SPEAKER GOES TO WITNESS TABLE, STATES NAME & 
PRESENTS TESTIMONY.  COMMISSION MAY ASK QUESTIONS OF SPEAKERS. 
 A. APPLICANT(S) 
 B. OTHER PROPONENTS                 
 C. OPPONENTS AND UNDECIDED 
 D. STAFF READS WRITTEN CORRESPONDENCE (TIME LIMIT APPLIES)  
 E. APPLICANT REBUTTAL 
 
6 CLOSE OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY PORTION OF HEARING 
 
7.  FINAL COMMENTS FROM STAFF AND RECOMMENDATION  
 
8. PLANNING COMMISSION DELIBERATION INCLUDING DISCUSSION OF CRITERIA 

WITH FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
9. ACTION BY THE PLANNING COMMMISSION 
 A. ORDER OR RESOLUTION – Usually requires passage of order if the 

commission is the final decision maker, or a resolution if the commission is only 
advisory to the council. 

 B. VOTE – Vote is done by roll call. 
C. COMBINATION – Can be combined with other commission action; separate vote 

on each action is required. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

246



Agenda Item No:VII.A

Planning Commission Agenda Item Report
Meeting Date: April 14, 2022
Submitted by: Doug Rux
Submitting Department: Community Development  
Item Type: PC UPDATES
Agenda Section: 

Subject:
Anticipated Schedule of Planning Commission Activities

Suggested Action:
Information only.

Attachments:
Memo Planning Commission Activities 2021.doc.pdf

247

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1318134/Memo_Planning_Commission_Activities_2021.doc.pdf


 

 
Newberg City Hall • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-538-9421 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

TO:  Newberg Planning Commission 

FROM: Doug Rux, Community Development Director 

SUBJECT: Anticipated Schedule of Planning Commission Activities 

DATE:  April 14, 2022 

 

 

To assist the Planning Commission in gauging activities for FY 21/22 and FY 22/23 below is a 

preliminary schedule of activities. 

 

April 14, 2022 

• Appeal Elliott Road Determination – Quasi Judicial Hearing (continued) 

• CUP Vacation Rental 2035 N Heritage Way – Quasi Judicial Hearing 

• Planning Commission Participation Guidelines Update 

May 12, 2022 

• Crestview Green PUD/CUP – Quasi Judicial Hearing 

• Development Code Amendment – Temporary and Portable Signs – Legislative 

 

June 9, 2022 

• Briefing Housing Production Strategy 

• SB 458 Middle Housing Land Division – Legislative Hearing (Tentative) 

June 21, 2022 (Extra meeting) 

• PSU Student Presentation Car Camping/Joint with City Council 

July 14, 2022 

• EOA Comp Plan Amendment - Legislative Hearing (Tentative) 

• HNA Comp Plan Amendment- Legislative Hearing (Tentative) 

• Public- Semi Public Comp Plan Amendment - Legislative Hearing (Tentative) 

August 11, 2022 

• West End Mill District Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment, Comprehensive Map 

Amendment/Zoning – Quasi Judicial Hearing (Tentative) 

• TBD 

September 8, 2022 

• TBD 

October 13, 2022 

• Development Code Amendment – Substantial Completion – Legislative Hearing (Tentative) 

248



 

 
Newberg City Hall • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-538-9421 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

• Development Code Amendment – Institutional Zone & Overlay Regulations – Legislative 

Hearing (Tentative) 

• TBD 

November 10, 2022 

• Briefing Housing Production Strategy 

• TBD 

December 8, 2022 

• TBD 

January 12, 2023 

• TBD 

February 9, 2023 

• TBD 

March 9, 2023 

• Briefing Housing Production Strategy 

• TBD 

 

There are additional activities the Community Development Department may bring forward to 

the Planning Commission for consideration for land use cases. Staff is also looking at various 

updates and cleanup actions to the Development Code such as: 

 

1.   Appendix A revisions roadway cross-sections 

2.   Tentative – Military Banner Sign Regulations – Legislative 

3.   Residential Parking Standards 

4.   Annexation criteria 

5.   Stream Corridor Adjustment process 

6.   Urban Forestry program 

7.   Fences in Industrial zones  

8.   Parking for subdivisions/partitions/design review  

9.  C-3 zone – reduce front yard landscaping from 10 feet to 5 feet 

10. Industrial outdoor storage  

11. Downtown sign point system  

12. Vacation home rentals  

13. Roof top mechanical unit screening 

14. Historic review process  

15. Zoning Use Table  

16. Undergrounding utilities  

17. Driveway width  

18. Home occupations  

19. 15.405.030B – “The creation” development of lots under 15,000 sf…… 

249



 

 
Newberg City Hall • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-538-9421 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

20. 15.302.010 – add R-4 to the list 

21. Replace parking diagrams in 15.440.070 for readability 

22. Replace airport overlay diagrams in back of Dev. Code for readability 

23. Temporary Merchant standards 

24. Food Carts 

 

 

250


	Planning Commission Agenda
	2016-1707 - Cover Page
	2016-1707 - PC Minutes -3.10.22.pdf
	2016-1725 - Cover Page
	2016-1725 - APL22-0001 N Elliott Road 4-14-22 w Exhibit - Attachments.pdf
	2016-1728 - Cover Page
	2016-1728 - CUP22-0003 2035 N Heritage Way w Attachments.pdf
	2016-1723 - Cover Page
	2016-1723 - GEN22-0006 Planning Commission Participation Guidelines Update w Exhibit-Attachment.pdf
	2016-1727 - Cover Page
	2016-1727 - Memo Planning Commission Activities 2021.doc.pdf

	Text Field28: 
	Text Field27: 
	Check Box10: Off
	Check Box9: Off
	Check Box8: Off
	Check Box7: Off
	Check Box6: Off
	Text Field26: 
	Text Field25: 
	Text Field24: 
	Text Field23: 
	Text Field22: 
	Text Field21: 
	Text Field20: 
	Text Field19: 
	Text Field18: 
	Text Field17: 
	Text Field16: 
	Text Field15: 
	Text Field14: 
	Text Field13: 
	Text Field12: 
	Text Field11: 
	Text Field10: 
	Text Field9: 
	Text Field8: 
	Text Field7: 
	Text Field6: 
	Text Field5: 
	Text Field4: 
	Text Field3: 
	Text Field2: 
	Check Box5: Off
	Check Box4: Off
	Check Box3: Off
	Check Box2: Off
	Check Box1: Off
	Check Box0: Off
	Text Field0: 
	Text Field1: 
	Owner Signature: Off
	Written Criteria Response: Off
	Current Title Report: Off
	Public Notice Information: Off
	Fees: Off
	Owner Signature Date: 
	Applicant Signature Date: 
	COMP PLAN DECURRENT USE: 
	COMP PLAN DESIGNATION: 
	NORTHEAST: 
	SURROUNORTH: 
	SOUTHWEST: 
	SOUTH: 
	TOPOGRAPHY: 
	PROJECT NAME: 
	PROJECT LOCATION: 
	ENGINEERADDRESS: 
	OWNER if different from aboveADDRESS: 
	ADDRESSENGINEERSURVEYOR: 
	PHONE1: 
	FAXPHONE: 
	OWNER if different from above: 
	FAX: 
	MOBILE: 
	PHONE: 
	ADDRESS: 
	ADDRESSEMAIL ADDRESS: 
	APPLICANT: 
	ZONE: 
	SITE SIZE: 
	3200AB400: 
	Other Explain: 
	Variance: 
	Tentative Plan for PartitionTentative Plan for Subdivision: 
	Type II MaVariance: 
	Type II Major ModificationVariance: 
	 Design reviewTentative Plan for Partition: 
	Type II Major Modification: 
	TYPES  PLEASE CHECK ONE: 
	Type II MaVariance0: 
	Other Explain1: Type II Determination
	ADDRESSEMAIL ADDRESS2: paul.chiu@newbergoregon.gov
	MOBILE3: (971) 281-9196
	FAX4: 
	OWNER if different from above5: City of Newberg
	FAXPHONE6: 
	PHONE7: (503) 703-2552
	ADDRESSENGINEERSURVEYOR8: Tony Roos, PE, Engineer of Record
	OWNER if different from aboveADDRESS9: 414 E First, Newberg, OR 97132
	ENGINEERADDRESS10: 851 SW 6th Avenue, Suite 600, Portland, OR 97204
	PROJECT LOCATION11: N Elliott Road (99W to Nwbg High School)
	TOPOGRAPHY12: moderately level to mild terrain
	SOUTH13: Low/medium density residential
	SOUTHWEST14: Residential
	SURROUNORTH15: Low density residential
	NORTHEAST16: Low density residential
	3200AB40017: See attached exhibits
	Applicant Signature Date20: 
	Owner Signature Date21: 
	Fees22: Off
	Public Notice Information23: Off
	Current Title Report24: Off
	Written Criteria Response25: Off
	Owner Signature26: Off
	PROJECT DESCRIPTIONUSE: Roadway Improvements
	PROJECT VALUATION: $2.95M w/o contingency
	PPLICANT: Paul Chiu, PE (City of Newberg Elliott Road Project Manager)
	APPLICANTADDRESS: 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 
	EMAIL APHONE: (503) 554-1751
	ROJECT NAME: Elliott Road Improvement Project
	3200ACOMP PLAN DESIGNATION: LDR
	3200AB400 ZONE: R1
	3200AB400 ZONE SITE SIZE: 
	COMP PLAN DESCURRENT USE: Residential
	Fees0: Off
	Fees1: Off
	Fees2: Off
	Fees3: Off
	Fees4: Off
	Fees5: Yes
	Site Info: Site map with project location (N Elliott Road) highlighted as shown above (arrows pointing to properties for Type II determination)


